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INDEPENDENT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT

To the Shareholder of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.

We have conducted a limited assurance engagement on the consolidated non-financial statement included
in the consolidated business report of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. and its subsidiaries (hereafter the “Group”) as
at December 31, 2024 and for the period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 (the “consolidated
non-financial statement”), included in the digital files raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip.

Identification of Applicable Criteria

The consolidated non-financial statement was prepared by the Management of the Group in order to satisfy
the requirements of Chapter VI/C of the Hungarian Act C of 2000 on Accounting (the ,,Accounting Act”)
implementing 29(a) of the EU Directive 2013/34/EU, including:

o Compliance with the European Sustainability Reporting Standards introduced by Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) of 31 July 2023 supplementing Directive 2013/34/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council (“ESRS”), including that the double materiality assessment process
carried out by the Group to identify the information reported in the consolidated non-financial
statement (the “Process”) is in accordance with the description set out in note ESRS 2 IRO 1 -
Description of the process to identify and assess material climate-related impacts, risks and
opportunities (hereafter “ESRS 2 IRO-1"); and

e Compliance of the disclosures in subsection Regulatory disclosure requirement in accordance with
Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation (hereafter “Taxonomy Report”) within the
environmental section of the consolidated non-financial statement with Article 8 of EU Regulation
2020/852 (the “Taxonomy Regulation™).

Inherent Limitations in Preparing the Sustainability Statement

The criteria, nature of the sustainability statement, and absence of long-standing established authoritative
guidance, standard applications and reporting practices allow for different, but acceptable, measurement
methodologies to be adopted which may result in variances between entities. The adopted measurement
methodologies may also impact the comparability of sustainability matters reported by different
organizations and from year to year within an organization as methodologies evolve.

In reporting forward looking information in accordance with ESRS, Management of the Group is required
to prepare the forward-looking information on the basis of disclosed assumptions about events that may
occur in the future and possible future actions by the Group. Actual outcome is likely to be different since
anticipated events frequently do not occur as expected.
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In determining the disclosures in the consolidated non-financial statement, management of the Group
interprets undefined legal and other terms. Undefined legal and other terms may be interpreted differently,
including the legal conformity of their interpretation and, accordingly, are subject to uncertainties.

Responsibility of the Management of the Group

Management of the Group is responsible for designing and implementing a process to identify the
information reported in the consolidated non-financial statement in accordance with the ESRS and for
disclosing this process in note ESRS 2 IRO 1 of the consolidated non-financial statement. This
responsibility includes:

¢ understanding the context in which the Group’s activities and business relationships take place and
developing an understanding of its affected stakeholders;

o the identification of the actual and potential impacts (both negative and positive) related to
sustainability matters, as well as risks and opportunities that affect, or could reasonably be expected
to affect, the Group’s financial position, financial performance, cash flows, access to finance or
cost of capital over the short-, medium-, or long-term;

e the assessment of the materiality of the identified impacts, risks and opportunities related to
sustainability matters by selecting and applying appropriate thresholds; and

e making assumptions that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Management of the Group is further responsible for the preparation of the consolidated non-financial
statement, in accordance with Chapter VI/C of the Accounting Act implementing 29(a) of the EU Directive
2013/34/EU, including:

e compliance with the ESRS;

e preparing the disclosures in Taxonomy Report within the environmental section of the consolidated
non-financial statement, in compliance with Article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852 (the “Taxonomy
Regulation™);

e designing, implementing and maintaining such internal controls that management determines are
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated non-financial statement, that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

e the selection and application of appropriate sustainability reporting methods and making
assumptions and estimates about individual sustainability disclosures that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s sustainability reporting
process.

Practitioner’s Responsibility

We conducted our limited assurance engagement in accordance with the Hungarian National Standard on
Assurance Engagements (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information (the ,,ISAE 3000 (Revised)”).

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less
in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a
limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had
a reasonable assurance engagement been performed.
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Our objectives are to plan and perform the assurance engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether
the consolidated non-financial statement is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a limited assurance report that includes our conclusion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated non-financial statement as a whole.

As part of a limited assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised) we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the engagement.

Our responsibilities in respect of the consolidated non-financial statement, in relation to the Process,
include:

- Obtaining an understanding of the Process but not for the purpose of providing a conclusion on the
effectiveness of the Process, including the outcome of the Process;

- Designing and performing procedures to evaluate whether the Process is consistent with the
Group’s description of its Process, as disclosed in note ESRS 2 IRO-1.

Our other responsibilities in respect of the consolidated non-financial statement include:

- Obtaining an understanding of the entity’s control environment, processes and information systems
relevant to the preparation of the consolidated non-financial statement but not evaluating the design
of particular control activities, obtaining evidence about their implementation or testing their
operating effectiveness;

- Identifying disclosures where material misstatements are likely to arise, whether due to fraud or
error;

- Designing and performing procedures responsive to disclosures in the consolidated non-financial
statement where material misstatements are likely to arise. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Our Independence and Quality Management

We complied with the principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care,
confidentiality, and professional behavior as laid down in the relevant effective Hungarian regulations and
the “Rules of conduct (ethical rules) of the auditor profession and the disciplinary process” of the Chamber
of Hungarian Auditors and, in respect of matters not regulated therein, the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (the IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the same ethical requirements.

We applied the 1. Hungarian national quality management standard titled ‘Quality Management for Firms
that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services
Engagements’ which is fully consistent in all respects with the International Quality Management Standard
(ISQM 1) of the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB), and accordingly, we
maintain a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

Summary of Work Performed

A limited assurance engagement involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the consolidated
non-financial statement.
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The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected depend on professional judgement, including the
identification of disclosures where material misstatements are likely to arise, whether due to fraud or error,
in the consolidated non-financial statement.

In conducting our limited assurance engagement, with respect to the Process, we:
- Obtained an understanding of the Process by:
o performing inquiries to understand the sources of the information used by management;
o reviewing the Group’s internal documentation of its Process; and

- Evaluated whether the evidence obtained from our procedures about the Process implemented by
the Group was consistent with the description of the Process set out in note ESRS 2 IRO-1.

In conducting our limited assurance engagement, with respect to the consolidated non-financial statement,
we:

- Performed inquiries to obtain an understanding of the Group’s reporting processes, control
environment and information systems, relevant to the preparation of its consolidated non-financial
statement;

- Evaluated whether material information identified by the Process to identify the information is
included in the consolidated non-financial statement;

- Evaluated whether the structure and the presentation of the consolidated non-financial statement is
in accordance with the ESRS;

- Performed inquires of relevant personnel and analytical procedures on selected disclosures in the
consolidated non-financial statement;

- Performed substantive assurance procedures based on a sample basis on selected disclosures in the
consolidated non-financial statement;

- Obtained evidence on the methods for developing material estimates and forward-looking
information and on how these methods were applied;

- Obtained an understanding of the process to identify taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned
economic activities and the corresponding disclosures in the consolidated non-financial statement.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
conclusion.

Limited Assurance Conclusion

Based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence we have obtained, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the consolidated non-financial statement is not prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with Chapter VI/C of the Accounting Act implementing 29(a) of the EU
Directive 2013/34/EU, including:

o Compliance with the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS), including that the
double materiality assessment process carried out by the Group to identify the information reported
in the Consolidated sustainability statement is in accordance with the description set out in note
ESRS 2 IRO-1; and

e Compliance of the disclosures in subsection EU Taxonomy Report within the environmental
section of the Consolidated Sustainability Statement with Article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852 (the
“Taxonomy Regulation”).
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Other Matters
Our limited assurance engagement does not extend to information in respect of earlier periods.

The Accounting Act Section 134/L requires that we provide a limited assurance conclusion on the
compliance with the requirement to mark-up the disclosures in the consolidated non-financial statement
prepared in the electronic reporting format (XHTML) as defined in the Commission Delegated Regulation
(EVU) 2019/815 (the ESEF Regulation) according to the relevant ESEF taxonomy, including the disclosures
required by the Taxonomy Regulation. Given that the ESEF taxonomy for sustainability reports has not yet
been adopted, the Group — as presented in Section BP-1: General basis for preparation of consolidated non-
financial statement — has not been able to complete the mark-up of disclosures, and therefore we are unable
to form a conclusion in this regard.

Budapest, March 27, 2025

Molnar Attila
on behalf of Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
and as a statutory registered auditor

Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
1068 Budapest, Dozsa Gyorgy ut 84/C.
Registration number: 000083

Registration number of statutory registered auditor: 007379
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. and its subsidiaries (the
,,Group”) for the year 2024 included in the digital files raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip !, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024 — which shows a total assets of mMHUF
4,615,256 —, and the related consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income — which shows a total comprehensive income for the year of mHUF 106,860 profit
—, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (the ,,EU IFRS”), and the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in all material respects in accordance with the provisions of the effective
Hungarian Act C of 2000 on Accounting (the ,,Accounting Act”) relevant to the entities preparing
consolidated financial statements in accordance with EU IFRS.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Hungarian National Standards on Auditing and the effective
Hungarian laws and other regulations on audits. Our responsibilities under these standards are further
described in the "The Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements”
section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in compliance with the relevant effective Hungarian regulations and the
“Rules of conduct (ethical rules) of the auditor profession and the disciplinary process” of the Chamber of
Hungarian Auditors and, in respect of matters not regulated therein, the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (the IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the same ethical requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the matter

Expected credit losses on loans to customers at amortized cost

(See notes 6. to the separate financial statements for
the details)

As at December 31, 2024 the Bank shows loans to
customers at amortised cost in the amount of HUF
1,686,985 million (gross: HUF 1,743,168 million),
in connection with HUF 56,183 million loss
allowance on loans) has been recognized.

The determination of expected credit losses is based
on a large extent on the professional judgment of
management and the use of subjective assumptions,
both in the application of portfolio-level collective
impairment models and in the determination of
individual credit losses.

The most significant assumptions applied in
provisioning calculation are the followings:

- Identification of significant increase in credit risk

- IFRS9 credit risk staging methodology and
application

- probability of default

- loss given default

- estimation of future cash-flows expected to be
realized.

The current economic macro environment resulted
in an increase in the uncertainty of assumptions. The
various debtor protection measures made it difficult
to assess and monitor the financial situation of the
clients, which required a higher level of estimation
on the part of the Bank when calculating the ECL.

Based on the significance of the above described
circumstances the calculation of expected credit
loss of loans assessed on portfolio-level and in the
determination of individual credit losses was
identified as a key audit matter.

The relevant audit procedures performed by us
included the followings:

- evaluating the design and implementation of
internal controls relating to monitoring of loans and
approval of impairment,

- test of staging through portfolio-level analysis and
the staging methodology applied by the model,

- assessing on a sample basis, whether the staging
and impairment triggers are captured appropriately
and whether the estimation of the allowance is
reasonable

- robust challenge of management estimates related
to the loan impairment,

- assess the collective model methodology and
testing the calculations in terms of risk parameters
(probability of default - PD, loss given default -
LGD, expected credit loss - ECL, macroeconomic
factors) applied by the collective models by
involving of experts, recalculation of impairment,

- evaluating specific loan impairments by selecting
a random sample based on risk profiles, and for the
individually impaired loans the review of
consideration and valuation of collaterals and
estimates of expected future cash-flows,

- comprehensive analysis of loan portfolio,

- assessing the requirement for additional
allowances considering the ECL  models,
particularly in light of the extreme volatility in
economic scenarios caused by the current economic
macro environment,

- assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the
separate financial statements.




Other Information

Other information comprises the information included in the responsible corporate governance statement
and in the consolidated business report of the Group for 2024, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information
and for the preparation of the consolidated business report in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Accounting Act and other regulations. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements provided in the
section of our independent auditor’s report entitled "Opinion" does not apply to the other information.

Our responsibility in connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Furthermore, in accordance with the Accounting Act, our responsibilities regarding the consolidated
business report also include reviewing the consolidated business report to assess whether the consolidated
business report was prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Accounting Act excluding
the provisions of Chapter VI/C. on consolidated non-financial statement and other regulations, if any,
including the assessment whether the consolidated business report complies with the requirements of
Section 95/B. (2) e) and f) of the Accounting Act, and to express an opinion on the above and on whether
the consolidated business report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, in
accordance with the Accounting Act we shall make a statement whether the information referred to in
Section 95/B. (2) a)-d), g) and h) has been provided in the consolidated business report and whether the
consolidated business report includes the consolidated non-financial statement required by Chapter VI/C.
of the Accounting Act.

In fulfilling this obligation, for the purpose of formulating our opinion on the consolidated business report
we considered Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/815 of 17 December 2018 ("ESEF Regulation™) as other
regulation stipulating additional requirements pertaining to consolidated business report.

In our opinion, the consolidated business report of the Group for 2024 corresponds to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for 2024 and the relevant provisions of the Accounting Act excluding the
provisions of Chapter VI/C. on consolidated non-financial statement and other relevant regulation listed
above in all material respects. We state that the information referred to in Section 95/B. (2) a)-d), g) and h)
of the Accounting Act has been provided and the consolidated business report includes the consolidated
non-financial statement required by Chapter VI/C. of the Accounting Act.

We issue another report based on a limited assurance engagement on whether the Consolidated non-
financial statement complies with the requirements of Chapter VI/C. of the Accounting Act relating to
consolidated non-financial statement.

In addition to the above, based on the information obtained about the Group and its environment, we must
report on whether we became aware of any material misstatements in the other information and, if so, on
the nature of such material misstatements. We have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with EU IFRSs and for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with provisions of the Accounting Act relevant to entities preparing consolidated financial
statements in accordance with EU IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

The auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives during the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue, on
the basis of the above, an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Hungarian National
Standards on Auditing and the effective Hungarian laws and other regulations on audits will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error, and they are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Hungarian National Standards on Auditing and the effective
Hungarian laws and other regulations on audits, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to



the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in the Group's
internal control that we identify during the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In compliance with Article 10 (2) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and the
Council, we provide the following information in our independent auditor’s report, which is required in
addition to the requirements of International Standards on Auditing:

Appointment of the Auditor and the Period of Engagement
We were appointed as the auditors of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. by the Resolution of the Shareholder on May
14, 2021 and our uninterrupted engagement has lasted for 4 years.

Consistence with the Additional Report to the Audit Committee

We confirm that our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed herein is consistent
with the additional report to the Audit Committee of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt., which we issued on March 24,
2025, in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and the
Council.

Provision of Non-audit Services

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5 (1) of Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and the Council were provided by us to the Group. In addition, there
are no other non-audit services which were provided by us to Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. and its controlled
undertakings, and which have not been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is the signatory of the
report.



Report on compliance of the presentation of consolidated financial statements with the requirements set
out in the regulation on the single electronic reporting format

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on compliance of the presentation of consolidated
financial statements of the Group included in the digital file raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip (,,ESEF format
consolidated financial statements”) with the requirements set out in Commission Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2019/815 of 17 December 2018 supplementing Directive 2004/109/EC of the European Parliament
and of the Council with regard to regulatory technical standards on the specification of a single electronic
reporting format. (,,ESEF Regulation”).

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for ESEF format consolidated
financial statements

The management is responsible for the presentation of the ESEF format consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the ESEF Regulation. This responsibility includes:
o the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in XHTML format;
o the selection and application of appropriate iXBRL tags using judgement where necessary; including
full application of relevant tags and proper creation and anchoring of extension elements; and
o the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the application of the
ESEF Regulation.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process,
including compliance with the ESEF Regulation.

Our responsibility and summary of the work performed

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether, in all material respects, the presentation of ESEF
format consolidated financial statements complies with the ESEF Regulation, based on the evidence we
have obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with the Hungarian
National Standard on Assurance Engagements (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information (ISAE 3000).

A reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 involves performing procedures to
obtain evidence about compliance with the ESEF Regulation. The nature, timing and extent of procedures
selected depend on the practitioner's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material departures
from the requirements set out in the ESEF Regulations, whether due to fraud or error. Our reasonable
assurance engagement included obtaining an understanding of tagging, obtaining an understanding of the
internal controls relevant for the application of the ESEF Regulation, checking the appropriateness of
Group's use of the XHTML format, evaluating the completeness of Group's tagging of the consolidated
financial statements using the XBRL markup language, evaluating the appropriateness of Group's use of
iXBRL elements selected from the ESEF taxonomy and the creation of extension elements and evaluating
the use of anchoring in relation to the extension elements.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the ESEF format consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended

December 31, 2024 included in the digital file raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip is presented, in all material
respects, in compliance with the requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

Budapest, March 27, 2025

Molnér Attila
on behalf of Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
and as a statutory registered auditor

Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
1068 Budapest, D6zsa Gyorgy Ut 84/C.
Registration number: 000083

Registration number of statutory registered auditor: 007379
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INDEPENDENT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT

To the Shareholder of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.

We have conducted a limited assurance engagement on the separate non-financial statement included in the
separate business report of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. (hereafter the “Bank™) as at December 31, 2024 and for the
period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 (the “separate non-financial statement”), included in
the digital files raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip'.

Identification of Applicable Criteria

The separate non-financial statement was prepared by the Management of the Bank in order to satisfy the
requirements of Chapter III/A of the Hungarian Act C of 2000 on Accounting (the ,,Accounting Act”)
implementing 19(a) of the EU Directive 2013/34/EU, including:

o Compliance with the European Sustainability Reporting Standards introduced by Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) of July 31 2023 supplementing Directive 2013/34/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council (“ESRS”), including that the double materiality assessment process
carried out by the Bank to identify the information reported in the separate non-financial statement
(the “Process”) is in accordance with the description set out in note ESRS 2 IRO 1 - Description of
the process to identify and assess material climate-related impacts, risks and opportunities
(hereafter “ESRS 2 IRO-1"); and

e Compliance of the disclosures in subsection Regulatory disclosure requirement in accordance with
Avticle 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation (Taxonomy Regulation) (hereafter “Taxonomy Report”)
within the environmental section of the separate non-financial statement with Article 8 of EU
Regulation 2020/852 (the “Taxonomy Regulation™).

Inherent Limitations in Preparing the Sustainability Statement

The criteria, nature of the sustainability statement, and absence of long-standing established authoritative
guidance, standard applications and reporting practices allow for different, but acceptable, measurement
methodologies to be adopted which may result in variances between entities. The adopted measurement
methodologies may also impact the comparability of sustainability matters reported by different
organizations and from year to year within an organization as methodologies evolve.

In reporting forward looking information in accordance with ESRS, Management of the Bank is required
to prepare the forward-looking information on the basis of disclosed assumptions about events that may
occur in the future and possible future actions by the Bank. Actual outcome is likely to be different since
anticipated events frequently do not occur as expected.
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In determining the disclosures in the separate non-financial statement, management of the Bank interprets
undefined legal and other terms. Undefined legal and other terms may be interpreted differently, including
the legal conformity of their interpretation and, accordingly, are subject to uncertainties.

Responsibility of the Management of the Bank

Management of the Bank is responsible for designing and implementing a process to identify the
information reported in the separate non-financial statement in accordance with the ESRS and for disclosing
this process in note ESRS 2 IRO 1 of the separate non-financial statement. This responsibility includes:

o understanding the context in which the Bank’s activities and business relationships take place and
developing an understanding of its affected stakeholders;

e the identification of the actual and potential impacts (both negative and positive) related to
sustainability matters, as well as risks and opportunities that affect, or could reasonably be expected
to affect, the Bank’s financial position, financial performance, cash flows, access to finance or cost
of capital over the short-, medium-, or long-term;

e the assessment of the materiality of the identified impacts, risks and opportunities related to
sustainability matters by selecting and applying appropriate thresholds; and

e making assumptions that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Management of the Bank is further responsible for the preparation of the separate non-financial statement,
in accordance with Chapter III/A of the Accounting Act implementing 19(a) of the EU Directive
2013/34/EU, including:

e compliance with the ESRS;

e preparing the disclosures in Taxonomy Report within the environmental section of the separate
non-financial statement, in compliance with Article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852 (the “Taxonomy
Regulation”);

e designing, implementing and maintaining such internal controls that management determines are
necessary to enable the preparation of the separate non-financial statement, that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

e the selection and application of appropriate sustainability reporting methods and making
assumptions and estimates about individual sustainability disclosures that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s sustainability reporting process.

Practitioner’s Responsibility

We conducted our limited assurance engagement in accordance with the Hungarian National Standard on
Assurance Engagements (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information (the ,,ISAE 3000 (Revised)”).

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less
in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a
limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had
a reasonable assurance engagement been performed.

Our objectives are to plan and perform the assurance engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether
the separate non-financial statement is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
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to issue a limited assurance report that includes our conclusion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions of users taken on the basis of the separate non-financial statement as a whole.

As part of a limited assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised) we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the engagement.

Our responsibilities in respect of the separate non-financial statement, in relation to the Process, include:

- Obtaining an understanding of the Process but not for the purpose of providing a conclusion on the
effectiveness of the Process, including the outcome of the Process;

- Designing and performing procedures to evaluate whether the Process is consistent with the Bank’s
description of its Process, as disclosed in note ESRS 2 IRO-1.

Our other responsibilities in respect of the separate non-financial statement include:

- Obtaining an understanding of the entity’s control environment, processes and information systems
relevant to the preparation of the separate non-financial statement but not evaluating the design of
particular control activities, obtaining evidence about their implementation or testing their
operating effectiveness;

- Identifying disclosures where material misstatements are likely to arise, whether due to fraud or
error;

- Designing and performing procedures responsive to disclosures in the separate non-financial
statement where material misstatements are likely to arise. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Our Independence and Quality Management

We complied with the principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care,
confidentiality, and professional behavior as laid down in the relevant effective Hungarian regulations and
the “Rules of conduct (ethical rules) of the auditor profession and the disciplinary process” of the Chamber
of Hungarian Auditors and, in respect of matters not regulated therein, the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (the IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the same ethical requirements.

We applied the 1. Hungarian national quality management standard titled ‘Quality Management for Firms
that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services
Engagements’ which is fully consistent in all respects with the International Quality Management Standard
(ISQM 1) of the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB), and accordingly, we
maintain a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

Summary of Work Performed

A limited assurance engagement involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the separate non-
financial statement.
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The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected depend on professional judgement, including the
identification of disclosures where material misstatements are likely to arise, whether due to fraud or error,
in the separate non-financial statement.

In conducting our limited assurance engagement, with respect to the Process, we:
- Obtained an understanding of the Process by:
o performing inquiries to understand the sources of the information used by management;
o reviewing the Bank’s internal documentation of its Process; and

- Evaluated whether the evidence obtained from our procedures about the Process implemented by
the Bank was consistent with the description of the Process set out in note ESRS 2 IRO-1.

In conducting our limited assurance engagement, with respect to the separate non-financial statement, we:

- Performed inquiries to obtain an understanding of the Bank’s reporting processes, control
environment and information systems, relevant to the preparation of its separate non-financial
statement;

- Evaluated whether material information identified by the Process to identify the information is
included in the separate non-financial statement;

- Evaluated whether the structure and the presentation of the separate non-financial statement is in
accordance with the ESRS;

- Performed inquires of relevant personnel and analytical procedures on selected disclosures in the
separate non-financial statement;

- Performed substantive assurance procedures based on a sample basis on selected disclosures in the
separate non-financial statement;

- Obtained evidence on the methods for developing material estimates and forward-looking
information and on how these methods were applied;

- Obtained an understanding of the process to identify taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned
economic activities and the corresponding disclosures in the separate non-financial statement.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
conclusion.

Limited Assurance Conclusion

Based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence we have obtained, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the separate non-financial statement is not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with Chapter 111/A of the Accounting Act, implementing 19(a) of the EU Directive
2013/34/EU, including:

e Compliance with the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS), including that the
double materiality assessment process carried out by the Bank to identify the information reported
in the separate non-financial statement is in accordance with the description set out in note ESRS
2 IRO-1; and

e Compliance of the disclosures in subsection EU Taxonomy Report within the environmental
section of the separate non-financial statement with Article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852 (the
“Taxonomy Regulation”).
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Other Matters
Our limited assurance engagement does not extend to information in respect of earlier periods.

The Accounting Act Section 95/H requires that we provide a limited assurance conclusion on the
compliance with the requirement to mark-up the disclosures in the separate non-financial statement
prepared in the electronic reporting format (XHTML) as defined in the Commission Delegated Regulation
(EVU) 2019/815 (the ESEF Regulation) according to the relevant ESEF taxonomy, including the disclosures
required by the Taxonomy Regulation. Given that the ESEF taxonomy for sustainability reports has not yet
been adopted, the Entity — as presented in Section BP-1: General basis for preparation of separate non-
financial statement — has not been able to complete the mark-up of disclosures, and therefore we are unable
to form a conclusion in this regard.

Budapest, March 27, 2025

Molnar Attila
on behalf of Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
and as a statutory registered auditor

Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
1068 Budapest, Dozsa Gyorgy ut 84/C.
Registration number: 000083

Registration number of statutory registered auditor: 007379
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.

Report on the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the separate financial statements of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. (the ,,Bank”) for the year 2024
included in the digital files raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip!, which comprise the separate statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2024 — which shows a total assets of mHUF 4,597,277 —, and the
related separate statement of profit or loss, separate other comprehensive income — which shows total
comprehensive income for the year of mHUF 105,413 profit —, separate statement of changes in equity and
separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the separate financial statements
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2024 and of its separate financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (the ,,EU IFRS”), and the separate financial statements were prepared in all material
respects in accordance with the provisions of the effective Hungarian Act C of 2000 on Accounting (the
»Accounting Act”) relevant to the entities preparing separate financial statements in accordance with EU
IFRS.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Hungarian National Standards on Auditing and the effective
Hungarian laws and other regulations on audits. Our responsibilities under these standards are further
described in the "The Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the separate financial statements" section
of our report.

We are independent of the Bank in compliance with the relevant effective Hungarian regulations and the
“Rules of conduct (ethical rules) of the auditor profession and the disciplinary process” of the Chamber of
Hungarian Auditors and, in respect of matters not regulated therein, the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (the IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the same ethical requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

L Digital identification of raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip separate financial statements with SHA 256 HASH algorithm:
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the matter

Expected credit losses on loans to customers at amortized cost

(See notes 6. to the separate financial statements for
the details)

As at December 31, 2024 the Bank shows loans to
customers at amortised cost in the amount of HUF
1,667,929 million (gross: HUF 1,723,766 million),
in connection with HUF 55,837 million loss
allowance on loans) has been recognized.

The determination of expected credit losses is based
on a large extent on the professional judgment of
management and the use of subjective assumptions,
both in the application of portfolio-level collective
impairment models and in the determination of
individual credit losses.

The most significant assumptions applied in
provisioning calculation are the followings:

- Identification of significant increase in credit risk

- IFRS9 credit risk staging methodology and
application

- probability of default

- loss given default

- estimation of future cash-flows expected to be
realized.

The current economic macro environment resulted
in an increase in the uncertainty of assumptions.
The various debtor protection measures made it
difficult to assess and monitor the financial
situation of the clients, which required a higher
level of estimation on the part of the Bank when
calculating the ECL.

Based on the significance of the above described
circumstances the calculation of expected credit
loss of loans assessed on portfolio-level and in the
determination of individual credit losses was
identified as a key audit matter.

The relevant audit procedures performed by us
included the followings:

- evaluating the design and implementation of
internal controls relating to monitoring of loans and
approval of impairment,

- test of staging through portfolio-level analysis and
the staging methodology applied by the model,

- assessing on a sample basis, whether the staging
and impairment triggers are captured appropriately
and whether the estimation of the allowance is
reasonable,

- robust challenge of management estimates related
to the loan impairment,

- assess the collective model methodology and
testing the calculations in terms of risk parameters
(probability of default - PD, loss given default -
LGD, expected credit loss - ECL, macroeconomic
factors) applied by the collective models by
involving of experts, recalculation of impairment,

- evaluating specific loan impairments by selecting a
random sample based on risk profiles, and for the
individually impaired loans the review of
consideration and valuation of collaterals and
estimates of expected future cash-flows,

- comprehensive analysis of loan portfolio,

- assessing the requirement for additional allowances
considering the ECL models, particularly in light of
the extreme volatility in economic scenarios caused
by the current economic macro environment,

- assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the
separate financial statements.




Other Information

Other information comprises the information included in the responsible corporate governance statement
and in the separate business report of the Bank for 2024, but does not include the separate financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information and for
the preparation of the separate business report in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Accounting
Act and other regulations. Our opinion on the separate financial statements provided in the section of our
independent auditor’s report entitled "Opinion" does not apply to the other information.

Our responsibility in connection with our audit of the separate financial statements is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Furthermore, in accordance with the Accounting Act, our responsibilities regarding the separate business
report also include reviewing the separate business report to assess whether the separate business report
was prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Accounting Act excluding the provisions of
Chapter I11/A. on separate non-financial statement and other regulations, if any, including the assessment
whether the separate business report complies with the requirements of Section 95/B. (2) e) and f) of the
Accounting Act, and to express an opinion on the above and on whether the separate business report is
consistent with the separate financial statements. Furthermore, in accordance with the Accounting Act we
shall make a statement whether the information referred to in Section 95/B. (2) a)-d), g) and h) has been
provided in the separate business report and whether the separate business report includes the separate non-
financial statement required by Chapter I1I/A. of the Accounting Act.

In fulfilling this obligation, for the purpose of formulating our opinion on the separate business report we
considered Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/815 of 17 December 2018 ("ESEF Regulation™) as other
regulation stipulating additional requirements pertaining to separate business report.

In our opinion, the separate business report of the Bank for 2024 corresponds to the separate financial
statements of the Bank for 2024 and the relevant provisions of the Accounting Act excluding the provisions
of Chapter IllI/A. on separate non-financial statement and other relevant regulation listed above in all
material respects. We state that the information referred to in Section 95/B. (2) a)-d), g) and h) of the
Accounting Act has been provided and the separate business report includes the Separate non-financial
statement required by Chapter I11/A. of the Accounting Act.

We issue another report based on a limited assurance engagement on whether the separate non-financial
statement complies with the requirements of Chapter I11/A. of the Accounting Act relating to separate non-
financial statement.

In addition to the above, based on the information obtained about the Bank and its environment, we must
report on whether we became aware of any material misstatements in the other information and, if so, on
the nature of such material misstatements. We have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Separate Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of separate financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with EU IFRSs and for the preparation of the separate financial statements in accordance
with provisions of the Accounting Act relevant to entities preparing separate financial statements in
accordance EU IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

The Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives during the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue, on
the basis of the above, an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Hungarian National
Standards on Auditing and the effective Hungarian laws and other regulations on audits will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error, and they are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Hungarian National Standards on Auditing and the effective
Hungarian laws and other regulations on audits, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to



the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in the Bank’s
internal control that we identify during the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In compliance with Article 10 (2) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and the
Council, we provide the following information in our independent auditor’s report, which is required in
addition to the requirements of International Standards on Auditing:

Appointment of the Auditor and the Period of Engagement
We were appointed as the auditors of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. by the Resolution of the Shareholder on May
14, 2021 and our uninterrupted engagement has lasted for 4 years.

Consistence with the Additional Report to the Audit Committee

We confirm that our audit opinion on the separate financial statements expressed herein is consistent with
the additional report to the Audit Committee of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt., which we issued on March 24, 2025
in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and the
Council.

Provision of Non-audit Services

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5 (1) of Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and the Council were provided by us to the Bank. In addition, there
are no other non-audit services which were provided by us to the bank and its controlled undertakings and
which have not been disclosed in the separate financial statements.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is the signatory of the
report.



Report on compliance of the presentation of separate financial statements with the requirements set
out in the regulation on the single electronic reporting format

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on compliance of the presentation of separate
financial statements of the Bank included in the digital files raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en.zip (,,ESEF format
separate financial statements”) with the requirements set out in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU)
2019/815 of 17 December 2018 supplementing Directive 2004/109/EC of the European Parliament and of
the Council with regard to regulatory technical standards on the specification of a single electronic reporting
format (,,ESEF Regulation™).

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the ESEF format separate
financial statements

The management is responsible for the presentation of ESEF format separate financial statements in
accordance with the ESEF Regulation. This responsibility includes:
e the preparation of the separate financial statements in XHTML format;
o the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the application of the
ESEF Regulation.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process,
including compliance with the ESEF Regulation.

Our responsibility and summary of the work performed

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether, in all material respects, the presentation of ESEF
format separate financial statements complies with the ESEF Regulation, based on the evidence we have
obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with the Hungarian National
Standard on Assurance Engagements (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information (ISAE 3000).

A reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 involves performing procedures to
obtain evidence about compliance with the ESEF Regulation. The nature, timing and extent of procedures
selected depend on the practitioner's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material departures
from the requirements set out in the ESEF Regulations, whether due to fraud or error. Our reasonable
assurance engagement included obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant for the
application of the ESEF Regulation and checking the appropriateness of Bank's use of the XHTML format.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the ESEF format separate financial statements of the ,,Bank” for the year ended December

31, 2024 included in the digital file raiffeisen-2024-12-31-en, is presented, in all material respects, in
compliance with the requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

Budapest, March 27, 2025

Molnér Attila
on behalf of Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
and as a statutory registered auditor

Deloitte Auditing and Consulting Ltd.
1068 Budapest, D6zsa Gyorgy Ut 84/C.
Registration number: 000083

Registration number of statutory registered auditor: 007379
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Publication of the 2024 Annual
Report

The Annual report of the Raiffeisen Bank Zrt's operation in 2024 is provided below which is based on the audited financial
statements approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025:

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Consolidated business report 2024

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Consolidated non-financial statement 2024
Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Consolidated financial statements 2024

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Responsible corporate governance statement 2024
Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Consolidated statement of the issuer 2024
Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Separate business report 2024

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Separate non-financial statement 2024

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Separate financial statements 2024

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Separate statement of the issuer 2024

Budapest, 27 March 2025

Zeljko Obradovic Tibor Gaspdr

Chief Financial Officer Head of Accounting Department
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Consolidated business report 1

(1) Macroeconomic environment

(1.1 Hungarian economy

Hungary's economic performance has been very subdued during 2024. According to first estimates (which include GDP data for
2024 Q4), output for the year as a whole grew by 0.5% in raw terms and by 0.6% in adjusted terms compared to 2023. Growth
expectations gradually declined over the year, but the Q4 2024 GDP data beat analysts' consensus, with GDP volume rising by
0.5% on a quarterly and 0.2% on an annual basis. On the contribution side, services activity was mainly supportive, while a
decline in industrial, agricultural and construction output tended to dampen the recovery. On the consumption side, private
consumption showed a mixed picture, with some growth in household final consumption but a sharp fall in investment (both in
the private and public sectors) as market funding remains expensive and the lack of subsidies and EU funds is difficult to
replace. In addition, external demand has been very subdued in Europe and in other major export markets. This could turn
positively from 2025 onwards. After a high inflation period, consumption could continue to pick up on the back of falling
savings rates, and, assuming external demand strengthens, demand for capital investment could also start to rise, with all
sectors contributing positively to GDP growth alongside export demand from industry, which is still suffering from low capacity
utilisation. In addition, the base effect could be supportive in 2025, with upside risks to the expected GDP growth of 2.5% for
the year as a whole. The unemployment rate has been mixed over 2024, but has remained below its multi-year average and
below trend over the long term, with a 3-month moving average of 4.7% in December 2023 and 4.4% in December 2024. The
labour market remains tight, hence the pace of wage outflows is only moderating slowly (in November 2024 the annual growth
rate of average gross wages was 11.9%, which means a 13.5% increase for January-November). In 2025, it is expected to be
somewhere between 9-10%, rather than double digits. Inflation stood at 4.6% at the end of the year, while it was 3.7% for 2024
as a whole. The headline CPI is expected to decline further over 2025 and in the longer term, along which core inflation is also
expected to catch up to the 3% medium-term target within a few quarters. Against this backdrop, some technical factors and
stronger-than-expected food and fuel inflation have pushed up near-term inflation risks. Inflation is likely to average 4% in
2025, which means that monthly figures around the upper end of the central bank's 2-4% tolerance band could characterise
the coming quarters in particular. Regarding interest rate policy, in 2024 the effective interest rate declined further from 10.75%
to 6.5%, but in Q4 2024 the easing cycle stopped as the HUF showed greater vulnerability than before, and expectations of an
expected decline in developed market interest rates were reassessed. Interest rate cuts may continue in 2025: no rate cuts are
expected until mid-year, with three 25 bp cuts in late Q2 2025, i.e. in June, followed by September and December. The risk
premia that the market anticipates for HUF assets have widened somewhat over the past year, while the risk-free developed
market rate itself may be on a higher forward trajectory than previously thought. Against this backdrop, the EUR/HUF
exchange rate, which has risen from around 380 in the first half of last year to close to 410 by the end of the year, could
continue to move north in the short to medium term, with a trading range of 405-420 emerging in 2025.

(1.2) The banking sector

In the first three quarters of 2024, according to data of the National Bank of Hungary (NBH) the banking sector recorded a HUF
1,567 billion profit after taxation on consolidated level. The net interest income was 4% higher than in 2023, while fee and
commission income increased to a higher extent, by 15%.

Operating expenses increased by 4% compared to the same period of last year. In the first three quarters of 2024, net loss
allowance and risk provision decreased further (by 17%), contributing to the banking sector's results.

The sector's net assets were HUF 94,458 billion, which represents an 6% increase compared to the same period of 2023.
Corporate loans decreased by 1%, while retail loans increased by 11% compared to last year. The balance of deposits from
customers also increased, the total balance of deposits from retail and non-financial companies increased by 7% compared to
the same period of last year.

The ratio of non-performing loans decreased slightly from 2.7% to 2.4% compared to the same period of last year.
The cost-to-income ratio (CIR) was 50.9% in the first three quarters of 2024, which is slightly better than the last year's 52.4%.
The RoE and RoA ratios have also changed, decreasing to 19.5% (from 22.7%) and 2.2% (from 2.4%), respectively. The liquidity

status and capital adequacy of the sector are appropriate.

(*For the source of data please see https://statisztika.mnb.hu/publikacios-temak/felugyeleti-statisztikak/penz--es-hitelpiaci-
szervezetek/hitelintezeti-aktualis-publikaciok page published by the NBH.)
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(2) Non-financial statement

For the short presentation of the company's business model please see Section (4) Presentation of the business segment's
performance .

The key non-financial performance indicators, which are important for the given business segments are included in Section (4)
Presentation of the business segment'’s performance as well.

The descriptions of the company's policies followed in respect of environmental protection, social and employment matters,
respecting the human rights, fighting against corruption and bribery, with references to the implemented control procedures,
the results of them, along with the risks in the listed areas that might have disadvantageous effects are included in the
following sections:

(7.4) Fraud Risk Management

(8) Environmental protection

(9) Sustainability

(10) Employment policy

(11) Compliance activity

The services authorized beyond the regulatory audit that are to be disclosed in the business report and were provided by the
auditor to the entity and the companies controlled by it are included in section (13) Fees charged by the auditor.

(3) Business activity

(3.1) Balance sheet

The Group's total assets increased by 4.13% (HUF 183 billion) in 2024, and its market share has decreased during the year, from
6.00% at 2023 year-end to 5.86%.The outstanding growth in volumes of recent years continued during 2024, following the
slowdown observed in 2023, so there was an increase in both customer liabilities and customer assets.

(HUF million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 Change
Total assets 4,615,256 4,432,055 413%
Loans and advances to clients 1,872,028 1,763,536 6.15%
Deposits from customers 3,183,599 2,986,372 6.60%

The Group's loan/deposit ratio remained almost unchanged (60.57%), due to the nearly same increase in customer assets and
liabilities. This is in line with the current investment climate influenced by inflation and interest rates, a trend across the sector.

The Group’s own funds increased by 4.70% in 2024, primarily driven by outstanding profit after tax. The Group's capital level
remains stable, with a solvency ratio that climbed to 29.36%, thanks to a profitable period in recent years and additional core
and additional capital items provided by the owner

(HUF million) 31.12.2024 3112.2023 Change
Own funds 507,082 484,317 4.70%
Solvency ratio 29.36 % 2773 % 5.88%

In 2022, the Group launched the Euro Medium Term Note Programme (EMTN) with an envelope of EUR 2 billion and its local
Bond Programme with an envelope of HUF 100 billion, which were updated in the course of 2024. Under the programmes, the
Bank issued (partly green) MREL-eligible bonds to institutional and retail investors. Further emissions followed in 2024, under
more favourable macroeconomic conditions, totalling EUR 350.39 million. Thus, MREL closing stock increased by EUR 7.48 million
from 2023 to 2024.
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(3.2) Profit or loss

Profit or loss item 2024 2023 Change

(HUF million) (HUF million) %
Net interest and dividend income 187,133 201121 -13,988 -6.96%
Net income from commissions and fees 94,384 81,520 12,864 15.78%
Operating expenses -87,81 -80,061 -7,750 9.68%
Risk cost 13,354 180 13174 7318.89%
Other result 72,090 -86,444 14,354 -16.60%
Profit before tax 134,970 116,316 18,654 16.04%
Tax expense -19,018 -13,057 -5,961 45.65%
Profit for the year 115,952 103,259 12,693 12.29%

Operating expenses include personnel expenses, other administrative expenses and depreciation and amortisation, the fees paid to OBA and BEVA are presented in other
result.
In addition to impairment of financial assets, Risk cost also includes the amount of other provisions.

The Group recognised HUF 115,952 million for the business year, which was 12.29% higher than the result of the previous year.
The main components of profit are the following:

Net interest income decreased by 6.96% compared to last year, reflecting the declining yield environment in the
forint market.

Commission income improved significantly compared to the previous year, driven by higher income on payment
services and investment management fees.

The increase in the Group's operating costs was primarily caused by the increase in wage costs compensating for
the exceptionally high inflationary environment of 2023 and the resources devoted to digital developments
supporting the Group's strategic objectives.

During 2024, the Group recorded HUF 13,174 million lower risk costs compared to the previous year.

In the other result category, the loss was lower than last year due to the Group's share from the extraordinary
surtax charged on the banking sector and a lower revaluation loss contributed to a smaller loss compared to the

previous year.

In 2024, the Group's tax liability increased by HUF 5,961 million compared to the previous year. This is primarily due to
higher business and corporate tax induced by higher sales and profit before tax.

The Group's revenue growth rate exceeded that of costs, resulting in a further improvement in the cost-to-income ratio in 2024
(32.02%). The Group's return on equity was 24.52% in 2024.

(3.3) Events after the reporting date

The sole shareholder decided to pay a dividend of HUF 114,505 million aligned with the approval of the financial statements
and after the general reserve allocation. This amount consists of HUF 80,153 million forints to be paid out from current year's
after-tax profit and HUF 34,352 million to be distributed from retained earnings.

The final capital adequacy ratios considering the inclusion of current year's profit and dividends are CET115.92%, TIER118.64%,
total capital adequacy ratio 22.73%.

(4) Presentation of the business segment's
performance

(4.1) Corporate and Investment Banking business segment

The Group's corporate and investment banking business segment maintained its dominant role in the commercial banking
market in 2024, further increased its loan portfolio, and, with its 8-10% market share, is one of the leading market players in the
mid and large corporate segment, and it belongs to the leading banks in export finance and treasury services as well.
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The largest portion of the Group's green assets arise from its project financing and syndication activity, which is an important
pillar of the ESG strategy of the entire banking group. In line with this, in 2024 the majority of newly disbursed project loans are
green loans, both in the property and non-property categories.

The expansion of the loan portfolio was achieved with a conservative business policy and risk-taking. Overall, the loan portfolio
remained of excellent quality.

The Group's trade and export financing area tried to maintain its previous business activity despite a significant reduction in
the range of supported programs in 2024. In the case of the Széchenyi program, the elimination of crisis support titles and the
reduction of the maximum available limits negatively impacted lending. For Exim, the only available supported and refinanced
program was the HUF 200 billion BGH Plus program, announced in the first quarter of 2024 and fully utilized within the same
quarter. Although Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. managed to participate in both supported programs at a rate exceeding its market
share, this could not compensate for the amortization of the previous supported loan portfolio in 2024.

The agriculture sector faced several adverse effects in 2024. Firstly, for the second time in three years, significant drought
affected key crop-producing areas in the country, causing substantial yield losses and severely impacting crop quality (high
toxin levels). In livestock farming, avian influenza has been a persistent issue for years, and spring frosts continue to decimate
fruit yields annually. The only positive news in the agricultural sector was the launch of the "CAP ST. Il. Pillar" grant system in the
second half of 2024, which generated significant demand due to its highly favourable conditions (non-repayable grants,
interest subsidies, and guarantee fee subsidies). However, the evaluation of these applications is expected in the second and
third quarters of 2025, with financing opportunities becoming available during that period.

In 2024, the Group's documentary services area continued its successful operations, achieving a year-over-year revenue
increase of over 10%. This was accomplished despite the significant decline in the construction industry, which constitutes the
majority of documentary transactions. The decline was due to both a reduction in government orders and a noticeable
decrease in demand in the housing and office rental markets.

Important part of the Group's client service model is the financing of municipalities, entities owned by municipalities, non-profit
companies, associations, condominiums and other communities. It provides a full range of advanced financial services to its
clients and securely handles deposits placed with the Group. Services focus on managing clients' investments and providing
investment, development and project loans to municipalities, associations and condominiums. In the latter activities, ESG
aspects and sustainable financing come to the fore, so the Group strives to ensure that as much of the newly disbursed loans
as possible are green loans.

The Group supports the use of banking services for corporate and municipal clients through the continuous development of
digital channels. The role of the branch network and personal interactions has evolved, merging into a new "phygital" format. In
addition to the instant payment system, the Group supports clients with "QR code" and "Payment request" based payments, as
well as card acceptance solutions (POS and VPOS). The digital developments ensure efficient customer service and also
facilitate the use of ASP services by municipalities.

The financial institutions and custody segment had another successful year in 2024, similar to previous years, further
increasing its deposit and loan portfolios. Additionally, it was successful in expanding transaction volumes and products, with
particular emphasis on innovative cash management services. Despite increasing competition, the intensive growth of assets
under custody also continued.

The Group's cash, foreign exchange and capital market department - according to the statistics of the National Bank of
Hungary - once again made the largest foreign exchange volume among banks in Hungary in 2024 and also was the biggest
player in the derivative section of Budapest Stock Exchange. In the first half of 2024, the Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. was the second-
largest primary dealer of Hungarian government securities, while it secured the fourth position in the second half of the year.
Additionally, the Bank was once again awarded the title of Domestic Equity Trading Platform of the Year for its Raiffeisen
Online Broker service in 2024.

(4.2) Retail clients

The Retail Division also had a successful year in 2024: by the end of 2024, the number of retail individual (Mass) and Premium
banking customers exceeded the year-end 2023 figures by 2%; revenues increased despite unexpected tax changes, and
Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.'s NPS (Net Promoter Score) remained among the best among leading universal banks (annual NPS: 25).

The outstanding results were partly due to the improving economic environment (declining inflation, rising real wages) and
partly to the Group's internal business development activities. 2024 was a year of product innovation and optimization in retail
account products: in February, the Group introduced 2 new premium accounts, and in November, a new retail account (called
Active account), while suspending the sale of previous account products. The goal is to make the Group's account product
portfolio easy to understand and transparent for customers, and to increase synergy and interoperability between segments.
In the spirit of optimization, the Group is also continuing to simplify the bankcard offerings. The Group's acquisition goals were
greatly supported by the implementation of the online account opening function in the myRaiffeisen mobile application in
2024, which is becoming increasingly popular among the customers.
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The Group continued its digital developments across various platforms to provide customers with a modern, high-quality
customer experience in managing their everyday finances. Our digital strategy continues to focus on expanding the functions
of the myRaiffeisen mobile application and the range of online products. Thanks to these developments, the number of online
account openings and online product applications has significantly increased, and more services are available 24/7 in the
application. In 2024, the Group plays a leading role in introducing innovative payment solutions, such as implementing cash-in
ATMs in several branches and being the first in the market to introduce qvik payment acceptance. For sustainable
development, the Group has also made carbon footprint tracking available in the myRaiffeisen application.

Investor activity and appetite remained high among customers in 2024. There was strong interest and demand for investment
funds, and demand for government securities remained relatively stable despite changes in the market interest rate
environment. Interest in other savings options continued to stagnate among retail customers due to the low-interest
environment.

The division also continued its successful business activities in retail lending. Demand for retail mortgage loans increased
significantly, especially in the second half of the year. Demand for personal loans also grew significantly, exceeding
expectations, while the sale of baby loan remained balanced even after regulatory tightening at the beginning of the year. The
stabilization of macroeconomic conditions resulted in an interest rate level supportive of lending, further strengthened by the
increase in real wages.

In lending, a key objective is to meet customer needs where security and predictability are the main priorities. Another strategic
focus is digitalization, where most customers already used the fully online application process for personal loans, and even
more existing customers applied for overdrafts and credit cards online. The Group aims to make this application option
available for more products and a wider range of customers in the near future.

Overall, a key goal remains to continuously improve the customer experience in retail lending, with digitalization playing a
crucial role. The Group is confident that with further improvements in external conditions, lending will remain strong, further
supported by the new worker loan scheme starting in January 2025.

The Group's market share in retail loan portfolios did not change significantly, standing at 5.5% at the end of December 2024.

(4.3) Private Banking clients

The aim of Raiffeisen Private Banking is to preserve, increase and pass on the family wealth of high-net-worth clients from
generation to generation. With the expert work of experienced consultants, the Group provides its key clients with safety,
comfort, discretion and customised tailor-made solutions.

Raiffeisen Private Banking had an extremely successful year in 2024. Thanks to the honourable trust of its clients, the assets
entrusted to management reached HUF 1,295 billion by the end of the year, which represents an increase of nearly 30% in a
single year. In order to ensure effective and efficient service of the increased wealth, and maintain the brand promise, the
capacities have also been increased. The visible expansion of Private Banking continuously strengthens the Group's market
position.

Constitute and maintain the satisfaction of key private customers is inconceivable without personalized solutions and the
highest level of service. Accordingly, Raiffeisen Private Banking continued to invest significantly in 2024 in introducing new
products and services, as well as in developing the knowledge base of IT systems and banking advisors.

Recently, digitalization has received a special focus, as a result of which not only customers can manage their finances
smoothly and independently, but employees can also be available at access points far from their workplace. During 2024, there
was a strong focus on reducing administrative burdens, resulting in the Group significantly reduced paper consumption and
the number of signatures.

(4.4) Financial institutions

The financial institutions segment is of strategic priority for the Group, which continues to grow dynamically, thanks to its
comprehensive and unique customer service model, a wide range of products and continuous innovation.

The key target group of the business segment remains domestic insurance companies, investment fund managers, funds, as
well as domestic and international financial institutions and investment service providers, which are supported by new,
innovative solutions and products to serve their clients at a high level, fast and securely. In addition to the above, the domestic
and international banking relationships were in focus as well along with - considering the Group's strategy, furthermore
adhering to strict compliance principles - international payment service providers and Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.'s contracted
currency exchange brokers. Since 2021, the Group's financial institutions business segment has successfully effected the
professional coordination of payment service providers (PSPs) within the banking group and implemented the strategy for this
market segment.
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Assets in the financial institutions area continued to increase significantly throughout 2024, building on the high levels achieved
in previous years, while maintaining a moderate risk profile and a low capital requirement character. Despite market
turbulence and regulatory changes, deposits successfully expanded. In addition to interest income, the increase in fee and
commission income also contributed to the significant above-plan results. The business segment continues to be characterised
by a stable stock of liabilities and long-term, reliable customer relationships. The risk cost of the area is extremely moderate,
and its cost-to-income ratio has stabilized at a very low level.

With the support of strengthened group-wide management at its headquarters in Vienna and through the Vienna parent
bank’s direct relationships with central securities depositories in Central and Eastern Europe, the Group provides priority
custody services for the management of clients' investments directed to this region. In 2024, the Group's custody department
continued its successful operations, maintaining an intensive growth trend in both the number of domestic clients and the
assets under custody, despite the changing market and regulatory environment and increasing competition.

Clear positive feedback from both customers and the profession proves that the Group is one of the strongest brands in the
regional financial and capital markets, as well as in serving financial institutions and product innovations.

(4.5) Subsidiaries

Raiffeisen Corporate Lizing Zrt.

Since 2014, the Company, which is 100% Bank-owned, has been the unified entity within the Raiffeisen Leasing group for
providing financial leasing services exclusively to non-consumer clients, as well as special state-supported loan schemes for
financing the purchase of assets, vehicles, and equipment.

The Company has been a significant player in the medium and large corporate segment for years, primarily by serving the
leasing needs of banking clients. The passenger car and heavy commercial vehicle financing business is a key strategic focus.

The Company continued its previously initiated strategy in 2024, in which, in addition to leasing financing of vehicle and/or
asset investments of medium and large corporate customers, increasing emphasis is placed on boosting leasing services for
the micro and small enterprise segment. In addition to its own sales channels, special emphasis is placed on mobilizing the
Bank's medium and large corporate sales network and exploiting sales synergies related to common customers. The goal
remains to maintain the good quality of the portfolio , keep costs low through cost-effective operation, and establish and
maintain long-term profitable operation.

Raiffeisen Auté Lizing Kft.

The Company is 100% owned subsidiary of Raiffeisen Corporate Lizing Zrt.. The popularity of operating lease dropped
significantly due to the accounting method prescribed by IFRSs and due to the availability of finance leases with preferential
interest conditions (NHP, EXIM, KAVOSZ) and as a consequence of that a decrease occurred in the vehicle and asset financing
provided without fleet service. The strategy of the Company is the demand-based client servicing and individual management
of transactions and it does not put an emphasis on concluding new businesses in operating leasing arrangements.

Raiffeisen Biztositdskozvetit6 Kft.

The Bank was the sole owner until 30.06.2024, when it was terminated by legal succession following an ownership decision. The
Company's main activity was insurance brokerage, primarily for member companies of the Raiffeisen Bank Group.

At the beginning the main source of revenue of the Company stemmed from small and medium enterprise segment but later it
began to sell its insurance products also in large enterprise and leasing segment as well.

The Bank has started to operate as a dependent single agent effective from 1 April 2022. From this date, in addition to the
products transferred from the Company, the Bank will also manage the portfolio of insurance policies currently actively sold by
the Bank, and therefore the Bank will also realise the commission income related to these products.

The 2022 legislative change also allowed dependent single agents to maintaining stocks of competing products. With regards
to this, the Company has transferred its entire stock to the Bank with effect from 1 May 2023, from which date the Bank will
also realize the related commission income. From autumn 2023, insurance related to leasing products will also be sold through
the dependent single agent. These transformations had a significant impact on commission income. Thus, in October 2023, the
owner of the Company decided to merge its 100% share in Raiffeisen Biztositdskozvetitd Kft. into SCT Kdardsz utca Kft.

RB Szolgaltaté Kézpont Kft.

The Company was founded by the Bank in order to open and operate a banking operating center in Nyiregyhdza. Its activity
began as call center and sales activity and that extended to phone collection, credit assessment and banking operation
activities.
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The Company finances asset purchases necessary to its operation from investment loans, its financial situation and liquidity is
stable, its operation is profitable.

The number of the Company's employees increased to over 400 and remained above that level throughout 2023 and 2024. It
operates by improving its processes and further enhancing the quality of its service. In accordance with the Group's strategy, it
moved to a new headquarters in June 2022, allowing colleagues to perform their banking operations tasks in a more modern
working environment that better supports the processes.

RB Szolgdltato Kézpont Kft. ceased its activities on 31.12.2024 based on a decision of the owner. The entire staff and equipment
necessary for the performance of the activities were taken over and purchased by the owner Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. The Bank will
continue to carry out the previous activities of RB Szolgdltaté Kézpont Kft. at the same level starting on 1 January 2025.

Raiffeisen Befektetési Alapkezeld Zrt.

The Company is a 100% owned subsidiary of the Bank. The Company's assets under management grew at a strong pace in
2024, albeit at a slower pace than in previous years and the market average. In the first quarter of the period, assets under
management expanded steadily, but stagnated after March, due to the declining investor interest in short-term bond funds.
Investors' focus increasingly shifted to actively managed funds that change their portfolios quickly. June brought new
momentum in asset changes, partly as a result of the weakening of the forint, and partly due to the fact that demand for
mixed and equity funds, which were less popular in previous years, and for the aforementioned managed funds with an
absolute return target, was able to more than compensate for the outflow of assets from bond funds. The summer months
brought an even smaller slowdown, but the Company ended the year with an asset growth above the market average. In
addition to managed funds with a mixed and absolute return objective, assets managed in ESG funds also benefited from the
segment rotation that is otherwise typical at the sector level, while real estate base assets eroded further due to less
competitive performance. Another benefit of the year was the increased investor interest in funds and series not denominated
in forints.

The Company's operating profit developed favourably, in which, in addition to the rapid growth of revenues, also the controlled
costs played a role.

In recent years, the Company has revamped its product set to align with market challenges. The first step in this process was
the creation of three funds targeting different risk levels, equipped with active management and stringent risk control, in
collaboration with the Austrian asset manager of the Raiffeisen Group. Additionally, in recent years, euro- and dollar-
denominated series have been launched for the majority of the managed funds alongside the forint series. As a result of the
next step in the product set transformation, the Company now manages five ESG-focused funds, ensuring that clients can
choose between traditional and ESG products across all major asset classes. Furthermore, the Company successfully executed
a strategic shift in its absolute return funds, significantly increasing their popularity. The success of the Company is signalled
by its operations having been awarded with a number of prizes in the past years.

SCT Kdrdsz utca Kft.
It is a 100% owned subsidiary of the Bank. The activity of the Company is facility management.

Its business activities for 2022 and 2023 focused on the management and operation of the properties it owns, which is not
expected to change during the 2024 financial year.

Raiffeisen Ingatlan Uzemeltetd Kft.

It is a 100% owned subsidiary of Raiffeisen Befektetési Alapkezelé Zrt. The activity of the Company is facility management,
such as managing shopping centers, office buildings, industrial and commercial properties, banking branch offices.

It performed also in 2024, in the name of its largest client Raiffeisen Ingatlan Alap, complete financial and technical
management and renting-out activity.

(5) Corporate governance statement

Responsible corporate governance is a fundamental tool of the foremost goals of the Group, the precondition of long-term
value creation. The duty of corporate governance is to create an appropriate balance, operating order amongst owners, client,
employees, business partners and the wider public. The Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.full complies with relevant legislations and HNB's
instructions and recommendations. The Group's organisational setup and operating conditions are included in Article of
Association and in the Organisational and Operational Policy both accepted by the sole shareholder. The Group continuously
revises and improves its corporate governance practice
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(6) Financial instruments

The Group prepares its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of IFRS.

In accordance with the requirements of IFRSs and Accounting Law the Group shall from 2018 on - in accordance with IFRS9 -
classify its financial assets as measured at amortised cost, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, or
measured at fair value through profit or loss, based on

the Group's business model to manage the financial assets; and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost, if both of the below conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the below conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss, except when in accordance with the above it is
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group can at initial recognition irrevocably elect to present the subsequent changes in the fair value of certain equity
instruments, that otherwise would be measured at fair value through profit or loss, in other comprehensive income.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profit or loss if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
'accounting mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

The Group shall classify all financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost, except for those cases described in the
standards in detail, in which cases they shall be treated as financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The accounting policy of the Group and a number of disclosures requires the determination of fair value of financial assets and
liabilities. Fair value is determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the below methods.

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs (except for financial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss in which case transaction costs are charged directly to profit or loss).
The fair value is the price that the Group would receive in case of selling an asset or the Group would have to pay in case of
transferring a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Subsequent to initial recognition the basis of determining fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is the bid
price in case of assets and the ask price in case of liabilities. If observable price is not available, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques that rely on observable market data. The method may be comparison with similar instruments for which
there is an observable quoted market price, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
technigues commonly used by market participants. Fair value of financial instruments may be determined using techniques
based entirely or partly on assumptions that are not underpinned by actual market transactions or observable market data.

The Group designed the following methodology to determine fair value:
Derivative transactions:
Fair value of foreign currency forward and futures transactions is the difference between the forward exchange

rate, determined for the maturity of the transaction and prevailing at the valuation date, and the strike price,
discounted from date of maturity to valuation date.
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Fair value of cross currency swaps is the difference between the forward exchange rate, determined for the
maturity of the transaction and prevailing at the valuation date, and the strike price, discounted from date of
maturity to valuation date, calculated for the forward leg. Yield curves used for the purpose of the valuation
incorporate current market interest premium.

Fair value of interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements (FRA) is the net present value of the expected future
cash flows discounted to the valuation date.

Fair value of plain vanilla and exotic foreign currency options is determined using the modified Black-Scholes model.
In case of exotic options for which no closed formula exist, values are determined using iterative techniques.

Fair value of cross currency interest rate swaps is the net present value of the expected future cash flows of the
instrument discounted to the valuation date, where we incorporate into the yield curve used for the purpose of the
valuation the interest rate premium (basis swap spread) representative to the market of those instruments (also
including country risk premium).

Fair value of stock and index futures is determined based on the difference of the quoted price and the strike price.
Securities:

Fair value of securities measured at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through other comprehensive income is
determined using market prices available in Bloomberg information system. It is the stock exchange closing price in case of
securities where it is available. In case of securities where stock exchange price is not available, the fair value is the net present
value of the expected future cash flows of the security discounted to the valuation date.

Loans:

Loans are basically measured at amortised cost which equals the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance
recorded.

To hedge the fair value changes of certain loans with fixed interest rate the Group entered into interest rate swaps. Such loans
hedged with IRS transactions are measured in the financial statements at amortised cost adjusted for fair value changes
attributable to the hedged risk.

Deposits:

The Group measures its deposits at amortised cost. Certain structured deposits contain embedded derivatives which are
separated from the deposits. The Group measures the embedded derivatives at fair values with its changes recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group involves certain deposits with fixed interest rate in hedge accounting. The fair value of those deposits is determined
by calculating the net present value of expected future cash flows discounted to the reporting date.

Bonds issued:

Non-structured self-issued bonds are measured at amortised cost and thus they are not revalued, except for bonds involved in
hedge accounting. In such cases only interest rate risk is hedged not credit risk.

Fair value of hedge-accounted issued bonds with fixed interest rate is the present value of future cash flows, whereas in case
of structured instruments the Group values the embedded derivative which is separated from the host contract.

Hedge accounting

The Group designated certain derivative instruments held for risk management purposes as hedging instruments designated
in hedge accounting. At inception of the hedge the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument(s) and the hedged item(s), the risk management objectives and hedging strategy followed by entering into the
transaction and the method used for measuring hedge effectiveness. The Group evaluates at inception of the hedging
relationship and continuously thereafter whether the hedging instrument will be highly effective in offsetting the fair value
changes of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk over the entire term of the hedging instrument and whether the
actual results fall within the 80-125 percent range.
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(7) Basic principles of risk management and hedging
policy

The Group operates an independent, from business functions entirely separated risk management under the supervision of
deputy CEO responsible for risk management. The credit risk assessment and management of clients is a task assigned to the
Credit Risk Department and Retail and SME Risk Management Department, the analysis of market, operational and fraud risks
and compliance with Basel Il regulations, capital adequacy calculations, developing credit risk models at the portfolio level is
the task assigned to Integrated Credit Risk Department.

(7.1) Credit Risk Management

Risk and credit assessment of non-retail clients is based on individual analysis and rating, typically with quarterly financial
monitoring and yearly limit review. In retail and micro enterprise financing there is an automated scorecard-based assessment.

Constraints of financing are represented by the desired balance of business and risk factors as determined by the owner and
the management of the Group, the act on financial institutions and other legislations and the framework defined by the
Group's Credit Policy.

The economic crisis due to coronavirus pandemic did not cause in 2021 a systematic and mass increase in the balance of non-
performing loans, only a few clients became non-performing, amongst them some with relatively higher exposure. Thus, non-
performing rate for corporates was about 2% in 2021, for retail it stabilised at about 5%, remaining below the mid-term
strategic plan. This healthy level was also facilitated by measures for clearance of non-performing portfolio continuing in 2021
along with the application of standard workout methods. In 2022, the Group still did not experience any systematic portfolio
deterioration in the corporate segment, the NPE ratio remained at the previous low level, moreover further decreased in the
retail segment to a level of around 4%, while in case of the entire banking portfolio, also taking into account credit risk bearing
banking book securities, it was only 1.9%.

This stable/slightly positive trend has been maintained in the first half of 2023, with no meaningful inflows into the non-
performing portfolio and individual sporadic cases are counterbalanced by recoveries and returns, with the NPE ratio across
the entire bank portfolio, taking into account credit risk bearing banking book securities, declining to 1.7% by the end of 2023

In 2024, the Group's non-performing loan portfolio increased slightly (by approximately HUF 2.4 billion), however, one of the
main drivers of this additions was the exchange rate change impact of non-performing corporate loans denominated in
foreign currency, in the amount of approximately +HUF 1.8 billion. The change in non-performing loans net of exchange rate
changes is negligible overall. In segment view, the decrease of recent years continued in the retail segment, while in the
corporate segment the newly recognized non-performing status of three corporate groups caused a noticeable increase. No
relevant systematic deterioration is noticeable in any segment. The problematic exposure management and collection efforts
also yielded significant results in 2024, significantly offsetting the emergence of new defaults. The ratio of non-performing
loans at bank level continued to decrease, to 1.3%.

Nevertheless, current low default probabilities are expected to rise in the future. This is mainly due to the deterioration of the
business environment, supply chain problems, energy crisis, the high inflation environment, the narrowing of the demand and
investment side and negative developments in the real estate market, therefore the Group has carried out strengthened and
intensive monitoring activities related to these dimensions since October 2021 supplemented with portfolio stress testing. The
Group pays particular attention to analysing the expected direct and indirect impacts of increased geopolitical risks.

In retail segment, the portfolio remains stable with low default rates, however the Group is prepared to manage the risks
mainly arising from persistent inflation, changes in the interest rate environment and the slow economic recovery.

Payment moratorium: Participation in the payment moratorium, in accordance with the relevant guidance of EBA, did not
automatically trigger default and payment difficulty in 2020 and thus the Group pays particular attention to identifying
debtors presumably facing payment difficulties also during the term of the moratorium. In relation to clients opting in to
moratorium 2 starting in 2021, then 3 and 4 and in relation to clients opting-in to agricultural moratorium in the second half of
2022, the Group made in case of corporates an extraordinary individual risk review to recognise worsening risk profiles and to
determine defaults and eventually necessary restructuring. As a result of the assessments, it identified a few new restructured
portfolios with a relatively low exposure. The small portfolio that still participated in the moratorium 4 will resume its
repayments in accordance with the relevant new loan schedule at the end of 2023. The Group assessed clients entering into
moratorium 2 also in the retail segment. Clients in case of whom the Group identified financial difficulties, were reclassified to
non-performing status. If the client had no financial difficulties but has been in moratorium for more than 9 months, was
reclassified to Stage 2 and there is a close monitoring in place regarding the problems and financial difficulties of clients opting
out of moratorium 2. The Group repeated the procedures for assessing clients' financial situation at the start of moratorium 3
and 4 and in justified cases, if information about the clients’ deteriorated financial situation became known since then, it
reclassified them to default, i.e, to Stage 3.
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The payment moratorium ended at the end of 2023, but this did not result in a noticeable deterioration in the credit quality of
the portfolio either in 2023, nor in 2024. The Group will monitor and cure the transactions identified as forborne or non-
performing during the credit moratorium period in accordance with the normal recovery rules, provided that the relevant
preconditions are met.

The risk management procedures of the Group operate in accordance with the requirements of Basel Ill and IFRS9. Base data
necessary to sophisticatedly measure risks are contained in structured form in a modern data warehouse. From 2012 the
capital requirement of the whole banking portfolio (corporate, retail and SME) is quantified using the advanced, internal rating
based (IRB) methodology. During 2017 the municipality portfolio was returned to the standard methodology. The Group started
the same transformation in 2018 regarding financing the top segment of individuals which was completed in the last quarter
of 2019.

Capital requirement of baby loans, private banking and employee loans, as well as in retail segment the capital requirement of
products in crisis guarantee schemes related microsegment is calculated using the standard methodology.

Measuring and reporting risks is performed on a monthly and quarterly basis in compliance with the Group's and regulator’s
requirements. The Group uses the results of risk models widely in pricing, in determining credit decisions and strategic
directions, thereby ensuring long-term capital adequacy, building up an profitable portfolio that is stable also in respect of
risks and the efficient usage of capital available.

The Group reacted also in its credit policy to the changes caused by coronavirus and the changes caused by the following
energy crisis, rising inflation and interest rate environment: in judging riskiness of industries, besides higher granularity, the
volume/probability of short-term effects and expected mid-term prospect also plays a particular role. Financing activity
targets industries with better conditions and clients with stronger resilience, whereas the more vulnerable part of the portfolio
requires a more cautious approach. In respect of the latter the Group acted with particular care also during determining
impairment and besides revisions of parameters and macro variables of the impairment models carried out taking a
conservative approach, it recognised additional impairment if necessary. In 2024, the most important risks covered by the
additional provisioning model on the corporate side are: real estate market yield risks, refinancing risk induced by the high
interest rate environment, inflation, supply chain squeeze, labour market difficulties and, as a new element, changes in
environmental impacts as additional risk factors. The Group continuously revises and if justified adjusts the adequate level of
related reserves.

During 2023, the Group developed its methodology for assessing sustainability-related transition risks, primarily environmental
risks, as part of the corporate lending process, which are applied to its corporate portfolio from the first quarter of 2024.

In the retails segment, the measurement of climate change and physical risks related to extreme climate events, as well as the
quantification of the negative effects to mortgage collateral exposed to them, have been developed by the Group and
incorporated into the impairment calculation during 2023.

In the retail segment in March 2020 the Group identified increased risks based on the industry classification of the client's
employer, building categories of high/medium/low risk based on expected economic downturn and in November 2020 decided
to apply portfolio level management adjustments, so-called overlays to appropriately represent also these risks in impairment
calculation. Furthermore, it recognised additional impairment losses on the riskiest clients participating in the moratorium,
which was revised at each extension of the moratorium. At the end of June 2023, the management corrections affecting the
moratorium were phased out 6 months after the end of the general payment moratorium, as the transactions concerned will
be evaluated in normal monitoring processes and are again subject to days past due calculations, thus not carrying additional
risks. During 2021 and 2022, the Group fully examined changes in the income situation of customers in order to anticipate
potential problems. Due to the impact of energy market risks and increasing liquidity and profitability difficulties, the Group
made portfolio-level management adjustments in both the micro and small enterprise segments several times during 2022. In
2023 it continued to closely monitor the transactions concerned but did not see any reason to phase out the adjustments as a
consequence of persistent inflationary pressures and the economic downturn. As a result of monitoring, the scope of
transactions concerned was redefined and expanded with sole entrepreneurs financed in the retail segment and companies
operating in risky industries and their employees. In 2024, due to the slow but rising unemployment rate and a significantly
slower than expected recovery of economic growth in Hungary, the Group has maintained management overlays for the most
credit risk-sensitive customer groups, which have been fine-tuned to reflect the results of ongoing customer monitoring, due to
risks not covered by the model.

(7.2) Operational Risk Management

All organisational units participate actively in managing and as necessary decreasing the level of operational risk (department,
region, subsidiary). The Group makes significant efforts to improve the risk management organisation and increase risk
awareness, which includes identifying, collecting, assessing, reporting, monitoring and also managing operational risks
threatening to achieve the Group's business goals. The main tools used to identify risks are collection of loss data, risk
indicators, scenario analyses and risk self-assessments. In course of this work the root causes of all identified operational risk
events are explored and used up in decisions on process improvements.
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In order to further strengthen the operational risk management activity, the Group implemented those standards that comply
with the requirements imposed by the advanced measurement method.

The Group continues to efficiently operate the operational risk framework AMA (Advanced Measurement Approach) introduced
in 2016.

(7.3) Market and Liquidity Risk Management

Market and liquidity risk is managed within the Group at a number of levels using advanced methods and infrastructure,
monitoring is performed independently of business functions. Measuring and reporting risks is done on a daily/weekly/monthly
and quarterly basis in compliance with the requirements of the Group and the regulator. Grouping, measuring, managing of
risks and building economic capital is done in the framework of the Group's ICAAP processes.

Measuring and controlling the risks is effected through complex risk, position, stop loss and VaRr limit systems, the methodology
of which'is in accordance with the requirements of the parent bank and the regulator. Management of market and liquidity
risks related to banking activity covers the following areas: trading book and banking book interest rate risk; the Group's
liquidity risk also from going concern and stress point of view; the risk arising from illiquidity of market positions; share price
risk, foreign currency risk, risk inherent in option trading, counterparty risk of OTC derivative transactions. In addition to that,
this function of the Group ensures the independent pricing of various financial instruments in accordance with regulation
required by the parent bank and by IFRS 9. In addition to this, Market Risk function is responsible for controlling the market-
conformity of capital and money market transactions.

(7.4) Fraud Risk Management

Fraud risk is a dominant element of operational risks. The areas of the Group responsible for managing and handling fraud risk
pay special attention to all fraud incidents and continuously monitor and evaluate fraud trends. The insights gained from these
activities are consistently integrated into the core or monitoring processes. Group.

(8) Environmental protection

In 2024, the Group successfully conducted the annual surveillance audit of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. Environmental Management
System operated according to the ISO 14001:2015 standard, as well as the Energy Management System according to the ISO
50001:2018 standard.

As part of the branch network re-design program, the renewal of mechanical and lighting systems to increase energy
efficiency (LED implementation) continued throughout 2024, with significant energy investments made at a total of 12
locations.

Following the first full year of operation of the solar power plant (HMKE) at the RBSC building in Nyiregyhdza, actual production
and usage data show that the system provided 23% of the total electricity demand. This locally generated electricity
prevented the emission of approximately 29.29 tons of CO2 equivalent greenhouse gases into the environment in 2024. The
implementation of solar systems at branches will continue in 2025.

The "greening" of the Group's vehicle fleet did not stop in 2024. Utilizing the "RRF-10.10.1-24 Support for the acquisition of road
electric vehicles for businesses" grant, Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. commissioned a total of 16 Hyundai Kona EV vehicles. To reduce
operating costs, the Group also ensured the establishment of charging facilities for the cars. A total of 13 AC devices with a
maximum charging capacity of 11 kW were installed at eight locations in the country (Debrecen, G6dollé, Nyiregyhdza (2
locations), Kecskemét, Miskolc, Pécs, and Szeged). At the end of January 2025, another 9 EV chargers will be put into operation
at the AGORA headquarters.

(9) Sustainability

Our planet, the biodiversity and the quality of our life is largely impacted by the natural factors making up the biological
system. The business activity of the financial sector has a significant impact on the environment and on society. However, this
is a two-way relationship, the finance sector itself is also affected by environmental and social factors. The two most
significant environmental effects of these times are climate change and biodiversity loss.

Our planet, the biodiversity and the quality of our life is largely impacted by the natural factors making up the biological
system. The business activity of the financial sector has a significant impact on the environment and on society. However, this
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is a two-way relationship, the finance sector itself is also affected by environmental and social factors. The two most
significant environmental effects of these times are climate change and biodiversity loss.

In terms of defining environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks, the Group follows EBA's position and take on a prudential
view when it comes to ESG, elaborating on the risks related to it, i.e. 'ESG risks materialize when the ESG factors affecting
institutions' counterparties have a negative impact on the financial performance or solvency of such market players'. As ESG

refers to environmental, social and governance aspects, the Group identifies the following risks from these aspects. The
detailed information about ESG related topics is disclosed in the separate and consolidated non-financial statement.

Key considerations of ESG risks

Environmental risks

Environmental risks are driven by environmental factors. They should be understood as the financial risks posed by the

institutions' exposures to counterparties that may both potentially contribute to or be affected by climate change and other

forms of environmental degradation (such as air pollution, water pollution, scarcity of fresh water, land contamination,

biodiversity loss and deforestation).

The Group identifies environmental risks as a result of the following factors:
Transition-related risks: regulatory, technological and market changes that generate changes in the lending and
other risks arising in the course of banking activities related to climate change, environmental pollution and water
ecological processes.
Physical risks: acute or chronic environmental events related to climate change, environmental pollution and aquatic
ecological processes that directly endanger the physical integrity and security of assets and/or customers financed
in the course of banking activities, thereby affecting their operability, income-generating capacity and value, as well
as the security of supply chains. Acute physical risks include: floods, storms, droughts, forest fires. Chronic physical
risks include: desertification, sea level rise, air and water quality, permanent deterioration of water volumes, and
persistent increase in temperature.

Social risks

Social risks arise from financial impact generated by misuse of human capital such the rights, well-being and interests of
people and communities.

Governance risks

Governance risks refer to the governance practice of the institutions’ counterparties, including the inclusion of ESG factors in
policies and procedures under the governance of the counterparties.

These risks affect:

the value of the companies' assets, business model, income-generating capacity, supply chains, investable resources,
regulatory environment;

household income, expenditure, and the value of their assets;

and at the macroeconomic level, the value of capital assets, investment needs, productivity and competitiveness
levels, consumer preferences, and the related operation of public finances, interest rates and exchange rates.

These changes may be reflected in the Group's operations as follows:
credit risk: increased defaults, depreciation of collateral;
market risk: unexpected changes in asset price movements that are difficult to predict;
operational risk: vulnerabilities in supply chains, physical operational risks;
liquidity risk: increased liquidity needs, refinancing risk;
reputational risks: reputational damage due to inadequate management of the above, risks of being painted ‘green’.

Risk framework

The Group takes these risks into account in its risk frameworks over different time horizons as follows:
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Short term
Individual risks

The Group implicitly takes into account the mentioned risks in the corporate customer base during the annual review and
credit approval process. In 2023, a modification of the lending process was introduced, in the course of which the Group

explicitly analyses the environmental assessment of the customer and the loan objective on the business side (ESG expert
opinion') and presents the identifiable environmental risk profile (ESG risk assessment') as a separate part of the risk manager's
position on the risk side.

The Group conducts an increasing number of surveys to its customers in order to obtain access to their sustainability data (in
the form of an electronic questionnaire). In the survey, in addition to estimated and factual data related to GHG emissions, the
Group collects data on water and land use; waste production and environmental pollution characteristics. In addition to short-
term consideration, these data also serve as input for the assessment of medium-term (ESG score) and long-term (climate
scenarios). The Group has taken note of the National Bank of Hungary's recommendation for a customer questionnaire in this
regard and will supplement its own questions with the minimum set of questions recommended, in the future, keeping in mind
the deadlines set.

The Group is making efforts to obtain energy performance data for collaterals. Where the legal environment allows, it is a
mandatory condition to provide the related certificates in the case of new funding, and in the case of existing funding and/or
in the absence of a legal obligation, data collection is carried out on a ‘best effort’ basis within targeted campaigns.

The Group has implemented sector-wide lending policies to define sustainability financing conditions. By the end of 2024, it has
established clear lending policies in the following sectors: tobacco, coal, renewable energy, oil and gas; steel, nuclear energy,
real estate and construction and related raw materials.

Portfolio risks

With the help of scientific methodologies (PCAFs) and estimates, measurements were made regarding the financed GHG
intensity of the corporate customer base, which is published in the separate and consolidated non-financial statement for
2024 as the first time, section 'E1-6: Gross scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions'.

For the corporate segment the additional risk arising from ESG factors was considered using the Special Risk Factors (SRF)
Framework, primarily to account for unmodelled macroeconomic effects but also to cover environmental risks as a temporary
compensations of the model weaknesses. More details are disclosed under note (6.2) Credit risk.

Mid-term
Individual risks

In 2022, the Group introduced an ESG scoring system to assess customers in a standardized way from the environmental
perspective. The model was developed by the parent company (RBI), and its use is uniform for the medium-sized and large
corporate customers. The ESG score has no direct impact on the client's credit rating. The ESG model is based on an industry
base score, supplemented by an additional carbon dioxide emission factor. It is possible to deviate the industry average score
in this way in a positive or negative direction along individual customer specifics. During scoring, the risk analyst evaluates a
number of aspects based on the client's report, data reporting and disclosures, which, supplemented with the data of the
above-mentioned electronic questionnaire (where available), determines a final client score within the industry score limits. The
ESG score can provide guidance on the calibration of customers' expected environmental risks in the medium term, and as
such, it serves as input information for the above-mentioned sustainability assessments related to the lending process.

Portfolio risks

Based on the ESG Score mentioned above, the Group plans to introduce portfolio management tools in the future (sub-
portfolio level measurements, targets and limits), which will be broken down to a local level based on the parent company's
group-level limit management. In 2025, it is expected to introduce a monitoring process for the change in the average ESG
Score of the portfolio above 10%, as well as for the maximum amount of the part of the portfolio with the worst ESG Score.
Regarding the Group's ambitions towards the 2015 Paris Agreement climate targets, the Group committed to reducing its
financed GHG emissions by 17% by the end of 2030, based on the level measured at the end of 2023. The objective for the
corporate client portfolio has been formulated as an overarching target and was approved by the Board of Directors. In the
coming years, this effort is expected to be further developed and detailed sector-specific goals may be developed.

Long-term

Portfolio risks
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A long-term Climate Stress Test has been prepared at the level of the RBI Group and its subsidiaries, taking into account the
above-mentioned customer and collateral sustainability data, along the scenarios defined by the EBA. The Group's results have
been completed by the end of 2024, which examined the long-term impact of climate risks on the Group's profitability and
capital adequacy in each scenario. The results show that the Group is not exposed to significant risk overall over the
2030-40-50 time horizon, but there are portfolios that are more vulnerable under certain scenarios.

Reference to the non-financial disclosure

During the reporting period, it was determined that there are no financially material risks from climate change to the regular
risk parameters (market risk, credit risk, operational risk, and liquidity risk). The effects of climate change are only observed
through scenario analyses over longer periods. The effects from climate risks are incorporated into risk measurement and
limitation. Further information on the nature, extent and mitigation of climate change risk are available in the separate and
consolidated non-financial statement's chapter IRO-1: 'Process to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities'.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments

In the double materiality analysis for the separate and consolidated non-financial statement in 2024, the financial materiality
of sustainability matters was considered in the short, medium, and long-term. In the short term, defined as the reporting
period of the consolidated financial statements, it was assessed that there were no financially material risks from
sustainability matters. As a result, the consolidated financial statements do not include any separate disclosure on
sustainability related uncertainties that materially affect the estimation assumptions. In the long term, which is considered as
ten years onwards, there is also a low chance of a material impact on the credit risk of our customer portfolio due to climate
change transition risk. For more details, please see the separate and consolidated non-financial statement's chapter IRO-1:
'Process to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities'.

(10) Employment policy

The Group is one of the leading employers in the financial sector: at 2024 the average statistical number was 3,084. It is
especially important for the Group to carry out its activities as a fair and correct employer, on the one hand fully considering
and complying with the prescriptions of the Hungarian Labour Code, on the other hand ensuring favourable work and career
opportunities and continuous professional development and development as a leader to its employees.

Recruitment and selection is done centrally, in course of the activity of HR, paying attention to the core principles of inclusive
culture and taking care that diversity be a part of the daily selection practice. The Group's selection practice is focused on
trained and qualified workforce, however at the same time it provides an opportunity also to graduates for intensive
professional development.

The Group pays attention to and strives for ensuring for its employees fair and competitive income compared to Hungarian
labour market. Fringe benefits, within the framework of Cafeteria system, provide a choice for the colleagues to select from a
wide range of benefit most fitting their personal needs.

All employees are covered by the performance development process operated by the Group, which provides a framework for
clear goal setting, constructive feedback and well-grounded performance evaluations. Performance-dependent financial and
moral rewards incentivise the colleagues to achieve outstanding performance.

The Group has a complex training and development activity, which is focused, besides developing professional knowledge and
skills, on programmes to improve personal, managerial, language and IT skills. At the end of the year, the Group's employees
spent an average of 5.61days on training and development events and programs, without e-learning 1.07 days. The continuous
development of employees' digital skills has a major role in the training and development portfolio, that is supported with the
annual Digital Learning Week event starting from 2021 together with the numerous professional trainings. The Group supports
the colleagues in successful and effective coping with everyday performance challenges and stress situations with community
building and employee well-being programmes.

The Group operates a comprehensive and conscious succession planning practice, the goal of which on the one hand is the
retention of managers and employees working in key professional roles, on the other hand the succession planning and
development.

Workplace Council operates within the organisational framework of the Group, ensuring consideration of employee interests.
With the introduction of the flexible working framework in 2020, the Group organised, except for the critical business areas, the

employees' working from home, which, subsequent to the pandemic, as a new standard will remain an integral part of the
operation and will continue to be operated in a framework and construction based on the field of work.
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(11) Compliance activity

In accordance with the regulations and the requirements of NBH the Group operates for exploring and managing compliance
risks — as part of the internal defence lines - an independent organizational unit who performs the following functions:

Controlling the compliance with ethical rules, issuing guidance on related questions, performing investigations of
notices

Ensuring compliance with regulations on conflicts of interest and the control of that

Organizing and operating anti-corruption measures within the group

Maintaining the internal loan register

FATCA/CRS monitoring and reporting

Fighting against money-laundering and financing international terrorism, as well as organizing, governing and
coordinating the compliance with international sanctioning measures within the group, operating relating
monitoring system; operating a notification and control system, licison with the competent authority.

Ensuring and controlling the compliance with regulations regarding segregation of financing and investment
services, restricting the flow of information, prohibition of insider trading and market manipulation and employee

trading, and liaison with the competent authority.

Ensuring and controlling compliance with regulations on investment related services (e.g. Bszt.), performing
defensive task related to client assets.

The organizational location of the compliance function and its scope of activities are in all respects in accordance with
relevant regulations, with HNB guideline on the system of lines of defence and the underlying EBA (GL2021/005) guideline.

(12) Research and development

The Group performs R+D activity during application development related to financial services, as well as in the implementation
of business and risk management modelling.

(13) Fees charged by the auditor

The following net fees were charged in 2024 and 2023by Deloitte Kénywvizsgald és Tandcsadd Kft. and by Deloitte Uzletviteli és
Vezetési Tandcsaadod Zrt.:

(HUF million) 2024 2023
Audit of financial statements 230 236
Other assurance services 68 50
Total 298 286
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(14) Branch network

The Group serves its clients through branches located at the following addresses as at 31.12.2024

1015 Budapest, Széna tér 1/a.
1024 Budapest, Lovéhdz u. 2-6.
1037 Budapest, Szépvolgyi Ut 41.
1051 Budapest, Vorosmarty tér 4.
1061 Budapest, Andrdssy Ut 1.
1066 Budapest, Teréz krt. 12.
1085 Budapest, Ull&i it 39-43.
1106 Budapest, Ors vezér tere 25.
1115 Budapest, Etele Ut 68.

1123 Budapest, Alkotds utca 53.
1133 Budapest, Vdci Ut 116-118.
1148 Budapest, Ors vezér tere 24.

173 Budapest, Ferihegyi Ut 74.

1203 Budapest, Kossuth Lajos utca 21-29.

2030 Erd, Budai 0t 22.

2100 G&ddlls, Gabor Aron u. 5.
2400 Dunadjvaros, Vasmd Ut 39.
2600 Véc, Széchenyi u. 28-32.
2900 Komdrom, Mdrtirok Utja 14.
3300 Eger, Jokai Mor utca 5.
3527 Miskolc, Bajcsy Zs.u. 2-4.
4026 Debrecen, Péterfia utca 18.
4400 Nyiregyhdza, Kossuth tér 7.
5600 Békéscsaba, Andrdssy Ut 19.
6200 Kiskéros, Petdfi S. tér 8.

6500 Baja, Dézsa Gyorgy Ut 12.

6722 Szeged, Kossuth Lajos sugdrat 9-13.

7100 Szekszdrd, Széchenyi utca 37-39.
7621 Pécs, Bajcsy Zs. u. 1.

8000 Székesfehérvar, Palotai Ut 1.

8200 Veszprém, Mindszenty Jozsef u. 2.
8400 Ajka, Szabadsdg tér 4.

8800 Nagykanizsa, Dedk tér 11-12.

9022 Gyér, Arany Janos utca 28-32.
9200 Mosonmagyarovdr Fé u. 26.

9431 Fertdd, F& u. 12.

1023 Budapest, Bécsi Ut 27.

1036 Budapest, Bécsi Ut 136.

1045 Budapest, Arpdd Ut 183-185.
1055 Budapest, Szent Istvdn korut 27.
1062 Budapest, Vdéci Ut 1-3.

1072 Budapest, R&koczi Ut 44.

1087 Budapest, Kerepesi Ut 9.

1114 Budapest, Bocskai Ut 1.

117 Budapest, Hunyadi Janos Ut 19.
1123 Budapest, Alkotds utca 55-61.
1139 Budapest, Vdci Ut 81.

152 Budapest, Szentmihalyi ut 137.
1181 Budapest, Ull&i Gt 417.

121 Budapest, Kossuth Lajos u. 85.
2040 Budadrs, Templom tér 22.

2310 Szigetszentmiklos, Vak Bottydn u. 18.
2500 Esztergom, Kossuth Lajos u. 14.
2800 Tatabdnya, F6 tér 20.

3200 Gyodngyos, Fé tér 12.

3525 Miskolc, Erzsébet tér 2.

4024 Debrecen, Piac u. 18.

4400 Nyiregyhdza, Kordnyi Frigyes u. 5.
5000 Szolnok, Szapdry Ut 22.

6000 Kecskemét, Kisfaludy u. 5.

6500 Baja, Dézsa Gyoérgy ut 12.

6720 Szeged, Széchenyi tér 3.

6800 Hodmezévasdarhely, Kossuth tér 6.
7400 Kaposvar, Berzsenyi utca 1-3.
7621 Pécs, Irgalmasok Utja 5.

8000 Székesfehérvar, Tavirda utca 1.
8360 Keszthely, Széchenyi utca 1-3.
8500 Pdpa, F6 tér 15.

8900 Zalaegerszeg, Kossuth u. 21-23.
9024 Gydr, Vasvari P. Gt 1/a.

9400 Sopron, Széchenyi tér 14-15.

9700 Szombathely, F& tér 36.
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(15) Key financial indicators

Consolidated business report

(HUF million or %) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Key profitability and efficiency ratios

Number of branches 73 73
Net interest income 186,981 200,656
Net fee and commission income 94,384 81,520

Operating expenses 87,641 81,486

Cost to income ratio (without transaction fee and taxes) 32.02% 30.72%
Provisioning 13,277 986

Profit for the year 115,952 103,259

Return on equity after tax (ROE) 24.52% 25.26%
Return on assets after tax (ROI) 251% 2.33%
Net interest margin 4.20% 4.66%
Provisioning ratio -0.69% -0.05%
Total assets 4,615,256 4,432,055

Gross carrying amount of loans and advances to clients 1,928,211 1,830,052

Deposits from customers 3,183,599 2,986,372

Loan to deposit ratio 60.57% 61.30%
Deposits from banks 468,698 504,981

Key risk ratios

Impairment related to loans and advances to clients 56,183 66,516

NPL exposure 56,737 57184

NPL ratio 2.94% 312%
NPL coverage ratio 99.02% 16.32%
Provisioning ratio -0.69% -0.05%
Total capital specific key ratios

Common equity tier 1 capital (CET1) 389,379 371164

Additional tier 1 capital (AT1) 46,979 46,979

Tier 2 Capital 70,724 66,175

Total regulatory capital 507,082 484,317

Risk-weighted asset 1,727,082 1,746,597

CET 1 capital ratio 22.55% 21.25%
Tier 1 capital ratio 25.27% 23.94%
Total capital ratio 29.36% 27.73%
Leverage ratio 6.79% 6.32%
Liquidity risk specific key ratio

Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) 176.60% 188.90%
LCR High Quality Liquid Assets 1,872,500 1,753,038

LCR Net Outflows 1,060,075 928,065

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) 145.39% 145.58%
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Consolidated non-financial statement 1

General information

Basis of preparation

BP-1: General basis for preparation of non-financial statement

In preparing this non-financial statement (‘Non-financial statement’ or 'Sustainability statement’), Raiffeisen Group. (RBHU
Group' or ‘Group’ or 'Bank') acknowledges certain inherent limitations due to the initial reporting under the Corporate
Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD). Consequently, comparisons over time may be constrained as frameworks for
sustainability reporting are continuously evolving. The data collection processes and methodologies for certain sustainability
metrics are still being refined. As such, some data points may be subject to estimation and may not capture all aspects of
performance accurately. Any future changes in structure or operations may impact the reported sustainability metrics. The
sustainability impacts reported herein are influenced by external factors such as regulatory changes, market conditions, and
technological advancements, which may affect the outcomes of our/RBHU Group's sustainability initiatives.

We are committed to continuously improving our sustainability reporting processes and addressing these limitations in future
reports to provide more comprehensive and reliable information to our stakeholders.

Section 134/J (1) of the Accounting Act stipulates that RBHU Group must prepare its consolidated business report in the
electronic reporting format (XHTML) as specified in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815 (ESEF Regulation).
Additionally, the sustainability statements defined by the ESEF taxonomy in the consolidated sustainability statement are
required to be marked up using the XBRL markup language, including the disclosures mandated by Article 8 of Regulation (EU)
2020/852. However, given that the ESEF taxonomy for sustainability statements has not yet been adopted, the Consolidated
sustainability statement does not contain XBRL markups due to the absence of the relevant legislation.

The non-financial statement provides information on Raiffeisen Group. sustainability agendas and activities for the 2024
reporting period. This chapter represents the Bank's summarized and consolidated sustainability statement according to
Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 December 2022 amending Regulation (EU) No
537/2014, Directive 2004/109/EC, Directive 2006/43/EC and Directive 2013/34/EU, as regards corporate sustainability reporting,
OJ L 322,16.12.2022, p. 15-80. (the 'Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive’ or ‘CSRD") and local law (pursuant to sections
95/D-95/1 of the Hungarian Act C of 2000 on Accounting).

The non-financial statement for 2024 is not published as a stand-alone report, but it is included as part of the 2024 annual
financial report in a separate chapter of the management report. In the management report, RBHU Group describes the direct
and indirect economic, environmental, and social impacts of business activities for the year 2024, which were identified as
material based on the double materiality assessment in accordance with the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2772
of 31 July 2023 supplementing Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards sustainability
reporting standards, OJ L, 2023/2772, 22.12.2023 (the 'European Sustainability Reporting Standards or ESRS') In line with the
requirements in ESRS 1, RBHU Group has included the prescribed disclosures pursuant to the EU Taxonomy Regulation (Article 8
of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 and the accompanying delegated acts) as separately identifiable sections in this non-financial
statement.

Based on RBHU Group's double materiality assessment, the 2024 consolidated non-financial statement is organized according
to the ESRS disclosure framework. In terms of content, RBHU Group reports on its sustainability Strategy, the related impacts,
financial risks, opportunities and how it manages them, as well as considerations of stakeholders' views. The reported key
figures relate to RBHU Group as a whole. The consolidated non-financial statement addresses all RBHU Group's stakeholders.

The consolidated non-financial statement is published annually, and for the year 2024, it was released on 27 March 2025.
Deloitte Audit and Consulting Ltd. independently audited the consolidated non-financial statement with limited assurance for
the reporting year 2024. The option of excluding certain information relating to intellectual property, know-how, or the results
of innovations relating to disclosure has not been utilized in this sustainability statement.

The legal norms and recommendations indicated in this report do not necessarily constitute the full regulatory framework
applicable to the Bank; therefore, the Group disclaims any responsibility for its completeness. The referred regulations are

provided solely to assist with the interpretation of the text.

The permitted option of omitting the disclosure of impending developments or matters in the course of negotiation has not
been utilized by RBHU Group.

This report has been prepared on a consolidated basis. For details, please refer to the chapter entitled Scope of consolidation.

The scope of consolidation of the consolidated non-financial statement covers upstream and downstream value chains.
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2 Consolidated non-financial statement

The consolidated non-financial statement is presented in million Hungarian Forints. If not stated otherwise, financial
information is presented in Hungarian Forints rounded to the nearest million.

Scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation of the consolidated non-financial statement is generally the same as for the consolidated financial
statements, which are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) published by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the international accounting standards adopted by the EU on the basis of
IAS Regulation (EC) 1606/2002, including the applicable interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Standards.

With this said there are same parts in the Report (as listed within this section), where RBHU Group has to deviate from the
general consolidation in order to provide material information, furthermore, provide a transparent and rational picture from its
ESG factors and aspects.

Further information regarding the scope of consolidation can be found in the consolidated financial statements in note (44)
Investments in subsidiaries.

BP-2: Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances
Time horizons
Explanations of time horizons in risk management

For climate and environment-related risk, RBHU Group differentiates between the impact expected in the short, medium and
long term in line with the European Central Bank (ECB) guide on managing climate-related and environmental risks and RBI
Group's approach. As the planning horizon and average loan tenor are typically shorter than the time horizon in which the
effects of climate-related change and environmental degradation would primarily arise, a forward-looking approach is
considered with a longer-than-usual time horizon:

Short term (up to three years) - risks mainly associated with transition risks (e.g. changes in legislation and
regulation, changes in technology), i.e. the ability of companies and customers to achieve the transition to a low-
carbon economy. The Bank sees opportunities both from supporting its customers with financing, allowing them to
achieve the transition to a low-carbon economy, as well as potentially increasing the financing directed at industries
that are already green (e.g. renewables) and supporting industries that are contributing to the development of a
circular economy.

Medium term (more than three years, up to ten years) - risks driven by the paradigm shift in business models, the
emergence of new technologies and continuous updating of regulations, with potentially increasing risks from a
physical perspective (if CO, reduction is not achieved as targeted). Both physical and transition risks will pose
challenges. Technological risks can arise if innovations in connection with energy efficiency result in old technologies
that RBHU Group has invested in becoming outdated and unprofitable. On the other hand, investments in new
technologies can also fail if they prove to be technically immature. Regulatory risk in connection with stricter
environmental protection laws and regulations can also make existing investments less profitable or even
unprofitable. The withdrawal of many investors from the fossil energy sector, especially coal and carbon-dependent
industries, is an indication that the corresponding assets of the customers or investees can be expected to fall in
value over the medium term (carbon bubble). On the other hand, RBHU Group sees a good opportunity in terms of
investing in new technologies that are more likely to be profitable in the medium term (and divesting from coal).

Long term (more than ten years) - challenges will come from physical risks, their impact on customers' business

models and supply chains, as well as on their ability to mitigate and ensure that their repayment capacity is not
severely affected. In the event of an insufficiently orderly climate transition, various long-term scenario analyses
suggest large losses, particularly for carbon-intensive industries.

Sources of estimation and outcome uncertainty

Quantitative information about key value chain activities is often based on averages, assumptions and estimates. RBHU Group
tries to obtain sustainability data directly from its clients. If estimates or quantitative information do not refer to the current
reporting date, they are disclosed in the respective chapters. Where this is not possible external data vendors or sector
averages are used. In most cases several data sources are used. As more sustainability-related information becomes available
and standardized, for example as a result of the adoption of ESRS, the Bank expects to be able to reduce the estimation
uncertainty related to it. The main metrics applied by RBI, and subsequently RBHU Group, using estimates based on indirect
sources, are Scope 3 emissions. This involves the provision of data quality information in alignment with PCAF (2022). The Bank
indicates a high level of measurement uncertainty where metrics or monetary amounts are disclosed.
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Consolidated non-financial statement 3

For corporate customers as well as for project finance transactions, RBI Group has developed an ESG customer score by
measuring the impact of ESG-related risk through individual scores, which are sourced centrally to each NWU, therefore to

RBHU Group as well.
ESG customer score
The ESG customer score is used to:

Assess the ESG performance of customers;
Assess the mid- to long term-related risk arising from customers' ESG behaviour;

Identify customers with a restrictive, transformative, or supportive ESG performance and draw conclusions for the
underwriting decisions on certain customers.

The ESG score is based on the following components:

Environmental: measures the impact of transition risk and physical risk; focus areas are to support transition to a
net zero greenhouse gas (GHG) emission, the circular economy and biodiversity; in addition, the Bank is able to
identify those customers that it would like to support further: either on their way to a low-carbon economy, as a
contributor to the circular economy, or due to their low impact/enabling function vis-a-vis the environment (already
green industries). The E score is determined on the basis of both quantitative and qualitative factors. Quantitative
factors that are considered in the E score relate to the following (this list is not exhaustive):

Customer CO2 emissions (all 3 scopes);
Energy consumption;

CO, reduction targets;

Water use;

Share of renewables, etc.

Qualitative factors address the actions that the company has put in place (if any) to tackle its environmental
footprint, including target setting.

Social: capturing social risks at the customer level and identifying those with a negative impact on society and/or
that contradict the Bank's internal societal standards and reflect negatively on its reputation. Positive impacts will
also be considered and potential support for such customers may subsequently be envisaged. Compliance with
existing health and human rights regulations has already been considered. A more extensive update of the ESG
scoring model was performed in relation to human rights. RBI Group, and RBHU Group has taken a closer look at the
following areas relating to its customers:

Social/human rights-related Code of Conduct and supplier screening;
Minimum safety standards in the work environment;
Appropriate business behaviour;

Supporting diversity and educational aspects at the employee level.

The respective social score questions for assessing social risks can be assigned to five major areas related to the
social aspects of a company:

General information;

Human capital/human rights;
Responsible production;
Product-related aspects;
Customer-related aspects.

Governance: governance-related risks at the customer level are measured by scoring questions on transparency,
business ethics, diversity, strategy and risk management, specifically at the top management level.
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4 Consolidated non-financial statement

The ESG customer score is based on individual assessments by internal analysts. Qualitative and quantitative information on E,
S and G criteria is used to evaluate the customer. The ESG score is determined for all corporate credit customers. All customers
in the corporate, project finance and sovereign category have an ESG score. For financial institutions, the ESG score was rolled
out for year-end 2024.

Customer data collection

ESG data availability is crucial for the RBI Group and RBHU Group to develop internal customer ESG scoring, track the reduction
of financed emissions and make informed internal steering decisions. Many customers are not yet subject to a regulatory
reporting regime, which is why ESG data is not available for the entire portfolio. Additionally, data is subject to fluctuations in
quality. Often, estimated values - such as for Scope 3 emissions - are used. To improve the availability and quality of data, RBI
and RBHU Group uses a variety of internal and external ESG data sources:

Client data
ESG questionnaire
Non-financial statements
3rd party data vendors
Public databases
Deal level data

Energy Performance Certificates

Despite the poor availability, the highest priority is put on audited/verified client data, the lowest priority is given to estimates.
RBI has created a customer questionnaire that enables it to gather relevant information on environmental aspects directly
from its customers. Since the Bank already covers social and governance-related questions in the regular rating process, the
focus has been on collecting quantitative data on environmental topics.

The customer questionnaire covers the most important environmental aspects, in particular data on:

GHG emissions;

Reduction targets;

Circular economy;

Energy consumption;

Water consumption;

EU Taxonomy KPIs (Turnover, CAPEX).
Every year the set of ESG data points is reviewed with the respective stakeholders - new data points are added while no
longer necessary ones get removed from the data collection. Social and governance-related information is gathered from both
annual reports and sustainability statements of the customers.
To further improve data availability and data quality, the Bank employs or plans to employ a mix of measures:

Engaging with clients and create awareness;

Will consider implementing detailed KPIs at board level;

Performing data quality checks;

Visualizing data collection progress through reports and dashboards.

The remaining topics included in the second pillar can be found in the specific CSRD chapters:

Green Asset Ratio (see chapter entitled Regulatory disclosure requirement in accordance with Article 8 of the EU
Taxonomy Regulation);

Financed emissions (see chapter E1-6: Gross scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions);
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Consolidated non-financial statement 5

Target setting (see chapter E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation).

Disclosures stemming from other legislation or generally accepted sustainability reporting
statements

Regulatory disclosure of ESG risks

Since the 2022 financial year, the RBI Group has been required to disclose the Implementing Technical Standards (ITS) on Pillar 3
disclosures on Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) risks as published by EBA, in which RBHU Group was represented on
a consolidated basis. These standards aim to ensure that stakeholders are well informed about the ESG exposures, risks and
strategies of institutions, that they can make informed decisions and exercise market discipline. The aim is to guarantee the
improved consistency, comparability, and meaningfulness of disclosures by institutions.

According to Article 18a of Regulation (EU) 2021/637, Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. shall disclose the information referred to in Article
449a of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 as amended by Regulation (EU) 2024/1623 as of 30 June 2025.

Incorporation by reference

Some ESRS disclosure requirements are closely linked to requirements that the Bank is already subject to, such as the
requirement in the Corporate Governance Code to describe its governance structure. All references are listed below:

Chapter in consolidated non-financial statement Reference
Scope of consolidation Consolidated financial statements
The role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies Corporate governance report

List of phased-in disclosure requirements

ESRS Disclosure requirement

SBM-1 Breakdown of total revenue, as included in its financial statements, by significant ESRS.

List of additional significant ESRS sectors in which significant activities are developed or in which undertaking is or may be connected to material
SBM-1 impacts

E1-9 Anticipated financial effects from material physical and transition risks and potential climate-related opportunities.
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6 Consolidated non-financial statement

Governance

GOV-1: The role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies

The organizational framework for governance, supervision and decision-making is set within the annual Responsible Corporate
Governance Statement of RBHU Group. For this reason, detailed information with regard to the composition of administrative,
management and supervisory bodies, general roles and responsibilities, procedures of the decision making and percentage of
independent members, please refer to Section 3 of RBHU Group's Responsible Corporate Governance Statement. While this
report covers only ESG relevant aspects of the operation of these organizational units.

Organizational anchoring of sustainability in RBHU Group
Supervisory and Control level
Board of Directors
Audit Committee Risk Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
Management level
Management Board

Thematic level

Sustainability Council Sustainable Bond Committee
Implementation level
ESG business ambassadors Sustainability Officers Employees (specific units)
Responsible for the implementation of the ESG business  Responsible for the establishment and further Responsible for the implementation of measures to
strategy development of the local sustainability agenda achieve sustainability goals and tackle ESG risks

Supervisory and Control level

For detailed information with regard to the composition, general roles and responsibilities of the Supervisory and Control units
(including the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee), as well the procedures of the decision making, please refer to the Section 3 of RBHU Group's Corporate
Governance Report.

Organizational unit Executive/non-executive members Female/male members Female/male ratio (%)
Board of Directors 2 executives & 6 non-executives 2 female & 6 male members 25%-75%

Audit Committee 3 non-executives 3 female members 100% female

Risk Committee 3 non-executives 1female & 2 male members 33%-67%
Remuneration Committee 3 non-executives 3 male members 100% male

Nomination Committee 3 non-executives 3 females 100% female

Management level

The highest decision body in RBHU Group in ESG matters are the Management Board. For more detailed information with
regard to the composition of the Management Board, procedures of the decision making and percentage of independent
members, please refer to Section 3 of RBHU Group's Corporate Governance Report. The Management Board is responsible for
the oversight of impacts, risks and opportunities related to the bank’'s own operations and value chain. All members of the
Management Board are engaged in this responsibility, ensuring comprehensive and effective governance.

The responsibilities of the bodies are clearly delineated within the internal bylaws of RBHU Group.
The Management Board is the most senior decision-making body for ESG-related strategies, policies and commitments. Each

board area must implement their respective sustainability strategies and integrate them into the performance management
process. This should be reflected in the ESG policies and conditions for the individual area.
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Consolidated non-financial statement 7

The Management Board possesses sustainability-related expertise, both directly and through the supports of ESG experts.
RBHU Group ensures that Management Board members have specialized sustainability training by in-house experts. Expertise
and training enable the Management Board to effectively oversee the bank’s sustainability strategy, addressing its material
impacts, risks and opportunities. The Management Board assess and identify impacts, risks and opportunities through the
Sustainability Council and based on the discussions made within council sessions.

Organization unit Executive/non-executive members Female/male members Female/male (%)

Management Board 6 executives 6 male members 100% male

Thematic level

Sustainability Council

The Sustainability Council has established as a core organizational component of decision facilitator, stakeholder dialog and as
part of sustainability management. It is composed of ESG and sustainability experts from the fields of economic,
environmental and social issues, alongside RBHU Group decision makers. The council is chaired by the CRO of RBHU Group.
Meetings are held at least twice a year and are organized by Strategy and Company Office. As a discussion and decision
facilitator platform the council is to advise on the development of sustainability agendas, it assist in defining important action
areas and focal points (materiality approach), advises on deriving targets and measures, and make recommendations.

As of 31 December 2024, the following members sit on the Sustainability Council:
CEG;
CRO (chairman);
CFO (deputy-chair);
Board member responsible for retail;
Board member responsible for corporate;
Head of Strategy and Company Office;
Head of Human Resources Department;
Head of Central Procurement and Outsourcing Department;
Head of Integrated Risk Management Department;
Head of Credit Risk Management;
Head of Corporate Business Department; and

CEO of Raiffeisen Investment Fund.

Sustainable Bond Committee

The Sustainability Bond Committee (hereinafter: "SBC") was established as a body for monitoring the management of the
sustainability bond program in RBHU Group in line with the RBHU Group sustainability bond framework. The SBC is part of RBHU
Group's Asset Liability Committee (as a subcommittee) and represents an extension of the management team. It comprises an
extended team of management and experts from Project Finance and Structured Products Department (hereinafter: "PFS"),
Treasury, and Strategy and Company Office (hereinafter: "SCO").

The Sustainability Bond Committee has the following tasks:
Setting of sustainability bond principles;
Governing of the sustainability bond framework;

Approval of eligible green and social assets for the sustainability bond portfolio in accordance with the RBHU Group
sustainability bond framework;

Review and sign-off of the environmental and social impact reporting in accordance with the RBHU Group
sustainability bond framework.

Raiffeisen Group | Financial Year 2024



8 Consolidated non-financial statement

Regular review of the eligible portfolio and the use of proceeds in accordance with the RBHU Group sustainability bond
framework.

Implementation level
ESG business ambassadors

Business ambassadors are experts within business units of RBHU Group responsible for the implementation of the ESG business
strategy. Business ambassadors work in close cooperation with ESG business teams of RBI, executing and implementing RBI
Group wide strategies and initiatives with local specifics, focusing strongly on ESG lending opportunities.

Sustainability Officers

Sustainability Officers are experts responsible for the establishment and further development of the local sustainability
agenda.

The tasks of Sustainability Officers covering the below themes:

prepare the RBHU Group's consolidated Sustainability Statement in line with CSRD requirements including the
coordination of relevant processes at professional level

elaboration of RBHU Group's long-term ESG strategy with the involvement of relevant stakeholders
support relevant peer areas in execution of ESG tasks
preparation of regular Sustainability Council meetings, coordination of proposals, facilitation of the meeting; and

act as the RBHU Group's main ESG single point of contact towards RBI, the regulator and the Auditor.
Employees (specific units)
Facility Management

The operation of RBHU Group Facility Management is carried out under the direct supervision of the CPO department, with the
CPO itself being part of the CFO organization. Facility Management is responsible for the daily operational management of
RBHU Group's headquarters and branch network, as well as coordinating its energy management and environmental
management activities. The first area of activity includes ensuring the operation, maintenance, and troubleshooting of energy
supply systems, preparing and assisting in the procurement of energy carriers (natural gas, district heating, electricity)
necessary for operation, and participating in the procurement process. The second area of activity includes tasks such as
operating and maintaining the certified Energy Management System (ISO 50001) and the Environmental Management System
(ISO 14001) at RBHU Group's headquarters and branch network and continuously improving energy management and
environmental performance. Furthermore, Facility Management is also responsible for preparing the annual energy
consumption report and for preparing the Scope 1and 2 calculations, by collecting the relevant data and transferring it to the
colleagues dealing with ESG Cockpit data reporting.

Human Resource Department

HR Function sustainability activities include ensuring fair labor practices, enhancing employee well-being, providing training
and development opportunities, implementing ethical recruitment processes, providing a performance measurement
framework which aligned with broader environmental, social, and governance (ESG) goals.

Internal Controls

The Internal Control System supports the efficient design and effective implementation of the overall control environment to
achieve the organization's operating, financial reporting, and regulatory compliance objectives. Through identification,
development, documentation, prioritization, and periodic control testing, the Internal Controls System helps to assure the
suitability of the control environment. It is a critical component of bank management; it allows the company to foresee
potential problems and thereby prevent or minimize the risk of unexpected losses or damage to its reputation.

The Internal Control System is taking part in the overall risk assessment procedure. During the operational risk assessment - in
alignment with the Bank's Operational Risk Management Framework - current and future risk exposures are identified and
evaluated. The outcome of the risk assessment reveals the Bank's risk profile, based on which the mitigation measures can be
defined.
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In this regard, the risk assessment serves as a tool for monitoring and improving compliance to ensure the Bank operates
according to compliance principles and regulations.

Certain climate change and environmental risks are defined as compliance relevant risks. The Board of Directors receives a
quarterly summary report from the Bank's Compliance Officer, which includes assessments related to the compliance-relevant
climate change and environmental risks.

In 2024, the Internal Control System undertook a deep dive on the Implementation of the ,Green Recommendation” of the
National Bank of Hungary in RBHU Group.

Credit Portfolio Management

Credit Portfolio Management is responsible for portfolio-level credit risk identification and steering. As such, it identifies and
manages portfolio risks by setting and monitoring portfolio limits and KPIs. In hierarchical terms, it is assigned to Financial
Institutions, Country and Portfolio Management, which reports directly to the head of Corporate Credit Risk Management. In
view of the significant and increasing importance of ESG risks and their potential steering impact Corporate Credit Risk
Management has assumed responsibility for steering and implementing ESG-related credit risk management processes,
including customer ESG classification, ESG underwriting aspects and activities, and portfolio ESG level targets steering and
monitoring. For the time being portfolio KPIs are targeting the average ESG score of the corporate credit portfolio. Other ESG
strategical KPIs and ESG risk assessment issues not strongly and directly impacting the creditworthiness of the customers are
managed by the Risk Controlling area.

Corporate Credit Risk Management

Corporate Credit Risk Management is a division assigned to the CRO, responsible for rating analysis, underwriting, contract-
and collateral management, portfolio management and credit risk methodology steering of corporate loan customers. In
terms of ESG and ESG risks, it performs ESG score analysis throughout the credit rating process. The rating analyst evaluates
the ESG score of the customer by considering both qualitative and quantitative facts and information. Qualitative facts include
the sustainability and annual report, policies, and mitigation aspects the corporate has in place, while quantitative aspects
involve quantitative environmental data such as emission data and energy consumption. For the social and governance score,
the analyst assesses the entire picture of the company, including the value chain and internal human resources topics. In
underwriting, underwriters use the ESG score of the customer and the ESG assessment of the industry, in addition to credit
rating aspects, to decide if a loan or limit application can be supported. Collateral management is responsible for assessing
ESG aspects, such as physical risks, during collateral valuation.

Integrated Risk Management

Integrated Risk Management fulfills the Risk Controlling duties for the Bank and reports to the CRO. With respect to ESG risk,
the main responsibilities of Integrated Risk Management are the integration of ESG risk to the ICAAP (e.g. risk assessment and
stress testing), disclosure reporting, HO calculated financed emission and green asset ratio controlling, reporting and
interpretation.

This department also covers several responsibilities related to ESG Risk Data Integration, acting as a coordinator between
head office sourced tasks and other delivery units of RBHU Group. It takes part in coordinating the local ESG data collection
and data sourcing, including the respective tools and platforms for customer data that support regulatory reporting and

rating generation. Additionally, it provides advisory functions on how to implement ESG-induced changes in the process
landscape of RBHU Group and on an ad-hoc basis might take part in client support and advisory on providing ESG-related data,
Green and Social flagging of the financed loans and advances.

Policy frameworks as governance instruments

Policies are a cornerstone of governance and managing impacts, risks and opportunities. The RBHU Group policy framework is
based on different types of internal regulations:

Management Directives as framework regulations
Operational Directives and Procedures for covering End-to-End processes
Product Directives and Accounting Directives

Standard Operating Procedures for covering detailed processes.

The entire Management is responsible for approving new, updated and cancelled Management Directives. Senior management
is responsible for approving new, updated and cancelled Operational Directives, Procedures, Product Directives, Accounting
Directives and Standard Operating Procedures. The rules stated in the internal policies are mandatory and binding, unless
otherwise stated in the policy itself. The scope of application is defined for each policy by the respective policy owners and
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approved by the respective approval authorities. The RBHU Group policy database is the standard information platform for
RBHU Group and the official source for all RBHU Group internal policies. All employees at head office as well as employees in the
various units can access such data at all times. Information on new and updated policies is also sent to the relevant employees
on a regular basis. All policies must be kept up-to-date by the policy authors and owners and therefore updated in intervals as
may be required by applicable law, or if there is no such requirement, at least once every three years after approval.

GOV-2: Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the
undertaking's administrative, management and supervisory bodies

The Management Board and relevant committees are informed on a regular basis about material impacts, risks, and
opportunities, including ad hoc meetings and the Sustainability Council. These updates are provided by senior management,
including the Chief Risk Officer and sustainability officers. This regular flow of information ensures that the Management
Board, the Board of Directors and its committees are well-equipped to oversee and guide the bank’s strategy and operations
regarding sustainability impacts, risks, and opportunities effectively.

The Management Board considers impacts, risks, and opportunities when overseeing the bank’s strategy, decision-making on
major transactions, and risk management processes. This involves an evaluation of how these factors align with and influence
the bank’s long-term strategic goals. When reviewing major transactions and strategic initiatives, the Management Board and
relevant committees assess the potential trade-offs associated with various impacts, risks, and opportunities. They ensure
that decisions are made with a comprehensive understanding. The Management Board and the Board of Directors ensure that
the bank’s strategic decisions and risk management practices also include a sustainability perspective. This approach enables
RBHU Group to address complex challenges while simultaneously seizing opportunities.

In 2024 the Management Board focused on the transition plan, the ESG data collection and regulatory compliance. In this
respect, the Management Board discussed the below-mentioned main topics within the reporting period and took the
necessary decisions.

Within the environmental perspective, the focus within the Management Board was placed on RBHU Group's financed
emissions target with an update on the climate and environmental business strategy including transition plan. The
Management Board was informed and decided on topics pertaining to ESG risk management, disclosure requirements under
CSRD, the calculation of financed emissions, green volume developments, the development and management of ESG data
collection, and other supervisory and regulatory topics.

With regard to the social perspective, the Management Board discussed the Employee Engagement Survey 2024, received
updates on several policies such as the remuneration policy, policy in relation to the RBHU Group performance management
system and process, company car policy, the internal loan, the compliance function policy, the internal control system policy.
For own workforce topics the agenda included gender pay gap directive implementation roadmap and analysis, performance
bonus and annual salary increase, and role-based allowance incorporation to base salary. Cyber security information was
discussed with regard to the cyber security strategy and roadmap as well as the information and cyber security status of
RBHU Group, align with the local regulatory authority requirements and upcoming EU regulations. For data privacy the related
topics included data breaches and the review of the relevant enforcement practices of the National Authority for Data
Protection and Freedom of Information.

Regarding the governance perspective, the Management Board discussed, e.g., an update of the Code of Conduct, and received
regular compliance updates in the areas of anti-money laundering, financial sanctions, compliance governance and controls,
financial crime management, capital market compliance and safeguarding. Moreover, changes to the Organizational and
Operational Policy were discussed. In 2024 also FIT & Proper training was conducted to the Management Board.

List of impacts, risk and opportunities related items overviewed by the Management Board (either directly or via the
Sustainability Council):

Environmental items: (i) climate change mitigation; (i) climate change adaptation and (iii) energy;
Social items: (i) adequate wages; (i) working time; (iii) gender equality and equal pay; (iv) privacy; (v) cyber security;
Governance items: (i) money laundering and counter terrorism; (i) corruption and bribery and (iii) corporate culture.

These areas reflect RBHU Group's commitment to address key sustainability challenges and leveraging opportunities that align
with its strategic goals.

Raiffeisen Group | Financial Year 2024



Consolidated non-financial statement m

GOV-3: Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive scheme

Based on RBI's Remuneration policies and practices related to the sale and provision of retail banking products and services
incentive schemes shall not promote the offer or provision of a specific product or category of products over other products,
such as products which are more profitable for the Relevant NWU or Relevant person, to the detriment of the consumer. At
RBHU Group, there is no part of the variable remuneration that depends on sustainability-related targets.

GOV-4: Statement on due diligence

The financial services sector itself has for years been confronted with many challenges and risks. In order to remain profitable
over the long term, these challenges call for a strong culture of risk management and sustainability. Compliance with
appropriate due diligence processes is therefore of particular importance. The following overview provides information on
which sections of the current sustainability statement contain core elements of due diligence.

Core elements of due diligence Paragraph in sustainability statement

a) Embedding due diligence in governance, strategy and business model ESRS 2 GOV-2: Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the
undertaking's administrative, management and supervisory bodies
ESRS 2 GOV-3: Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive
schemes
ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with

strategy and business model

b) Engaging with affected stakeholders in all key steps of the due diligence GOV-2: Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the
undertaking's administrative, management and supervisory bodies
SBM-2: Interests and views of stakeholders
IRO-1: Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks
and opportunities
E1-2: Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation
S1-1: Policies related to own workforce
S1-2: Processes for engaging with own workers and workers' representatives about
impacts
S4-1: Policies related to consumers and end-users
S4-2: Processes for engaging with consumers and end-users about impacts
G1-1: Corporate culture and Business conduct policies and corporate culture

G1-2: Management of relationships with suppliers

¢) Identifying and assessing adverse impacts ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with
strategy and business model
IRO-1: Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks

and opportunities

d) Taking actions to address those adverse impacts Respective sections on management of impacts, risks, and opportunities

e) Tracking the effectiveness of these efforts and communicating E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation
S1-5: Targets related to managing material negative impacts, advancing positive

impacts, and managing material risks and opportunities

GOV-5: Risk management and internal controls over sustainability reporting

The Sustainability Statement was created in collaboration between units of RBHU Group with Strategy and Company Office as
leader of coordination. With this said data collection was carried out in the respective divisions on an ongoing basis. Draft
wording of the report was discussed by units, while division heads provided professional control over their respective parts.
Once the report is completed, approved by the Management Board, the Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee. Balanced
and comprehensive sustainability reporting is a priority for RBHU Group and its governing bodies, requiring compliance with all
statutory requirements. In this regard RBHU Group aims to tackle the risks arising out or in connection with preparing the
report.

Two main risks were identified in sustainability reporting: (i) the risk of overlooking material topics, leading to incomplete
report; and (ii) the risk of inaccurate data. To mitigate the first risk, a materiality assessment is conducted before report
preparation (see chapter SBM-3: Material impacts, risk and opportunities and their interaction with the strategy and business
model), ensuring all relevant topics are identified and addressed. There is a second risk that incorrect data is input into the
Sustainability Statement. To cover this risk, the content of the report is subject to internal controls and external audit.
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Risk framework

Risk management is essential for implementing the ESG strategy and the associated risk control measures. RBI, and
subsequently RBHU Group gears its business model to the high-level strategic goal of creating long-term value in line with the
principles of responsible banking and regulatory requirements. In concrete terms, the Bank identifies, acknowledges, and aligns
the continuous development of its risk management approach with the additional risks originating from ESG.

Firstly, there was a focus on tackling climate and environment-related risks (transition and physical risks), not only via an
assessment at the counterparty level but also by considering the potential impact of those risks stemming from the
materiality assessment and the internal/external climate stress test. In the meantime, social and governance aspects are also
gaining increasing importance (as further described).

ESG-related risks have been accounted for by enhancing the existing classical four pillars of risk management on multiple
operational levels:

Identification and definition of ESG risks;
Measurement, methodologies and analytics;
Steering approaches, reflecting risks and opportunities;

Risk processes and governance.

ESG-related topics in the CRO area are addressed via the line organization, ensuring streamlined integration into daily
activities. The goal is to fully comply with regulatory requirements while aligning actions with the Bank's business model. These
efforts closely adhere to the regulatory requirements outlined by the ECB and the EBA guides on climate-related and
environmental risks.

The risk perspective is enhanced by market and industry expectations, which are equally represented and integrated within the
ESG risk management processes.

When referring to the traditional four pillars of risk management, which are the foundation of the RBI Group risk management
approach, the Bank is currently focusing on addressing, quantifying, managing and further integrating the respective risks, as
well as the opportunities. The progress is measured via the regular monitoring and establishment of internal ESG KPIs. The

main topics reflected within each pillar are highlighted below (different time horizons are considered depending on the topic):

1. Identification & definition of ESG 1l. Measurement methodologies & 1l Steering approaches, reflecting IV. Risk processes and governance
risks analytics risks & opportunities
Climate-related and environmental Use of metrics for measurement of Sectoral strategies & special policies Credit processes enhancement
risks ESG on a customer and portfolio
dimension:
Identifying risks according to: Environmental, Social and Climate stress testing Prevention of liability, reputational
Governance score and greenwashing risk in the design
Climate change Green Asset Ratio phase
Circularity Financed GHG emissions
Biodiversity
Social risks

Governance risks

The ESG risk framework ensures implementation across the four risk management pillars, offering a high-level overview and
guidance for ongoing and planned risk management activities in the Group. These actions are motivated by the expectations
of internal and external stakeholders. The framework is reviewed on a yearly basis, updated to the latest available trends and
future expectations, and approved by the Management Board.

Identification of ESG risks

Proper identification, definition and understanding of ESG risks are crucial. In the first phase, RBI and subsequently RBHU Group
has particularly focused on climate-related and environmental risks, although social and governmental risks are also gaining
increasing attention in internal risk initiatives, especially with new regulations such as the upcoming new EBA guidelines. An
initial qualitative and expert-driven approach has been further supported by quantitative assessments including impact
analysis, materiality assessments, financed emissions calculations, and climate stress tests.
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The definition of ESG risks and the transmission channels to traditional risk types are explained in more detail in the following
chapter. The knowledge gained is transferred across the organization through different training activities (training sessions for
new topics, regular exchange sessions, etc.). ESG risk training has become mandatory in the risk area.

The financed emission calculation has reinforced the above-mentioned definition process and supports the Bank in identifying
the top carbon-intensive industries in its non-retail portfolio; a more detailed description and results are included under the
chapter E1-6: Gross scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions.

Topic-specific disclosure requirements
Environmental risk

Climate and environmental risks are driven by environmental factors (E risks). In the outside-in view, these risks should be
understood as the financial risks posed by the Bank's exposures to counterparties that may potentially contribute to or be
affected by climate change or adaption, and other forms of environmental degradation (such as air pollution, water pollution,
scarcity of fresh water, land contamination, biodiversity loss and deforestation). Related to this, the Bank and its customers
have to comply with additional political and social demands, otherwise the financed portfolio may face additional risks relating
to physical damage or transition.

As such, E risks can result in additional capital requirements, expenditures and potential losses of revenue, which may lead to a
deterioration in the respective credit standing and therefore have an adverse effect on the business, financial position and
results of RBHU Group's operations. Further information on the different climate-related risks, and their transmission channels
to the traditional risk types (market, liquidity, credit and operational risks) can be found in the section on the assessment of the
materiality of climate and environment-related risks.

Social and governance risk

In alignment with RBI Group approach, these risks are addressed in RBHU Group's internal risk framework, building on the
existing structure and internal information. The Bank is therefore continuously updating and refining its approach to enhance
its positive impact and align itself with the latest industry standards:

Social risks arise from the financial impact generated by the misuse of human capital, e.g. regarding the rights, well-
being and interests of people and communities. This could refer to working conditions, health and safety, employee
relations and diversity, employee training, inclusiveness, equality or community programs. Regarding all E, S and G-
related topics, the framework also considers the country-specific situation as well as the legal background. For
example, countries with low (or high) standards in social aspects such as human rights have a lower (or higher) score.
This also impacts the ESG score of the customer: identical corporates with different country risk may have different
ESG scores due to varying country scores

Governance risks refer to the governance practices of the Bank's counterparties, including the inclusion of ESG
factors in policies and procedures under the governance of the counterparties. This may include, but is not limited to,
executive pay, board diversity and structure, shareholder rights, bribery and corruption, compliance, ethical
standards (e.g. data ethics), fair tax strategy, etc.

Risk processes and governance
Steering approaches, reflecting risk and opportunities

The Management Board is the most senior decision-making body for ESG-related strategies, policies and commitments. The
Management Board is supported in its ESG decisions by the cross-functional Sustainability Council.

From a risk management and supervision perspective, environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks are viewed as cross-
dimensional risks that affect all areas of risk management. As such, the ESG risks are currently under incorporation into the
Bank's risk strategy as driver of management of existing risk types. The materiality assessment described in separate chapter
forms the basis for implementation in the ICAAP framework and is expected to be further refined over the coming years as
methodologies are further developed and common practices evolve. As such, each relevant risk department (market,
operational, liquidity and credit risk) is responsible for measuring environmentally-driven risk in accordance to the materiality
levels. The risk strategy and risk regulations and processes are continuously updated, refined and adjusted to the current
standards.

The ESG risk management dimension is currently in the course of being incorporated into the Bank’s Risk Strategy, however
from pure ESG perspective there is no single indicator yet as of now on which a risk capacity/ tolerance framework can be

robustly built.

The main tools for managing and supervising environment-related risks as of year-end 2024 are:
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Environmental, social and governance score;

Green Asset Ratio (GAR);

Financed GHG emissions;

Business policy on nuclear energy;

Business policy on steel;

Business policy on oil & gas;

Business policy on real estate and construction;

Business policy on thermal coal;

Climate stress test methodology and results;

Sustainability assessments in corporate lending and underwriting policy;

RBHU Group ESG Rulebook.

Regarding specific reporting, ESG risk reports are continuously included, populated and distributed through the group risk
controlling reporting framework. These include: the financed emission calculation, physical risk assessment/vulnerability,
energy efficiency distribution, climate stress tests, exposure towards top polluters, ESG rating distribution and GAR results
report.

Steering approaches, reflecting risk and opportunities

RBHU Group has the intention to redefine and reshape its business in line with the latest market requirement and is committed
to meet regulatory requirements. Commitments have been made in the areas of thermal coal, nuclear power, arms and war
material, and gambling. Efforts have also been taken to (re)define the approach to industries with high CO2 emissions and/or
high negative environmental impacts by implementing the sector-specific group policies.

An overview of the existing policies can be found in chapter E1-2: Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation.
The results of the climate stress test can be found in chapter Climate stress testing.
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Strategy related to sustainability
SBM-1: Strategy, business model and value chain

Our understanding of sustainability

For over 130 years, the RBI Group has combined financial success with socially responsible actions.

Responsible banker

Environment
Ecological product responsibility

Society
Social product responsibility

Economy
Added value

We

create
0,5, sustainable
= value F
% Ealts

Our approach os designers of @ sustainabie company and society

The RBI Group understands sustainability to mean responsible corporate activities for a long-term, economically positive result in
consideration of key societal and environmental aspects. This understanding is deeply rooted in Raiffeisen’s fundamental values (see
also chapter G1-1: Corporate culture).

The RBI Group combines financial success with social responsibility by anchoring sustainability as a fixed component of its business
and by practicing sustainability as an integral leadership and management responsibility, in addition to taking key sustainability
aspects into consideration in its business activities.

The RBI Group is therefore committed to aligning the management structures and processes with this attitude. In the three strategic
sustainability areas of responsibility - responsible banker, fair partner, and engaged citizen — which are closely linked to the business
activities, RBI Group endeavors to professionally and effectively apply the values and competences to fostering sustainable
development both in RBI Group and in society.

RBHU Group's sustainability strategy approach

The strategy and mission of RBHU Group is embedded in the strategy of RBI Group and backed by the technical expertise and
knowledge hub of Raiffeisen Bank International. Sustainability is a fundamental principle for the Bank and a measure of corporate
success. The Bank considers ESG factors within its business strategy. RBHU Group provides several sustainable financial and
investment products, while daily operations are executed with the approach of energy efficiency and environmental consciousness.

Core action areas of our sustainability strategy

The sustainability strategy of the Bank is based on four main pillars, (i) analyses and assessment of our environment, tracking
performance; (ii) risk analysis and management; (i) the portfolio strategies and business approach introduced for the financing
activities and (iv) target setting and executing.

Strategic analysis

The Bank currently performs two annual comprehensive analysis, the first one is the Climate Horizon Analysis and the second one is
the GAP Analysis.

The climate horizon analysis is an analysis tend to identify relevant climate vulnerabilities and opportunities of the Bank on short
(0-3 years), mid (4-10 years) and long term (10 years <). Vulnerability describes the exposures/potential adverse effects on companies
due to the physical and transition risks, opportunities on the other hands mean the potential to grow within the changing
environment.
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RBHU Group also performs a periodical GAP analysis and action plan to address the Green Recommendations of ECB/NBH. The
purpose of the assessment is to review compliance of RBHU Group with the Green Recommendations based on 4 section (business
model and strategy, risk management, lending, internal governance and other sustainability matters) and present ongoing
processes in order to comply with the recommendations and identify gaps to handle.

Risk analysis and management

Main focus points of risk analysis and management are: (i) define and identify ESG risks; (i) identification of vulnerable industries; (iii)
portfolio monitoring; (iv) ESG risk and business model assessment in relation to the lending processes; (v) customer risk analysis
through ESG rating and (iv) collateral valuation.

For detailed descriptions in relation to the risk analysis and management functions please see:

GOV-1: The role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies

GOV-5: Risk management and internal controls over sustainability reporting

IRO-1: Process to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities

ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model; and

E1-2: Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation.
RBHU Group climate and environmental business strategy

The RBI Group has formulated a Climate & Environment Business Strategy that integrates climate & environment risk into major
strategic processes aiming to:

make balance sheet Paris Agreement climate target fit
support customer in their climate and environmental transition; and

drive sustainable finance transformation based on up to date ESG expertise and governance.
The business model of the RBHU Group is in line with the strategic goals of RBI represented above.

The Bank has initiated portfolio strategies within the lending activities tailored in line with the economic transition, namely (i)
restrictive; (i) transformative and (iii) supportive approach:

Supportive: support companies and projects that are "best-in-class” already

Transformative: (1) transformative: in implementation - support companies and projects on their way to reduced carbon
emission or Net-zero nature impact or in their efforts to provide positive environmental & social impact; (2)
transformative: in planning - support companies and projects to plan and begin their way to reduced carbon emission or
Net-zero nature impact or in their efforts to provide positive environmental and social impact

Restrictive: dispreferred of companies and projects, also called negative screening. Engagement into lending to such

entities is discouraged by the underwriting policy, unless the partner shows material, measurable and swift commitment
for transition towards the transformative category expectations.

Strategic target setting

RBI Group assesses its environmental footprint, and other material impacts of the RBI Group on the environment and biosphere.
Within these activities the RBI Group evaluates and assesses how it will operate in a carbon neutral economy and consequently plans
its GHG reduction targets. Fundamentally the targets are divided into own operation and financed emission activities and reflecting
the transition strategy of the RBI Group and also the RBHU Group.

As for the financed emission, the Bank intends to reduce its GHG emission, arising out from the financing of non-financial
corporations, by 17.11 % by 2030 compared to the level measured in 2023.

At the RBHU Group level, local Scope 1and 2 targets have not been defined; thus, RBHU Group generally aligns to the RBI Group-level
target.

For detailed descriptions in relation to the emission numbers and detailed pathway please see:

E1-1: Transition plan for climate change mitigation; and

E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation.
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ESG factors and relations within the business model and segment level
Corporate Business

RBHU Group offers support via various sustainable financing options aligned with the business model and sustainability strategy of
its customers. These sustainable financing options cover a wide range of financial instruments (bonds, project loans, syndicated
loans, etc.) characterized by their linkage to sustainable activities.

RBHU Group's sustainable finance experts support corporate customers in their transformation by identifying and defining
sustainable transactions. The basis for this assessment of financial products and services includes both the regulatory framework of
the EU and the international market standards such as those of the Loan Market Association and the International Capital Market
Association. RBHU Group supports its customers in verifying the suitability of various projects and activities with regard to EU
Taxonomy compliance and RBI's internal definitions of green, social or sustainable transactions.

Sustainable financial products can be tailored to the individual customers so that they have a positive impact in terms of ESG
criteria. RBHU Group supports customers in all industries - in critical sectors such as oil and gas, and through to non-critical sectors
such as renewable energy - and in doing so, addresses each individual customer's respective challenges and opportunities. With all
sustainable financing transactions, RBHU Group's sustainable finance experts always endeavor to provide corporate and
institutional customers with a clear understanding of market standards and requirements, as well as best practices.

Providing sustainable financing generates added value for our customers and a wide range of activities for society that are suited to
sustainable financing. We describe financing as being sustainable when it has a long-term positive impact on the environment and
climate and/or on societal and social issues, and when it supports the attainment of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
More specifically, the definition of a sustainable transaction is based on the EU Taxonomy Regulation and on RBHU Group's ESG
Rulebook (basis: RBI's ESG Rulebook) definition for green and social. The eligibility criteria of the listed frameworks differ in terms of
complexity and precision. Currently, our corporate sustainable finance activities mainly focusing on renewable energy, electrification
and sustainable real estate finance projects.

The Sustainability Bond Framework of RBHU Group connects liability and asset side by allocating funds collected through green
bonds issuance to the sustainable finance activities of large corporate segment. Both asset and liability side gained achievements
during recent years. RBHU Group received the award for being the ,Green Bank of the Year 2022" and ,Green Bank of the Year 2024"
from the Central Bank of Hungary based on its sustainable finance activities and outstanding amounts within corporate segment,
affirming the efforts made towards the support of transition of the real economy. While in funding side 300 mn EUR Senior Preferred
green MREL eligible bond has been issued to international investors with a demand showing substantial oversubscription in 2024.

For further information about the Sustainability Bond Framework please see: https://www.raiffeisen.nu/web/english/investor-
relations

For detailed information about the corporate segment please see the respective parts of this Sustainability Statement.
Retail Business

RBHU Group provides services to around 450.000 retail and private banking customers, offering a broad product range (e.g. account
packages, payment services, personal loan, mortgage loans and investment products). In Hungary, RBHU Group provides investment
advisory and asset management services to premium and private customers. When talking about consumers and end-users in RBHU
Group's business, RBHU Group means private individuals who use RBHU Group's products and services for personal use, either for
themselves or for others, and not for professional purposes, including private individuals who will potentially become customers of
RBHU Group. RBHU Group has customers of all ages and from all types of socio-economic background. RBHU Group follows a
segment-based approach and covers mass-market retail clients.

RBHU Group aims to further increase new green loan sales to private individuals and small-business customers, and therefore advise
our customers on the possibility of green mortgage loans secured by real estate and are made available exclusively to finance or
refinance, in whole or in part, new and/or existing transactions with a specific use of proceeds as defined by the framework for

Green and Social Loans included in the local Credit Policies.

For detailed information about the retail segment please see E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation of
this Sustainability Statement.

Significant geographical markets and total revenue

While RBHU Group is a subsidiary of the RBI Group, its main operation covers solely the territory of Hungary, in consequence the
geographical market of RBHU Group is Hungary as whole.

The number of employees at reporting date can be found under S1-6: Characteristics of the undertaking's employees. section of the
Sustainability Statement.
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Raiffeisen Bank is a financial institution that provides services to companies across various sectors in the real economy, with a
particular focus on the energy, real estate, and agriculture sector. In relation to the EU taxonomy, the bank also examines these
sectors due to its exposure.

The total revenue of RBHU Group covering the financial year of 2024 can be found under (3.2) Profit or loss of the consolidated
financial statements.

Definition of value chain

According to ESRS, it is necessary to report information related to an undertaking's own operations and upstream and downstream
value chain, including its products and services, its business relationships and its supply chain. RBHU Group's business model is to
provide banking services to corporate and retail customers in Hungary. Although deposit and lending activities are the focus of
activity, RBHU Group also offers leasing, asset management, and investment banking services. RBHU Group has defined its value
chain below.

Description of the upstream value chain

The upstream value chain consists of the financial liabilities that are borrowed as deposits or issued as bonds or equity. These
products are a source of financing for RBHU Group, which is used to fund the activities of customers. In general, this does not lead to
positive or negative sustainability outcomes in the value chain. However, sustainability related funding is also part of the upstream
value chain, which aims to finance specific projects or outcomes (for further information please see in SBM-1 Corporate section). The
funding impact of sustainability matters on RBHU Group's is taken into account. Money invested by customers in investment and
pensions funds is not considered part of the upstream value chain. The suppliers of goods and services that RBHU Group purchases
in order to carry out operating activities are considered to be a further part of the upstream value chain.

Description of the downstream value chain

The main downstream key value chain consists of the on-balance sheet financial assets, which are lent or leased to customers and
financial investment activities of RBHU Group. These products are a source of financing for customers and investees in their
activities, leading positive or negative sustainability outcomes. Here the key value chain relates to lending to corporate customers,
this value chain has the greatest impact materiality. An additional key sustainability-related value chain relates to lending to retail
customers. Lending to sovereigns, central banks and financial institutions, which is predominantly undertaken for liquidity purposes,
is not considered a key sustainability-related value chain. Nevertheless, where market convention has been established to include
additional information on lending to sovereigns and financial institutions, information is provided.

A second downstream key value chain consists of assets under management in investment. These products are a source of
financing for investees in their activities, leading to positive or negative sustainability outcomes. Here only investment activity where
RBHU Group employees have direct operational control of the investment process is considered to be part of the value chain. This
means third party funds, where there is no direct operational control of the investment process and the possibility to look-through
to the underlying assets is limited, are not considered part of the value chain.

Downstream value chain activity, which RBHU Group does not consider as being material, is not covered. This activity includes:

Cash and cash equivalents, most of which is held at central banks or in other financial institutions

Exposure from trading assets and liabilities are not considered due to their short-term nature. However, sustainability risk
for market risk is considered as part of own operations in ESRS E1: Climate change

Non-consolidated associates are considered for the purposes of Scope 3 Category 15 financed emissions to the extent
that in-house data is available. However, they are not considered for other aspects of the value chain

Non-consolidated investees are considered for the purposes of Scope 3 Category 15 financed emissions to the extent that
in-house data is available. However, they are not considered for other aspects of the value chain

Investment property is not included due to the non-core nature of the business. Nevertheless, own-use property and its
impact on climate change is considered as part of the in-house ecology section in ESRS E1: Climate change.

Value chain information is currently provided to the extent that RBHU Group has ready access to the information. In the future RBHU
Group expects to have access to more information as the CSRD develops.
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SBM-2: Interests and views of stakeholders
General description of stakeholder engagement
Most important stakeholder groups

RBHU Group defines its stakeholders as those people or groups of people that have a legitimate interest in the company through
their direct or indirect business activities. Stakeholders are therefore primarily:

Shareholders/Owner: Individuals or entities that own shares in RBHU Group and have a vested interest in the company's
financial performance and governance. Currently, the sole shareholder of RBHU Group is RBI as an ultimate beneficial
owner

Customers/Investors: Individuals or organizations that purchase or use RBHU Group's products and services, whose
satisfaction and loyalty are crucial to business success. Examples: Corporate customers, private customers/consumers,
international and retail investors, SMEs

Employees: The workforce of RBHU Group, whose skills, engagement, and well-being are fundamental to operational
effectiveness. Examples: Full-time staff, part-time staff, contractors

Regulatory & Supranational Authorities: Government bodies and international organizations that set and enforce
regulations impacting RBHU Group's operations. Examples: European Central Bank (ECB), National Bank of Hungary, World
Bank Group Guarantees (MIGA), European Investment Bank (EIB), International Finance Corporation (IFC), European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD)

Business Partners: Entities with which RBHU Group collaborates, including suppliers and service providers, essential for the
supply chain and business operations. Examples: Consultants, auditors, suppliers

RBHU Group Membership Organizations: Industry groups or associations that RBHU Group is a part of, which provide a
platform for collaboration and advocacy. For example: Bankszévetség (Hungarian Banking Association)

External ESG Expert Groups: Independent experts providing insights and guidance on environmental, social, and

governance matters to enhance RBHU Group's sustainability performance. Example: Third-party ESG consultants, advisory
panels.

Frequency and formats of stakeholder engagement

RBHU Group engages with its stakeholders through various methods to ensure their interests and views are adequately considered
in the company's strategy and business model. The frequency of these engagements varies based on the needs and relevance of
each stakeholder group. RBHU Group also plays an active role in various national and international forums:

Conference: Large formal gatherings where stakeholders can discuss and share information
Meeting: Smaller, more focused discussions with specific stakeholders, held as needed

Training: Educational sessions aimed at informing or developing stakeholders' skills, scheduled as needed throughout the
year

Formal Committees: Official groups formed to discuss and make decisions on specific issues. Examples include the
Sustainability Council, Sustainability Bond Committee, and various committees focused on workforce-related issues like

health, working conditions, and social dialogue

Working Groups: Working groups typically involve stakeholders from different departments, addressing projects related to
ESG initiatives, climate action, and sustainability reporting.

Organization of stakeholder engagement

RBHU Group organizes its stakeholder engagement through a decentralized approach, where various units engage with stakeholders
based on their specific areas of expertise and operational focus. This model ensures that interactions are relevant and directly
aligned with the specific topics and issues at hand. Each unit within RBHU Group, including Strategy, Business, Risk, Legal, and
Compliance, is responsible for managing its own stakeholder interactions, tailored to the context of specific stakeholder groups.

Purpose of stakeholder engagement

The purpose of RBHU Groups stakeholder engagement is to ensure that the interests and views of stakeholders are adequately
considered in the company's strategy and business model. Engaging with stakeholders allows RBHU Group to:
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Gather Insights and Feedback: Through engagement with its stakeholders RBHU Group gains valuable insights and
feedback on topics such as sustainability, regulatory compliance, and corporate performance. This helps the company
understand stakeholder expectations and concerns, supporting decision-making and corporate strategy development

Identify and Address Material Issues: In dialogue with stakeholders questions can be developed and prioritized that are
important to both the company and the stakeholders

Enhance Transparency and Accountability: Stakeholder engagement promotes transparency and accountability by
providing stakeholders with information about RBHU Groups activities, performance, and future plans. This open
communication helps to build trust and strengthen relationships with stakeholders

Foster Collaboration and Partnerships: Stakeholder engagement provides opportunities for collaborative and
partnerships with various stakeholder groups. This enables RBHU Group to work with its stakeholders to address and solve
common challenges, share best practices, and achieve mutual benefits.

Consideration of stakeholder sngagement outcomes

RBHU Group values the insight and feedback gathered from stakeholder engagement and integrates, these outcomes into its
decision-making processes where feasible. The keyways these outcomes are considered include:

Incorporating Feedback: Feedback from stakeholders is considered during the decision-making and operational practices.
This helps ensure alignment with stakeholder expectations and key concerns

Informing Initiatives: Outcomes from stakeholder engagements serve as a foundation for various initiatives, including
sustainability efforts, risk management, and policy updates. This helps RBHU Group prioritize goals and identify areas for
improvement

Documentation and Reporting: While there is no centralized documentation system for all stakeholder feedback,
significant outcomes and actions taken in response to stakeholder engagements are documented where feasible.

By integrating the outcomes of stakeholder engagements into its processes, RBHU Group ensures that stakeholder interests and
views are considered, supporting the company’s long-term sustainability and success.

Inclusion of stakeholders in due diligence and materiality assessment

Within the assessment of double materiality first version of the documentation was carried out by RBI backed by their external
stakeholders and experts. RBHU Group and other NWUs received this RBI Group level document and assessed and finetuned it based
on local specifics. For the double materiality assessment, internal topic experts (stakeholders) assessed direct impacts, identifying
relevant impacts, risk and opportunities within their areas of expertise. RBHU Group also participates in sectoral discussions in order
to align reporting obligations on national level.

The selection of material topics is guided by the regulatory requirements of the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS).
This approach ensures RBHU Group strategy reflects the expectations of key stakeholders, including supervisory authorities and
supranational organizations.

Effect on the overall ESG strategy

RBHU Group has established a Sustainability Council consisting of the MAN and internal experts, which plays a critical role in
stakeholder dialogue and sustainability management. The Sustainability Council guides RBHU Group's strategic direction concerning
economic, environmental and social issues, ensuring stakeholder concerns are reflected within the organization.

Next steps

By continuously considering stakeholder feedback, RBHU Group aims to strengthen its stakeholder relationships and ensure that
their interests are adequately considered. This is expected to increase trust and transparency.

In addition to the above regular reviews of internal ESG policies, ensure continuous improvement and alignment with best practices.

SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and
business model

As part of an internationally active banking group, RBHU Group faces specific challenges in its efforts to realize its sustainability
vision. These arise from the economic, social and environmental impacts of RBHU Group's business activities as well as from the
external conditions within which it operates. RBHU Group works within a global environment that is characterized by numerous
economic, geopolitical and environmental risks. In the sustainability statement, it addresses the sustainability topics that have been
identified within RBHU Group as material, that reflect the expectations of its stakeholders, and that represented the focus of its
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engagement and people, including human rights. The sustainability topics elaborated in the sustainability statement are the result
of the double materiality assessment.

In 2024, RBHU Group performed a double materiality assessment based on the principles and requirements formulated in the ESRS.
For an overview of how the assessment was performed, please refer to the chapter IRO-1: Process to identify and assess material
impacts, risks and opportunities. The assessment showed the topics through which RBHU Group has been or is connected to a
material impact the environment or on people (impact materiality) and the topics that now, or may in the future, have a material
financial effect on RBHU Group (financial materiality).

RBHU Group plans to assess, consider and cover materially important ESRS items within the formulation of the annual strategy
update for 2025.
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Description of material impacts, risks and opportunities

The outcomes, including both the material topics from own operations as well as from the value chain, are shown below:

ESRS topic ESRS subtopic RBHU Group IRO short IRO description IRO type Business model Value chain Response in strategy Time Stake-holder
topic name decision-making horizon
E1 Climate change Climate change  CO, emission Based on the business model, lending to high-carbon industries and fossil fuel projects  Negative impact  Non-retail; retail; Downstream RBHU Group constantly strives  Medium to Non-retail and
Climate mitigation; reduction can delay progress towards climate goals. Climate change mitigation measures focus assets under through lending to improve customer long-term retail customers
change Climate change on reducing greenhouse gas emissions to slow the pace of global warming. management business as well as experience, enabling its
adaptation; through assets clients to achieve more in
Eneray under management  their personal and
in Hungary professional lives.
E1Climate Climate change Climate change ~ Climate-fit RBIHUs business activities can have a negative impact on the climate through Negative impact Own operations Sustained growth: sustained Medium to Employees
change mitigation operations greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1-3), which stem mainly from energy consumption, business growth and business  long-term
material consumption, and business travel within own operations. model profitability
E1Climate Climate change Climate change  Adaptation Heat waves and extreme weather can keep employees from physically and remotely Negative impact Own operations Sustained growth: sustained Medium to Employees
change adaptation risks (natural accessing their workplaces, resulting in reduced employee productivity and severe business growth and business  long-term
and threats to business reliability. model profitability
governance) Resource scarcity, rising energy costs, and extreme weather will create business
disruptions for FS companies. For example, blackouts will result in data security
threats and outages, disrupting company and client access to information.
E1Climate Energy Climate change  Sustainable The use of fossil fuels further contributes to the emission of CO2 and enhances Negative impact Own operations Sustained growth: sustained Medium to Employees
change operations climate change. Therefore, RBHU Group can negatively impact its own footprint by business growth and business  long-term
sourcing energy derived from fossil fuels. Further the same cost factor could instead model profitability
be used to support a growing transformation towards renewable energy.
S10wn Equal treatment and  Diversity, equity  Inclusion and An inclusive work environment allows everyone to be themselves, enhancing job Positive and Employees in HU Own operations Be an attractive employer Short to Employees
workforce opportunities for all - and inclusion belonging, satisfaction and personal growth. Embracing diversity broadens skills, knowledge, negative impact  primarily in and have a high-performing medium-
Gender equality and societal perspectives, improves cultural competence, and promotes a healthy and positive  (inclusion is only administrative working culture term
equal pay for equal equality; Better  workplace. Poorly managed employee relations can cause exclusion, discrimination positive and roles and customer
value; Employment decision- and lower motivation, harming job satisfaction and well-being. harassment is service
and inclusion of making only negative
persons with materiality)
disabilities; Measures
against violence and
harassment in the
workplace; Diversity
S10wn Equal treatmentand ~ Employee Personal Comprehensive learning fosters professional and personal growth and boosts Positive impact Employees in HU Own operations People & culture: attractive Short-term Employees
workforce opportunities for all - development development employee satisfaction and motivation. primarily in employer and high-
Training and skills administrative performing working culture
development roles and customer
service
S10wn Working conditions - Health Mental and Healthcare, well-being, and sports opportunities can enhance physical and mental Positive and Employees in HU Own operations People & culture: attractive Short to Employees
workforce Working time; Health physical health  health, boosting overall productivity and long-term well-being. Persistent stress and negative impact  primarily in employer and high- medium-
and safety enablement sedentary office work can cause physical ailments, mental health issues, and administrative performing working culture term

decreased productivity.

roles and customer

service
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S10wn Social dialogue Employee Having a voice Employee involvement enhances engagement and loyalty by giving employees a voice  Positive and Employees in HU Own operations People & culture: attractive Short to Employees
workforce involvement and ensuring they are heard. Without addressing employee needs and capturing their  negative impact  primarily in employer and high- long-term
mood, potential problems may go unresolved, negatively impacting satisfaction. administrative performing working culture
roles and customer
service
S10wn Working conditions - Employee Employee Secure and flexible employment enhances financial stability, work-life balance, and Positive impact Employees in HU Own operations People & culture: attractive Short to Employees
workforce Secure employment; relationships relationships overall employee satisfaction. Benefits for part-time and temporary employees foster primarily in employer and high- long-term
Adequate wages; inclusivity and engagement, contributing to a healthier work environment. Insecure or administrative performing working culture
Work-life balance temporary jobs can lead to stress, reduced life-planning security, and lower job roles and customer
satisfaction. service
S10wn Other work-related Data privacy Protection of Proper data privacy handling fosters trust and ensures personal information is secure. Negative impact ~ Employees in HU Own operations People & culture: attractive Medium- Employees
workforce rights - Privacy personal data Poor data privacy practices can lead to breaches, causing stress and loss of trust. primarily in employer and high- term
administrative performing working culture
roles and customer
service
S4 Consumers  Information-related Privacy, cyber Privacy, cyber 1) Impact: 1) Positive and Retail Own operations Privacy Customer centricity: 1Short to Private individuals
and/or end- impacts for security & security & Transparency of Data Subject Rights, trust in the financial system. negative impact trust and reliability; Cyber medium- (consumers)
users consumers and/or resilience resilience \655 @ (s, WEED @F e e, ey oF SEams @ 2) Financial risk security: speed and term 2)
end-users, cyber aiEss adaptability - high Medium-
security & resilience is . . . - . - adaptability to rapidly term
an entity specific 2) Risks: regulatory fines and. sanctions, \os.svc‘:f trust and credibility, negct\ve. publicity, changing market
decreased customer retention and acquisition, reduced revenues, higher insurance
topic premiums, non-functioning of the financial market. developments and harnessing
new technologies
S4 Consumers  Information-related Access to Access to 1) Understanding of financial products and services, financial literacy, ability to make 1) Positive and Retail Own operations Sustained growth / customer 1) Short to Private individuals
and/or end- impacts for (quality) (quality) informed investment decisions and to repay loans; Financial harm to consumers negative impact centricity + Efficiency medium- (consumers)
users consumers and/or information information 2) Regulatory fines and sanctions, expense from lawsuits, loss of clients, reduced —(applicable for term 2)
end-users Responsible revenues. This topic is not only information-related, but also social inclusion related  both) Medium-
Social inclusion of marketing relevant (e.g. for people with disabilities): Enabling sound and well-informed financial 2 term
consumers and/or practices decisions; increase in customer satisfaction while on the other hand there might be ) )
end-users damage to trust and financial harm to customers. Fina ”}C‘G| risk
(applicable for
quality
information)
S4 Consumers  Information-related Freedom of Freedom of Complaints and feedback will always happen - as long as the Bank react properly, this  Positive impact Retail Own operations Customer centricity: Short to Private individuals
and/or end- impacts for expression expression will be regarded in a positive way by customers. The Bank believes it operates a efficiency and deep customer — medium- (consumers)
users consumers and/or robust complaint management system and able to tackle every problematic case. understanding term
end-users
S4 Consumers  Social inclusion of Non- Non- Same chances for all, and on the other hand reduced chances, financial Positive and Retail Own operations Customer centricity: superior  Short to Private individuals
and/or end- consumers and/or discrimination discrimination disadvantages, social exclusion. negative impact customer experience based medium- (consumers)
users end-users on data excellence and deep  term
customer understanding
S4 Consumers  Social inclusion of Access to Access to Removed barriers (e.g. caused by the EU/EAA) lead to independence in financial Positive and Retail Own operations Customer centricity: superior  Short to Private individuals
and/or end- consumers and/or products and products and matters, usage of financial products gives opportunities, safeguarding the stability negative impact customer experience based medium- (consumers)
users end-users services services and integrity of the financial system. On the other hand: discrimination (e.g. digitally on data excellence and deep  term

illiterate people), damage to trust, financial harm to customers.

Reduced market share and revenues; increased loan defaults and credit losses.

customer understanding
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G1Business Corporate culture Corporate Culture of At RBHU Group, fostering a strong culture of integrity is essential for creating a Positive and Employees in HU Own operations Governance: strong risk Short to Employees, private
conduct governance and  integrity trustworthy and secure environment for our employees. This commitment to ethical negative impact  primarily in governance medium- individuals
strong ethical behavior ensures that our staff feel valued and respected, which enhances their administrative term (consumers,
compliance overall well-being and job satisfaction. Moreover, it encourages a positive roles and customer suppliers, public)
organizational culture that promotes accountability and transparency. service, retail, non-
A robust integrity framework also empowers employees to make ethical decisions, retail, assets under
contributing to their professional growth and development. This, in turn, positively management

impacts society by promoting fair business practices and reducing the likelihood of
unethical conduct that could harm communities. Conversely, a weak culture of
integrity can lead to internal instability, lower employee morale, and increased
incidences of unethical behavior, which not only jeopardizes our internal environment

but also has broader negative implications for societal trust and ethical standards

G1Business Protection of Protection of Protected Whistleblowing enhances transparency and accountability both inside and outside Positive and Employees in HU Own operations Governance: strong risk Short-term Employees, private
conduct whistleblowers whistleblowers  whistleblowers  RBHU Group while maintaining good workplace ethics. Proper management of negative impact — primarily in governance individuals
whistleblowing and retaliation processes is essential to prevent severe psychological administrative (consumers,
stress. If not handled professionally, it can lead to significant harm for whistleblowers, roles and customer suppliers, public)
including employees and other stakeholders. Ensuring robust protection for all service, retail, non-
whistleblowers is crucial to fostering a safe and ethical environment where individuals retail, assets under
feel empowered to report misconduct without fear of retaliation management
G1Business Corruption and Preventionand  Prevent At RBHU Group, the effective prevention and detection of corruption and bribery are  Positive impact Employees in HU Own operations Governance: strong risk Short-term Employees, private
conduct bribery detection corruption fundamental to maintaining a transparent and accountable workplace. By fostering a primarily in governance individuals
including culture of integrity and providing comprehensive training, we empower our employees administrative (consumers,
training to uphold high ethical standards and recognize potential risks. This proactive roles and customer suppliers, public)
approach has a significant positive impact on society. service, retail, non-

retail, assets under

management
G1Business Corruption and Incidents Incidents of Failure to promote fair business practices, safeguard the public interest, and ensure  Negative impact  Primarily Own operations Governance: strong risk Short-term Employees, private
conduct bribery corruption independence and adherence to ethical standards can undermine industry employees in governance individuals
confidence, harm public trust, and contribute to an unjust and inequitable society, administrative and (consumers,
reflecting negatively on our commitment to ethical conduct both within and beyond branch offices in suppliers, public)
our organization. CEE, retail, non-

retail, assets under

management
G1Business Entity-specific topic Money Prevent money  Mismanagement of money laundering and counter-terrorism efforts can increase  Positive and Retail, non-retail, Own operations Governance: strong risk Short-term Public
conduct launderingand  launderingand  criminal activities, terrorist risks, and jeopardize public safety and the economy. negative impact — assets under governance
counter- counter Conversely, effective management enhances public safety and strengthens the management
terrorism terrorism economy.
G1Business Management of Fair partnerto  Fair partner to  Transparent partnerships and compliance with fair payment practices create stable Positive impact Suppliers Upstream Efficiency / sustained growth ~ Medium- Suppliers, Public
conduct relationships with suppliers suppliers and positive cooperation between RBHU Group and its suppliers. Including ESG-related term
suppliers including supporting high  criteria in the onboarding and selection process enhances supplier engagement and
payment practices ESG standards  ensures high social and environmental standards. Effective supplier management in

IT, consulting, and facility management significantly impacts responsible business

practices.

The double materiality assessment will be re-evaluated in an annually regular process, which will be updated in the upcoming years. If a topic is currently not material, it could become material in the future.
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Impact, risk and opportunity management

IRO-1: Process to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities

In the sustainability statement, RBHU Group addresses the sustainability topics that have been identified within RBHU Group as
material, that reflect the expectations of the stakeholders, and that represented the focus of its engagement in the past year.

The double materiality assessment process is used to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities (IROs) based on
the principle of double materiality, serving as the basis of the entire sustainability statement. This assessment ensures that the
sustainability statement covers all topics and sub-topics with the greatest current or potential positive and negative impacts
related to RBHU Group's business activities, products, and services. This includes impacts directly attributable to RBHU Group within
its operations, as well as those which it contributes through business relationship with other entities. Additionally, the risk and
opportunities relevant to RBHU Group in connection with these matters, or those that arise from its business activities or
relationships, are also presented.

The first double materiality assessment in accordance with ESRS was carried out and was conducted with the help of workshops
and internal discussions in the period from December 2023 to November 2024. The double materiality assessment process was
performed for own operations and the value chain. The process was used to separate the effects RBHU Group has through its own
operations from the effects it has through its value chain.

Within the assessment of double materiality first version of the documentation was carried out by RBI backed by their external
stakeholders and experts. RBHU Group and other NWUs received this RBI Group level document and assessed and fine-tuned it based
on local specifics. For the double materiality assessment, internal topic experts (stakeholders) assessed direct impacts, identifying
relevant impacts, risk and opportunities within their areas of expertise. RBHU Group also participates in sectoral discussions in order
to align reporting obligations on national level.

Identification of ESRS touchpoints
Own operations

The initial assessment for own operations was based on the RBI Group documentation with topics previously assessed and identified
by RBI and external experts. This included topics and the relevant sub-topics, as well sub-sub-topics. In individual workshops and
discussions, all internal stakeholders were familiarized with ESRS and received an introduction to the double materiality assessment.
The goal was to enable the experts to review the RBI Group documentation and to adapt them to their views, based on their expert
opinion. The RBI Group documentation was presented, reviewed, and adapted by the internal stakeholders of RBHU Group. The RBI
Group documentation was fine-tuned then by local specifics with a reasoning for each deviation.

The internal stakeholders with ESG expertise from various departments are responsible for the topics mentioned below and
conducted the materiality analysis:

Accounting Department

Compliance Department

Security Department

Human Resource Department

In-house Ecology/Facility Management
Legal Department

Marketing Department

Procurement/Supply Chain Management.

The main responsibility for the double materiality assessment lay with the CSRD implementation project teams, which is a
cooperation of finance and sustainability experts.

Assessment method

For actual negative and positive impacts, materiality was based on the severity of the impact, while for potential impacts it was
based on the severity and likelihood of the impact. For factors such as scale, scope and irremediability were used for the severity of
the impact and a four-step scale was used, from one (very low) to four (high). The likelihood of occurrence of a sustainable topic was
assessed for risks, opportunities, and potential impact using a four-step scale, from one (very unlikely) to four (likely). The same
likelihood scale was used for the probability of occurrence for financial materiality and impact materiality. For potential impacts on
human rights, the assessment was conducted in the same manner as for actual impacts, in accordance with ESRS 1 paragraph 48.
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The likelihood was overridden by the potential impact on human rights, and if human rights were relevant to the topic, they were
automatically considered likely for calculation purposes.

For the financial risks and opportunities assessment, a sustainability matter is considered material from a financial perspective if it
triggers or is expected to trigger significant financial effects on the undertaking. This determination used factors such as the
continuation of resource use, dependence on relationships, and other elements that influence the future value of the company. For
risks and opportunities deemed relevant to RBHU Group, the time horizon for potential occurrences was defined before analyzing
how these risks and opportunities could impact the factors used. Additionally, the likelihood was assessed.

An overall threshold of 0.66 was set for the direct impact materiality and direct financial materiality (risk and opportunities), derived
from the assessment of the above criteria. If the impact materiality and/or financial materiality of an ESRS topic exceeded this
threshold, it was considered material for RBHU Group and was included in the consolidated non-financial statement for 2024.

During the workshops and discussions, the identified ESRS topics were subsequently evaluated for their positive and negative
effects, and for each impact, additionally assessed for potential and actual impacts. Actual impacts are those that have already
occurred, while potential impacts are those that could occur in the future, initially, the origin of the impact (whether directly or
indirectly caused by RBHU Group), the location (where the expected impact could occur), and the time horizon in which the impacts
are likely to occur were assessed. Subsequently, a quantitative evaluation was conducted to determine the extent.

Value chain
Impact materiality assessment

The portfolio’s impact materiality assessment was conducted using the United Nations Environment Programme - Finance Initiative
(UNEP FI) Impact Analysis Tool. This tool, developed in collaboration with signatories of the Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB)
and UNEP FI member banks, provides a framework for assessing the impacts associated with financial portfolios. By using this
methodology, RBI evaluates the indirect impacts of its portfolio on sustainability priorities aligned with the European Sustainability
Reporting Standards (ESRS).

For the analysis, RBHU Group's portfolio as of 31 December 2023 was segmented by business line - non retail and retail - and
described in terms of industry sectors (NACE), country of operation, exposure at default (EAD), and booking country.

To assess how these portfolio elements impact sustainability topics, UNEP FI mapping is used to connect sector and geographic
data to ESRS sub-topics. The sector-impact map highlights how industries influence specific impact areas - positively and
negatively, directly or indirectly - and these impact areas are then mapped to ESRS sub-topics to connect portfolio impacts to ESRS
standards. Adding country-specific data gives the analysis a geographic layer, helping to prioritize sustainability topics based on
regional importance. While the ESRS standards require reflection on both actual and potential impacts, which could align with UNEP
FI's direct and indirect impacts, RBHU Group's analysis focuses solely on direct impacts. This decision provides a clearer view of the
immediate effects of the portfolio, while the overall analysis remains within the ESRS indirect realm from RBHU Group's perspective.

The impact calculation applies three measures, scale, scope and irremediability. Scale quantifies the monetary exposure (EAD) of
sectors that directly affect ESRS sub-topics through UNEP Fl impact areas. Scope adjusts scale by factoring in geographic relevance,
reflecting country-specific needs that influence the priority of each topic. Irremediability then provides a qualitative assessment of
the reversibility or permanence of these impacts, with higher scores indicating sectors or regions where impacts are challenging to
mitigate.

These three measures - scale, scope and irremediability — combine to create an overall impact score for each ESRS sub-topic. This
score serves as the basis for the double materiality analysis, following ESRS guidelines. A materiality threshold of two-thirds (66.7 per
cent) is applied to determine which ESRS topics are considered material and should be prioritized. The quantitative score can also be
adjusted using qualitative inputs such as stakeholder feedback or contextual insights, ensuring a more holistic assessment of the
portfolio's indirect impacts.

Financial materiality assessment

According to ESRS, it is necessary to report information related to an undertaking's own operations and its upstream and
downstream value chain, including its products and services, its business relationships, and its supply chain. The financial materiality
of risk is assessed based on combination of the likelihood of occurrence and the potential magnitude of the financial effects. For the
likelihood of occurrence, factors such as current and future legislation as well as reputational considerations are considered. For the
purpose of the CSRD, RBHU Group uses the income dependency of RBHU Group's downstream value chain to assess the magnitude of
the financial materiality of the topical standards (and sub-topics).

When the income dependency of a topical standard is greater than 10 per cent and it is likely there will be an impact, this provides
confirmation of financial materiality. The income dependency ratio is defined as income from high-impact lending/investing divided

by operating income and add-back interest expense and fee expense.

The income from high-impact lending/investing currently consists of the following positions:
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Interest income from non-financial corporations
Interest income from retail mortgage loans
Fee and commission income from non-financial corporations

Fee and commission income from investment funds.

Financial materiality in the value chain is given when income from topical sectors is greater than 10 perc cent and it is likely that
there will an impact. Currently, there is no perceived financial materiality in the value chain of RBHU Group.

Validation of double materiality assessment

The model covering direct double materiality perspective is covered by the relevant guidance of EFRAG, and in line with the
requirements and recommendation of the aforementioned guideline. The indirect double materiality models are based on
international standards and good practiced used by the sector. Several discussions and workshops were held between RBI and other
NWUs (including RBHU Group) in relation to the methodology and results of double materiality assessment. In addition to the above,
the Bank discussed the approach, the methodology and results with the internal experts and stakeholders.

The process and results of the double materiality assessment were presented and recognized by the Management on 24th of March
2025. The summary of the outcome of the double materiality assessment is presented in the chapter SBM-3: Material impacts, risks
and opportunities and their interaction with the strategy and business model.

Topic-specific disclosure requirements
Climate change

Own operations

Impact materiality assessment

In terms of RBHU Group's own operations, the double materiality principle entails understanding and taking into account the impact
of a company's own activities on the environment and the implications of environmental issues for the respective company.

At RBHU Group, the key materiality indicator is the volume of absolute greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1-3) that are caused by
various activities, such as energy consumption and business trips. These emissions have an adverse impact on the climate and are
therefore considered, even though the main focus rests on RBHU Group's financed emissions due to their much larger weight. As the
changes in the world's climate have far-reaching consequences, which extend beyond national borders, there is no regional
limitation of effects in the context of the inside-out approach. Although the impact of greenhouse gas emissions on the climate is
entirely negative, aspects such as the use of renewable energy and the promotion of energy efficiency can mitigate the adverse
effects.

Financial materiality assessment

The risks of operational activities are closely related to the environmental concerns set out to be managed in the CSRD. The biggest
risk to the economy, society and the environment is the unwillingness of companies to counteract climate change. This leads to
increased global warming with the known negative impacts. In addition to external environmental risk, RBHU Group and its operating
locations are subject to physical, regulatory and reputational risks (outside-in perspective). In the area of physical risks, for example,
natural disasters could result in damage to property. These risks are minimized by selecting the right locations and ensuring suitable
property insurance (adaptation strategy).

They are managed on the cost side by continuously observing the internal and external environment and by consulting specialists in
controlling the respective measures. Risks are classified as material when they endanger the achievement of RBHU Group's medium
to long-term climate targets - particularly with regard to energy consumption - or when stakeholders classify them as material for
RBHU Group. The measures set out are currently heavily focused on the area of energy, with examples including targeted increases

in energy efficiency and structural alterations to building shells.

The physical risks of climate change, such as greater and more frequent temperature fluctuations, often result in higher operating
costs, e.g. due to the increased need for cooling as the number of days with extreme heat increases. Risk management is based on a
combined bottom-up and top-down approach in which all employees also pay a significant role in risk minimization in their
respective working area.

RBHU Group is contributing to meeting the goals of the UN climate change conference in Paris (Conference of the Parties 21) by
working to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, as well as promoting the renewable energy sector of the economy.
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Consistent steering through KPIs in areas such as business travel and energy consumption represents a particular opportunity for
RBHU Group with regards to the environmental impact of its own operations. Furthermore, reputational risks are minimized and
resilience in the face of the consequences of climate change is increased. New collaborations in research and development and
investment in energy efficiency measures can also play a role in promoting the transformation to a sustainable economy.

Value chain
Assessment of the materiality of climate and environment-related risk

To complement the impact analysis performed using the UNEP FI Portfolio Impact Analysis Tool (see chapter Impact materiality
assessment and in line with the ECB Guide on climate-related and environmental risks (expectations 7.2 and 7.31), an extended
annual risk assessment for climate and environmental risk drivers has been implemented within RBI's risk framework. While the UNEP
FI portfolio impact analysis also considers the inside-out perspective, the materiality assessment described below focuses on the
outside-in view, i.e,, how the climate and environmental risks affect RBHU Group's risk profile. The inside-out view, on the other hand,
would additionally address how RBI's activities affect the outside world (including the financed emission calculation, as well as how
science-based targets measure and mitigate the inside-out impact).

The additional climate and environmental risk assessment process has been established to identify the severity of environmental
risk from applicable transmission channels within the current portfolio and over different time horizons. This multiple dimensional
approach considers:

Different individual climate and environmental risk drivers (physical risk, transition risk, other environmental risks);

The impact of each climate and environmental risk driver through risk-dependent transmission channels, assessed for
each risk type (credit, market, operational and liquidity risk);

The impact under different transition risk scenarios (orderly - specifically Net Zero 2050).

Individual climate and environmental risk drivers
Transition risk

With transition risk being defined as the risks related to the process of adjustment towards a low-carbon economy, the transition
risk drivers represent climate-related changes that could generate, increase or reduce transition risks. They include changes in public
sector (generally government) policies, legislation and regulation, changes in technology, and changes in market and customer
sentiment, each of which has the potential to generate, accelerate, slow or disrupt the transition towards a low-carbon economy.
Looking one step further, the transmission channels are the causal chains that explain how climate risk drivers give rise to financial
risks that impact banks directly or indirectly through their counterparties, the assets they hold, and the economy in which they
operate.

The Bank has identified transmission channels in line with the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) paper on climate-
related risk drivers and their transmission channels.

Credit risk

Credit risk increases if climate risk drivers reduce borrowers' ability to repay and service debt (income effect) or banks' ability to fully
recover the value of a loan in the event of default (wealth effect). For example, in the non-retail portfolio, macroeconomic and
climate-related risk factors (e.g. carbon tax, emission trading system (ETS) expenses) are used to make sector-specific projections on
production and operating costs which are distributed to the single borrower's financial figures (e.g. operating revenues, operating
costs such as costs of goods sold and labor costs, additional costs relating to carbon tax, costs for green transitions, etc.). Finally,
the projected financial positions are used to simulate the projection of the probability of default in RBI's rating models for a
materiality assessment, under the different transition scenarios described above.

Market risk

Climate and environmental risk drivers may have a significant impact on the value of financial assets. Transition-related changes in
official sector policy, technological advances and investor sentiment can alter or reveal new information about future economic
conditions or the value of real or financial assets, resulting in downward price shocks and an increase in market volatility in traded
assets. For instance, the transition to a low-carbon economy may impact commodity markets, especially fossil fuels which are prone
to transition risks. Transition risk could also lead to a breakdown in correlations between assets, reducing the effectiveness of
hedges and challenging banks' abilities to actively manage their risks.

The impact of transition risk on market risk is assessed using a centrally-developed, RBI Group methodology. This covers both
corporate and sovereign issuers, according to which risk levels are assigned to positions - based on the NACE code/industry and risk
country of the issuer. Corporate exposures are linked to NACE codes/industries and risk levels are assigned based on the industry
share of GHG emissions in the risk country's total GHG emissions. Sovereigns are linked to countries and risk levels are based on
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several factors: the industry's GHG emissions, gross value added, wages and salaries, social security costs, environmental taxes, and
operational surplus and mixed income (net). The materiality on market risk is assessed based on the total loss in relation to common
equity tier 1(CET1).

Liquidity risk

From a liquidity risk perspective, climate change transition risk can affect inflows from customers' loan repayments (due to lower
creditworthiness) and the value of securities in the liquidity buffer. Liabilities and retail loans are not deemed vulnerable to transition
risk. Meanwhile, if it is assumed that the transition risk is spread over a period of more than three months (i.e, a relatively gradual
change in the legislative environment), the effect on liquidity risk is deemed negligible as it is expected that the balance sheet of the
Bank will gradually adapt to the change. If the risk realization period is less than three months, the effect will be more palpable and
is approached using the same assumptions as for market risk in terms of the devaluation of securities in the liquidity buffer, and
credit risk, in terms of decreased inflows from loans due to a higher default rate. The materiality is assessed on the basis of the
liquidity buffer devaluations' relative impact on liquidity surplus estimated by internal stress test model (time to wall).

Operational risk

Corporates and banks may be exposed to increasing legal and regulatory compliance risk, as well as litigation and liability costs
associated with climate-sensitive investments and businesses. Furthermore, climate-related lawsuits could target corporations as
well as banks for past environmental conduct, whilst seeking to direct future conduct. The impact of this transmission channel has
been assessed by the operational risk framework that is in place, as current expected losses are measured by analysing historical
data as well as identifying trends and forward-looking approaches. Operational risk is assessed on the loss in relation to the total
revenue of the Bank.

Physical risk

Physical risk drivers are changes in both weather and climate. They are expected to increase over a longer time horizon if the
transition to a sustainable, net-zero economy is not successful (e.g. the hot-house world which is a high emission scenario). Physical
risks can be classified as acute risks, which are related to extreme weather events, or chronic risks associated with gradual shifts in
climate:

Acute physical risks are generally considered to consist of: floods, wildfires and storms, including hurricanes, cyclones and
typhoons, as well as extreme precipitation

Chronic physical risks include rising sea levels, rising average temperatures, and water stress. Extended periods of
increased temperatures may also lead to further chronic climate events, such as desertification.

Similarly, extended periods of increased average temperatures could impact the ecosystem, especially agriculture. The way in which
physical risks impact economies will vary depending on geographical location as different regions exhibit distinct climate patterns
and levels of development. Some regions are expected to be more severely affected than others because they are more exposed
and more vulnerable to specific types of weather disasters.

All these hazards are assessed via risk-specific transmission channels over a short, medium and long-term horizon (see section time
horizons) under the orderly and hot-house world scenario based on a physical risk map containing information on hazard-specific
vulnerability and impact for each relevant geolocation.

Credit risk

Physical risk drivers mainly impact banks' credit risk through their counterparties. The physical capital (housing, inventory, property,
equipment or infrastructure) of households, corporates and sovereigns can be damaged or destroyed by physical hazards. This
damage reduces the value of assets and, consequently, a counterparty’s wealth. Physical risk drivers can also negatively impact the
cash flows of the affected entities as damaged physical capital, such as impaired rental properties and factories, will generate less
income. The damage may be caused by acute physical risks and chronic physical risks, such as rising sea levels. The materiality of
this transmission channel is assessed by mapping portfolio exposure to a physical risk map under different transition scenarios
(orderly, disorderly, hot house), while accounting for coping capacity at the country level (INFORM risk model).

Market risk

Physical risk may be sudden and severe, and have knock-on effects across regions and sectors through interconnected
socioeconomic and financial systems. Physical risks emerging from climate change can cause market price fluctuations, such as
more frequent and severe extreme weather events causing losses in equity prices due to the destruction of firms' assets or capacity
to produce. Uncertainty about the timing, intensity and location of future severe weather events and other natural disasters may
lead to higher volatility on the financial markets. Overall, the presence of physical risk may lead to a classical risk factor (e.g. an
equity price or an exchange rate) being more volatile than historically observed, or being subject to severe jumps, diminishing the
value of the financial instrument being traded. This transmission channel is assessed by mapping market risk exposure to a physical

Raiffeisen Group | Financial Year 2024



30 Consolidated non-financial statement

risk map (again under different transition scenarios (orderly, disorderly, hot house), while considering historical losses and the impact
on GDP.

Liquidity risk

With respect to the effect of physical climate risk on liquidity risk, the logic is similar to that applied to transition risk. If the risk event
is spread over a significant period of time or does not have an immediate effect, this risk has a negligible impact on liquidity risk. If
acute climate physical risks materialize, the following effects are possible:

Devaluation of securities in the liquidity buffer (in line with the market risk assessment)

Decrease in inflows from loans due to a higher default rate and higher rollover rate, combined with higher withdrawals of
loans from credit lines.

Customers, including those in the retail segment, use loans to cover damages caused by the event. Outflows from customers'
liabilities arise due to the need to cover damage caused by the event. This effect is not straightforward, as if a bank has a
significant market share and a diverse customer base, it is most likely that a customer who has suffered from the event would have
to pay other customers (e.g. retail customers with damaged houses will pay for construction goods). In addition, the effect can be
temporary in this case, as if the accounts are mainly in a customer'’s portfolio, inflows from insurance coverage will be reflected in
the liabilities relatively soon after the potential decrease.

The materiality of this transmission channel has been evaluated by analysing the effect on the liquidity buffer under different
interest and credit spread shocks under different transition scenarios, derived from the region-dependent physical risk score.

Operational risk

Physical hazards can affect banks directly as operational risks. For instance, if physical hazards disrupt transportation facilities and
telecommunications infrastructure, banks' operational ability may be reduced. The impact of this transmission channel was
assessed by extending the physical risk drivers to the operational risk assessment and scenario. In this scenario, business continuity
management costs are measured using scenario methodology, i.e., it is assumed that the physical risk may cause potential business
continuity management events (critical site not available and IT availability & continuity). The locations for both the primary head
office and data centers were evaluated by the external data provider in terms of exposure to the climate and environmental risk
drivers mentioned. The results of the scenario analysis did not reveal any severe impacts from those specific risk drivers.

Results of the climate related risk assessment

In the materiality assessment 2024, with the cut-off date of 30 June 2024 and using the methodology outlined above, all transitional
and physical risks to the market, liquidity, operational and credit risk indicators were assessed at a low level for RBHU Group.

Climate and environmental materiality assessment

Short term Medium term Long term
Credit risk Transition risk Low Low Low
Physical risk Low Low Low
Market risk Transition risk Low Low Low
Physical risk Low Low Low
Operational risk incl. Transition risk Low Low Low
reputational risk Physical risk Low Low Low
Liquidity risk Transition risk Low Low Low
Physical risk Low Low Low

The thresholds for the materiality analysis are determined individually by risk type. For credit risk, the effect of transition risk is
derived from the probability of default of customers in different transition scenarios compared to actual values. For physical risk, the
threshold is set individually for each possible event (e.g. flood, wildfire), and the final effect represents a combination of the event's
probability and the resilience of a region. For market risk, the potential loss is measured in relation to total capital. For operational
risk, the estimated loss in both transition and physical risk scenarios is compared against a threshold in accordance with RBI's
internal operational risk framework.

For liquidity risk assessment, all scenarios and risk drivers demonstrated low materiality. Given that Climate and Environmental (C&E)
risks have low materiality and that the main transition channels for liquidity risk are market and credit risks, only the materiality
assessment is currently part of the ILAAP. Nonetheless, the Group is considering the integration of a stress scenario for C&E risks
within the scope of liquidity risk.

To further reflect the risk related to income dependency (in parallel to the impact on risk parameters), the ICAAP risk assessment

was extended with risk indicators related to income from industries with high contribution to climate change. Initial results show
contribution to the Bank's income from relevant industries as (low) not material (below ten per cent).
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IRO-2: Disclosure requirements in ESRS covered by the undertaking's sustainability
statement

An overall threshold of 0.66 was set for the impact materiality and financial materiality (risks and opportunities), derived from
assessments of various criteria. If the impact materiality and/or financial materiality of an ESRS topic exceeded this threshold, it was
considered material for the Bank and was included in the consolidated non-financial statement for 2024.

Sector-agnostic standards

Disclosure requirements Page reference  Omissions/explanations

ESRS 2 General disclosures

BP-1: General basis for preparation of consolidated non-financial statement 1

BP-2: Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances 2

GOV-1: The role of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies 6

GOV-2: Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the undertaking's administrative, management and "
supervisory bodies

GOV-3: Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes m

GOV-4: Statement on due diligence m

GOV-5: Risk management and internal controls over sustainability reporting m

SBM-1: Strategy, business model and value chain 15

SBM-2: Interests and views of stakeholders 19

SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model 20

IRO-1: Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities 25

IRO-2: Disclosure requirements in ESRS covered by the undertaking's consolidated non-financial statement 31
E1Climate change

GOV-3: Integration of sustainability-related performance in incentive schemes m

E1-1: Transition plan for climate change mitigation 15

ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model 17 and 138
IRO-T: Description of the processes to identify and assess material climate-related impacts, risks and opportunities 25

E1-2: Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation 9

E1-3: Actions and resources in relation to climate change policies 125

E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation 130

E1-5: Energy consumption and mix 132

E1-6: Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and Total GHG emissions 132

E1-7: GHG removals and GHG mitigation projects financed through carbon credits 137 Not material
E1-8: Internal carbon pricing 137 Not material
E1-9: Anticipated financial effects from material physical and transition risks and potential climate-related opportunities — Phase-in
S10wn workforce

SBM-2: Interests and views of stakeholders 19

ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model 117 and 138
S1-1: Policies related to own workforce 139

S1-2: Processes for engaging with own workers and workers' representatives about impacts 141

S1-3: Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for own workers to raise concerns 142

S1-4: Takmg action on material impacts on own vvorkforce, and approo;hes to mitigating material risks and pursuing material 142
opportunities related to own workforce, and effectiveness of those actions

S1-5: Targgts related to managing material negative impacts, advancing positive impacts, and managing material risks and 144
opportunities

S1-6: Characteristics of the undertaking's employees 145

S1-7: Characteristics of non-employee workers in the undertaking’s own workforce 145

$1-8: Collective bargaining coverage and social dialogue 145

$1-9: Diversity metrics 146

$1-10: Adequate wages 147

S1-11: Social protection 147

S1-12: Persons with disabilities 147

$1-13: Training and skills development metrics 147

S1-14: Health and safety metrics 147

$1-15: Work-life balance metrics 148

S1-16: Compensation metrics (pay gap and total compensation) 148

$1-17: Incidents, complaints and severe human rights impacts 149

S4 Consumers and end-users

SBM-2: Interests and views of stakeholders 19

ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model 117 and 138
S4-1: Policies related to consumers and end-users 153

S4-2: Processes for engaging with consumers and end-users about impacts 162

S4-3: Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for consumers and end-users to raise concerns 164
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S4-4: Taking action on material impacts on consumers and end-users, and approaches to managing material risks and pursuing

material opportunities related to consumers and end-users, and effectiveness of those actions 165

S4-5: Torggts related to managing material negative impacts, advancing positive impacts, and managing material risks and 167
opportunities

G1Business conduct

GOV-1: The role of the administrative, supervisory and management bodies 6

IRO-1: Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities 25

G1-1: Corporate culture and Business conduct policies and corporate culture 170 and ##
G1-2: Management of relationships with suppliers 173

G1-3: Prevention and detection of corruption and bribery 174

G1-4: Confirmed incidents of corruption or bribery 175

G1-5: Political influence and lobbying activities — Not material
G1-6: Payment practices 175
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List of data points in cross-cutting and topical standards that derive from other EU
legislation

Disclosure Requirement SFDR Pillar 3 Benchmark Regulation EU Climate Law Reference

and related datapoint

ESRS 2 GOV-1
Board's gender diversity
paragraph 21(d)

Indicator number 13 of
Table #1 of Annex 1

Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/18 16,
Annex |l

GOV-1: The role of the
administrative,
management and
supervisory bodies

ESRS 2 GOV-1

Percentage of board
members who are
independent paragraph 21
(e)

Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/18 16,
Annex Il

GOV-T: The role of the
administrative,
management and
supervisory bodies

ESRS 2 GOV-4
Statement on due
diligence
paragraph 30

Indicator number 10 Table
#3 of Annex 1

GOV-4: Statement on due
diligence

ESRS 2 SBM-1
Involvement in activities
related to fossil fuel
activities

paragraph 40 (d) i

Indicators number 4 Table
#1of Annex 1

Article 449a Regulation
(EV) No 575/2013;
Commission Implementing
Regulation (EU)
2022/245328Table 1:
Qualitative information on
Environmental risk and
Table 2: Qualitative
information on Social risk

Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/18 16,
Annex |l

not applicable

ESRS 2 SBM-1
Involvement in activities
related to chemical
production

paragraph 40 (d) ii

Indicator number 9 Table
#2 of Annex 1

Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/18 16,
Annex Il

not applicable

ESRS 2 SBM-1
Involvement in activities
related to controversial
weapons

paragraph 40 (d) iii

Indicator number 14 Table
#10f Annex 1

Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/18 18
Article 12(1), Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/1816,
Annex |l

not applicable

ESRS 2 SBM-1
Involvement in activities
related to cultivation
and production of
tobacco

paragraph 40 (d) iv

Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/18 18
Article 12(1), Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/1816,
Annex |l

not applicable

ESRS E1-1 Regulation (EU) 2021/1119, E1-1: Transition plan for
Transition plan to reach Article 2(1) climate change
climate neutrality by 2050 mitigation

paragraph 14

ESRS E1-1 Article 449a Commission Delegated E1-1: Transition plan for

Undertakings excluded
from Paris-aligned
Benchmarks
paragraph 16 (g)

Regulation (EU) No
575/2013; Commission
Implementing Regulation
(EU) 2022/2453 Template 1:
Banking book-Climate
Change transition risk:
Credit quality of exposures
by sector, emissions and
residual maturity

Regulation (EU) 2020/18 18
Article12.1(d) to (g), and
Article 122

climate change
mitigation

ESRS E1-4

GHG emission
reduction targets
paragraph 34

Indicator number 4 Table
#2 of Annex 1

Article 449a

Regulation (EU) No
575/2013; Commission
Implementing Regulation

(EU) 2022/2453 Template 3:

Banking book - Climate
change transition risk:
alignment metrics

Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/18 18
Article 6

E1-4: Targets related to
climate change
mitigation and
adaptation

ESRS E1-5

Energy consumption from
fossil

sources disaggregated
by sources (only high
climate impact sectors)
paragraph 38

Indicator number 5 Table
#1and Indicator n. 5 Table
#2 of Annex 1

not applicable
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ESRS E1-5 Energy

Indicator number 5 Table

E1-5: Energy consumption

consumption and mix #1of Annex 1 and mix
paragraph 37
ESRS E1-5 Indicator number 6 Table not applicable

Energy intensity
associated with
activities in high climate
impact sectors
paragraphs 40 to 43

#1of Annex 1

ESRS E1-6

Gross Scope 1,2, 3
and Total GHG
emissions
paragraph 44

Indicators number 1and 2
Table #1 of Annex 1

Article 449¢; Regulation
(EU) No 575/2013;
Commission Implementing
Regulation (EU) 2022/2453
Template 1: Banking book
- Climate change
transition risk: Credit
quality of exposures by
sector, emissions and
residual maturity

E1-6: Gross scopes 1,2, 3
and total GHG emissions

ESRS E1-6 Indicators number 3 Table  Article 449a Regulation Commission Delegated E1-6: Gross scopes 1, 2, 3
Gross GHG emissions #10f Annex 1 (EU) No 575/2013; Regulation (EU) 2020/1818, and total GHG emissions
intensity Commission Implementing  Article 8(1)
paragraphs 53 to 55 Regulation (EU) 2022/2453

Template 3: Banking book

- Climate change

transition risk: alignment

metrics
ESRS E1-7 Regulation (EU) 2021/1119, not applicable

GHG removals and
carbon credits
paragraph 56

Avrticle 2(1)

ESRS E1-9 Delegated Regulation (EU) phase-in
Exposure of the 2020/1818, Annex II
benchmark portfolio to Delegated Regulation (EU)
climate-related physical 2020/1816, Annex I
risks
paragraph 66
ESRS E1-9 Article 449a Regulation phase-in
Disaggregation of (EU) No 575/2013;
monetary amounts by Commission Implementing
acute and chronic physical Regulation (EU) 2022/2453
risk paragraph 66 (a) paragraphs 46 and 47;
ESRS E1-9 Template 5: Banking book -
Location of significant Climate change physical
assets at material risk: Exposures subject to
physical risk physical risk.
paragraph 66 (c).
ESRS E1-9 Breakdown Article 449a Regulation phase-in
of the carrying value of (EU) No 575/2013;
its real estate assets by Commission Implementing
energy-efficiency Regulation (EU) 2022/2453
classes paragraph 34; Template 2:
paragraph 67 (c). Banking book -Climate
change transition risk:
Loans collateralized by
immovable property -
Energy efficiency of the
collateral
ESRS E1-9 Delegated Regulation (EU) phase-in

Degree of exposure of
the portfolio to climate-
related opportunities
paragraph 69

2020/1818, Annex Il

ESRS 2- SBM3 - S1
Risk of incidents of forced
labour paragraph 14 (f)

Indicator number 13 Table
#3 of Annex |

not material sub-topic

ESRS 2- SBM3 - S1

Risk of incidents of child
labour

paragraph 14 (g)

Indicator number 12 Table
#3 of Annex |

not material sub-topic

ESRS S1-1

Human rights policy
commitments
paragraph 20

Indicator number 9 Table

#3 and Indicator number 11

Table #1 of Annex |

RBI human rights policy
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ESRS S1-1

Due diligence policies on
issues addressed by the
fundamental International
Labor Organization
Conventions 1to 8,
paragraph 21

Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816, Annex II

RBI human rights policy

ESRS S1-1

processes and measures
for preventing trafficking
in human beings
paragraph 22

Indicator number 11 Table
#3 of Annex |

RBI human rights policy

ESRS S1-1

workplace accident
prevention policy or
management system
paragraph 23

Indicator number 1 Table
#3 of Annex |

ESRS $1-3
grievance/complaints
handling mechanisms
paragraph 32 (c)

Indicator number 5 Table
#3 of Annex |

S1-3: Processes to
remediate negative
impacts and channels for
own workforce to raise
concerns

ESRS $1-14

Number of fatalities and
number and rate of work-
related accidents
paragraph 88 (b) and (c)

Indicator number 2 Table
#3 of Annex |

Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816, Annex I

S1-14: Health and safety
metrics

ESRS $1-14

Number of days lost to
injuries, accidents,
fatalities or illness
paragraph 88 (e)

Indicator number 3 Table
#3 of Annex |

S1-14: Health and safety
metrics

ESRS S1-16

Unadjusted gender pay
gap

paragraph 97 (a)

Indicator number 12 Table
#10f Annex |

Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816, Annex Il

S1-16: Remuneration
metrics (pay gap and
total remuneration)

ESRS $1-16
Excessive CEO pay ratio
paragraph 97 (b)

Indicator number 8 Table
#3 of Annex |

$1-16: Remuneration
metrics (pay gap and
total remuneration)

ESRS $1-17
Incidents of discrimination
paragraph 103 (a)

Indicator number 7 Table
#3 of Annex |

$1-17: Incidents,
complaints and severe
human rights impacts

ESRS S1-17 Non-respect of
UNGPs on Business and
Human Rights and OECD
paragraph 104 (a)

Indicator number 10 Table
#1and Indicator n. 14
Table #3 of Annex |

Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816, Annex Il
Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818 Art 12 (1)

ESRS S4-1 Policies related
to consumers and end-
users paragraph 16

Indicator number 9 Table
#3 and Indicator number 11
Table #1 of Annex 1

S4-1-Policies related to
information-related
impacts for consumers
and end-users

ESRS S4-1

Non-respect of UNGPs on
Business and Human
Rights and OECD guidelines
paragraph 17

Indicator number 10 Table
#10f Annex 1

Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816, Annex Il
Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818, Art 12 (1)

ESRS S4-4
Human rights issues and
incidents paragraph 35

Indicator number 14 Table
#3 of Annex 1

Information and Cyber
Security

ESRS G1-1

United Nations Convention
against Corruption
paragraph 10 (b)

Indicator number 15 Table
#3 of Annex 1

not applicable

ESRS G1-1

Protection of whistle-
blowers

paragraph 10 (d)

Indicator number 6 Table
#3 of Annex 1

not applicable
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ESRS G1-4 Indicator number 17 Table Delegated Regulation (EU) G1-4: Incidents of
Fines for violation of anti- ~ #3 of Annex 1 2020/1816, Annex I1) corruption or bribery
corruption and anti-bribery

laws paragraph 24 (a)

ESRS G1-4 Indicator number 16 Table G1-4: Incidents of
Standards of anti- #3 of Annex 1 corruption or bribery
corruption and anti-

bribery

paragraph 24 (b)
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Environmental information

Regulatory disclosure requirement in accordance with Article 8 of the EU
Taxonomy Regulation

The EU Taxonomy Regulation sets out an EU-wide framework that allows investors and undertakings to determine whether
certain economic activities are environmentally sustainable. Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation requires undertakings
covered by the Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 December 2022 amending
Regulation (EU) No 537/2014, Directive 2004/109/EC, Directive 2006/43/EC and Directive 2013/34/EU, as regards corporate
sustainability reporting (CSRD) to publish information on how and to what extent their economic activities qualify as
environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy Regulation. RBHU Group is therefore required to disclose the taxonomy
eligibility and taxonomy alignment of its economic activities for 2024.

The Green Asset Ratio (GAR) serves as a benchmark and reporting metric for taxonomy alignment. It describes the share of
RBHU Group's green taxonomy-aligned business relative to the covered assets. However, the GARs disclosed by the Bank for
2024 is mostly based on retail exposure, as well as general-purpose exposure to non-financial undertakings which were subject
to the Directive 2014/95/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 22 October 2014 amending Directive 2013/34/EU
as regards disclosure of non-financial and diversity information by certain large undertakings and groups the Non-Financial
Reporting Directive (NFRD; now CSRD). Loans to smaller companies and non-EU businesses, for instance, are not included the
2024 disclosure, which can distort the picture enormously depending on a banking group's key activities. Furthermore, the GAR
does not reflect the fact that RBHU Group focused on the economic ESG transformation of its customers. In particular, RBHU
Group supported undertakings that are already on the path to sustainability but whose transactions were not yet completely
green according to the definitions of the EU Taxonomy Regulation.

The Bank's engagement with clients on the EU Taxonomy involves educating them about the classification system for
sustainable activities that are relevant for the sector, and its importance in aligning investments with the EU's environmental
goals from the perspective of a financial institution. The 'ESG experts’ support clients, especially but not restricted to clients in
the real estate and electric utilities sectors, by providing guidance on how their activities can meet the taxonomy criteria,
thereby facilitating access to sustainable finance and enhancing transparency.

I. Mandatory disclosure

RBHU Group disclosed all key performance indicators (KPIs) in accordance with the Disclosures Delegated Act (Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178 of 6 July 2021). This regulation supplements Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European
Parliament and of the Council by specifying the content and presentation of information to be disclosed by undertakings
subject to Articles 19a or 29a of Directive 2013/34/EU concerning environmentally sustainable economic activities and
specifying the methodology to comply with that disclosure obligation. For additional information and improved clarity, the
disclosure of these quantitative KPIs was supplemented by qualitative information pursuant to Annex XI of the Disclosures
Delegated Act. For 2024, the Bank disclosed information on taxonomy eligibility and alignment with regard to the first two
environmental objectives - climate change mitigation and climate change adaptation. Information available for the Bank on
taxonomy for the other four environmental objectives is still very limited.

An overview of the relevant key figures and templates that are reported in accordance with Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy
Regulation and the supplementary Disclosure Delegated Act for 2024 is available in the chapter "Overview of relevant KPIs and

templates”. The figures for the main KPI GAR stock and the additional KPI GAR flow are shown below.

Green Asset Ratio stock and flow

Turnover GAR KPI CapEx GAR KPI
2024 2023 2024 2023
Main KPI GAR stock 0.27 % 0.40 %
Additional KPI GAR flow 0.26 % 0.26 %

Il. Details about templates and covered exposures as well as information on data
sources and current data limitations

All EU Taxonomy Regulation KPIs for 2024 were determined in accordance with the legal requirements as set out in the
Disclosures Delegated Act, as well as on turnover-based and capital expenditure-based (CapEx) information disclosed by the
clients. Furthermore, information on financed nuclear and gas economic activities is reported, as required by the Delegated
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Regulation. Detailed information on the calculations as per the qualitative disclosures required by Annex Xl of the Delegated
Regulation can be found separately for each KPI below.

RBHU Group's approach for determining Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-aligned economic
activities, assets and economic sectors (Template 0-2)

RBHU Group's banking book was used to determine its taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned economic activities. Total
covered assets were identified as per the requirements of the full GAR disclosure. Exposures towards central banks,
supranational institutions, the central government, and assets held for trading were excluded. The remaining covered assets
formed the denominator in the formula for calculating the GAR.

All the taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned economic activities were included in the numerator for calculating the GAR.
They were defined as covered assets additionally belonging to one of the following categories:

Taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned economic activities of CSRD undertakings

In accordance with Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation, the disclosure was based on the obligation to publish
non-financial information pursuant to Articles 19a and 29a of Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 26 June 2013 on the annual financial statements, consolidated financial statements and related
reports of certain types of undertakings, amending Directive 2006/43/EC of the European Parliament and of the
Council and repealing Council Directives 78/660/EEC and 83/349/EEC. While for 2023, these articles were set out in
the NFRD, the disclosure for 2024 was based on the CSRD, which replaced the respective Articles 19a and 29a.

Taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned economic activities in retail banking
Taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned economic activities related to local and regional government financing

Real estate collaterals obtained by taking possession in exchange for the cancellation of debt and held for sale.

In addition, derivatives (not held for trading), on-demand interbank loans, cash and cash-related assets and other assets (e.g.
goodwill, commodities) were also excluded from the numerator, but were included in the calculation of the denominator for
the Green Asset Ratio. Furthermore, no exposures to non-EU or to small and medium-sized enterprises were taken into
consideration.

If the purpose was known at transaction level and was consistent with the defined activities of the EU Taxonomy Regulation or
the supplementary delegated regulation - for example, a property loan (acquisition and ownership of a building) - RBHU Group
took into account exposures to the extent that taxonomy eligibility and taxonomy alignment could be demonstrated for the
underlying transaction. In cases where a transaction qualified for more than one environmental objective, RBHU Group
assigned the transaction, or an appropriate portion of it, to the most relevant objective to prevent double counting. The
decision on which environmental goal is considered the most relevant is made based on expert opinion during the assessment
and should reflect the purpose of the transaction.

For transactions conducted for general purposes - for example, for granting a working capital facility - RBHU Group took into
account the relevant taxonomy KPIs for taxonomy eligibility and taxonomy alignment that were provided or disclosed by the
counterparties.

The relevant taxonomy KPIs for general-purpose transactions, including investment (CapEx) and turnover KPIs for non-financial
counterparties, as well as taxonomy specific KPIs for financial counterparties, were gathered through an internal data
collection project and supplemented by an external data provider.

In the disclosure for 2024, it was possible to include KPIs for taxonomy alignment for the first two environmental objectives of
financial counterparties for the first time. These were published in 2024 (for the 2023 financial year). Regarding taxonomy
eligibility, both financial and non-financial counterparties published KPIs for the four new environmental objectives for the first
time in 2024 (for the 2023 financial year). Non-financial undertakings will be required to publish KPIs for taxonomy alignment
for these four new environmental objectives in 2025 (for the 2024 financial year), while financial undertakings will be required
to do so by 2026 (for the 2025 financial year).

The share of RBHU Group's exposures to non-CSRD undertakings for 2024 was material. The gradual implementation of the
CSRD is expected to improve the KPIs, as it will also significantly increase the number of enterprises to be considered.

As structured data availability remains limited, in particular regarding the evidence required to assess use-of-proceeds
transactions, and given the limitations described above, RBHU Group's relevant portfolio could not be considered in full for the
GAR assessment. However, RBHU Group along with RBI is consistently working on improving the data situation. Furthermore, it
is expected that the share of taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned exposures will change accordingly and increase in the
future as more information is likely to be disclosed by customers.
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The allocation of NACE codes, as disclosed in template 2 for the GAR sector information, is done based on the main business of
the counterparty which is identified via information from local public registries or based on data from an external data
provider.

Derivation of taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned economic

activities
100%
34%
B0 e
60%
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numerator (e.g.
derivatives)

This chart refers to the disclosure of the taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned economic activities on CapEx-based indicators. The percentage figures in the chart
above refer to the share of the respective position in relation to RBHU Group's total assets. For the calculation of the taxonomy-aligned value (yellow), i.e. the Green Asset
Ratio, the number in the qualitative chart refers to covered assets (denominator), not total assets.

Exposures to Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets (GAR (stock)) (Template 3)

The RBHU Group's (Raiffeisen Bank Hungary and its affiliates) assets with exposures to taxonomy-aligned economic activities
amounted to 12,160.83 million HUF and are used int the calculation of the GAR (CapEx). In accordance with the instructions set
out in Annex V of the Delegated Regulation, the exposures to be included in the numerator encompass banking book loans and
advances to CSRD-relevant clients, households (limited to loans collateralized by residential real estate and loans granted for
home renovation purposes), and loans and advances to local governments.
All retail exposures relevant to the EU Taxonomy were analyzed under the relevant economic activities and environmental
objectives in accordance with the Disclosures Delegated Act and included in the CapEx as well as in the turnover GAR. With
regard to compliance with minimum social safeguards (MS), the interpretation of the Platform on Sustainable Finance as set
out in the Final Report on Minimum Safeguards (available at sustainable-finance-platform-finance-report) was followed, which
does not cover the application of the MS criteria for retail exposures. The total amount of taxonomy-aligned economic
activities in the retail sector amounted to 2,738.8 million HUF out of a total of 12,160.83 million HUF. The GAR (CapEx) amounted
to 0.40 per cent, of which 0.09 percentage points corresponded to the contribution of taxonomy-aligned economic activities in
the retail sector.

RBHU Group has analysed retail exposures in detail, particularly house purchase loans. Besides identifying thresholds for Nearly
Zero Energy Buildings (NZEB), analyses identifying the top 15 per cent of the national building stock in terms of Primary Energy
Demand (PED) for economic activity 7.7 (acquisition and ownership of buildings) were included in the calculation, where such
analyses were based on transparent real data in line with the relevant FAQs. It was not possible to collect the necessary
information from retail customers regarding building renovation loans as well as car loans given the detailed and high
demands. Such financing was therefore still generally recognized as taxonomy non-aligned.

The physical risk assessment for the retail segment was performed with the help of an external provider. A physical risk
assessment, including a vulnerability analysis, was conducted for the relevant financed properties both within and outside the
EU in accordance with Appendix A of Annex | of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2139 of 4 June 2021 supplementing
Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and of the Council by establishing the technical screening criteria for
determining the conditions under which an economic activity qualifies as contributing substantially to climate change
mitigation or climate change adaptation, and for determining whether that economic activity causes no significant harm to
any of the other environmental objectives. The physical risk assessment considered acute and chronic risks for the relevant
hazards as set out in that Appendix and used an Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) RCP 8.5 scenario. The
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assessment was not passed if the seriousness of a threat was considered very high and no corresponding risk mitigation
measures were taken.

By reference to internally available data, RBHU Group's CSRD client base was determined according to the following criteria:

The country in which the counterparty is registered must be an EU member state

The business partner's total assets (on a consolidated basis) must be more than or equal to € 25 million or its total
revenue (turnover) must be more than or equal to € 50 million. For insurance and reinsurance undertakings, the gross
premiums written were used instead of revenue, while the gross operating result was used for the other financial
institutions

The relevant thresholds as set out in Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June
2013 on the annual financial statements, consolidated financial statements and related reports of certain types of
undertakings, amending Directive 2006/43/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Council
Directives 78/660/EEC and 83/349/EEC (the Accounting Directive) were updated by the Commission Delegated
Directive (EU) 2023/2775 of 17 October 2023 amending Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the
Council as regards the adjustments of the size criteria for micro, small, medium-sized and large undertakings or
groups

The customer was either a capital market-oriented company, a credit institution or an insurance undertaking

The customer had more than 500 employees on an average basis (on a consolidated basis).

RBHU Group also considered subsidiaries that were fully consolidated under CSRD customers and did not publish/provide
taxonomy KPIs on a stand-alone basis in a sustainability statement.

The disclosure of taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned exposures must be based on actual information provided by the
financial or non-financial undertaking. RBHU Group, along with RBI collected such data as part of the data collection project. In
addition, third-party data providers were used to obtain information for the assessment of taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-
aligned economic activities.

Exposures to Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets (GAR (flow)) (Template 4)

The GAR KPI flow was calculated in line with the GAR KPI stock. However, unlike GAR KPI stock, it only considered those positions
that were newly concluded in the 2024 financial year.

Off-balance-sheet exposures to Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets (Template 5)

RBHU Group analysed its off-balance sheet exposure, both with purpose known and general purpose with regard to taxonomy
alignment for the first two environmental objectives - climate change mitigation and climate change adaptation - and the
taxonomy eligibility of the four new environmental objectives. For the disclosure of off-balance-sheet exposures, a distinction
was made between financial guarantees and assets under management.

The methodology for calculating the KPI for financial guarantees corresponded to the methodology laid down for loans and
advances, and for bonds. However, it was applied to the underlying transaction of the financial guarantees. If RBHU Group had
no data on the specific purpose of the underlying transaction, the counterparties' KPIs were used. For the earmarked
exposures, the counterparties' taxonomy data were collected internally as part of the data collection project and by an
external data provider.

The KPI for assets under management was calculated in line with the methodology determined for asset managers. The
numerator comprised the weighted average value of the investments in the taxonomy-aligned economic activities of the
enterprises in which investments were made. Reference was made here to the information on the taxonomy eligibility and
taxonomy alignment of the respective counterparties (financial and non-financial CSRD undertakings) and the corresponding
KPIs were used. For the earmarked exposures, data was also collected internally as part of the data collection project and by
an external data provider. RBHU Group is committed to continuously improving its own processes and the topic of ESG data
availability and quality as part of a constructive dialog with the relevant stakeholders.

Exposures to Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets for
nuclear and gas economic activities (Templates in accordance with Annex XII of the Disclosures
Delegated Act)

The EU Taxonomy includes six economic activities in the nuclear and gas sector. Companies operating in these sectors that are
subject to taxonomy disclosures are therefore also required to publish EU Taxonomy data on taxonomy eligibility and
taxonomy alignment for their relevant nuclear and gas activities.
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RBHU Group's sustainability concept in the nuclear and gas sector is detailed in the RBI Group's ESG framework (business policy
on nuclear energy and business policy on oil & gas). Our parent company takes a restrictive approach towards the nuclear
sector in accordance with its Code of Conduct. RBI implemented this restrictive approach for the following entities and their
relevant suppliers in particular: nuclear power plants (NPPs), companies mining, processing and trading with nuclear fuel, or
companies managing nuclear waste (storage of spent fuel derived from NPPs).

The above-mentioned policy takes into consideration that nuclear power plants are usually operated by electricity companies
or holdings. As a consequence, thereof, RBHU Group seeks to continue its cooperation with these electricity companies or
holdings, albeit with strict segregation from nuclear power plants and connected activities (i.e. any financing to electricity
providers that process energy from nuclear sources is only allowed if the purpose of the financing is not used for or related to
nuclear power plants).

Accordingly, any resultant exposure only stemmed from taxonomy KPIs for the nuclear sector as published by the companies in
question. In addition, RBI has implemented a sector-specific group policy for the gas sector, in which it addresses the handling
of oil and gas economic activities.

In 2024 RBHU Group had no taxonomy-eligible or taxonomy-aligned exposures earmarked in the gas sector. Accordingly, only
the taxonomy KPIs published by the companies were used for the gas sector. KPIs for the nuclear and gas sectors were
collected internally as part of the data collection project and supplemented by an external data provider. For the specific
nuclear and gas activities of the relevant counterparties, all revenue-based and investment-based taxonomy KPIs were
included regarding their taxonomy eligibility and taxonomy alignment. For 2024, this also involved the respective KPIs of
financial undertakings, including other credit institutions for the first time.

lll. Adjustments in the presentation of information compared to the previous annual
reporting period

The EU Taxonomy is a novel framework, and the interpretation of its requirements is still subject to change. Further guidance,
such as those provided by the European Commission in the FAQs can provide clarity and has been continuously monitored and
evaluated by the Bank. The disclosure in accordance with Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy for 2024 reflected the Bank's current
understanding of the EU Taxonomy. The FAQs of the European Commission were taken into account, insofar as the guidance
does not exceed the requirements of the Taxonomy Regulation and Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178 or
contradict the requirements of those regulations or explanations provided in previous FAQS.

Overview of relevant KPIs and templates:

Template
number Designation Brief explanation

0 Summary of KPIs Summary of all relevant GAR KPIs

1 Assets for the calculation of GAR Summary of all relevant assets used for calculation of GAR

2 GAR sector information Summary of exposures in the non-trading book relative to the sectors covered by the Taxonomy (NACE sectors,
four breakdown levels)

3 GAR KPI stock Exposures to Taxonomy-eligible economic activities/covered assets for all six' environmental objectives and
Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets for the first two environmental objectives climate change
mitigation and climate change adaptation (turnover and CapEx GAP (stock))

4 GAR KPI flow Exposures to Taxonomy-eligible economic activities/covered assets for all six environmental objectives and
Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets for the first two environmental objectives climate change
mitigation and climate change adaptation (turnover and CapEx GAP (flow))

5 KPI off-balance-sheet exposures Exposures to Taxonomy-eligible economic activities/covered assets for all six' environmental objectives and
Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets for the first two environmental objectives climate change
mitigation and climate change adaptation (off-balance): 0.08 per cent (turnover) and 0.33 per cent (CapEx) (GAR
financial guarantees)

Exposures to Taxonomy-eligible economic activities/covered assets for all six1 environmental objectives and
Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets for the first two environmental objectives climate change
mitigation and climate change adaptation (off-balance): 0 per cent (turnover) and 0 per cent (CapEx) (GAR assets
under management)

6 KPI on fee and commission income  Exposures to Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets for all six’

from services other than lending environmental objectives (turnover and CapEx GAR (fee and commission income)) This indicator does not have to
and asset management be reported until 2026 for the 2025 financial year.

7 KPI trading book portfolio Exposures to Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-aligned economic activities/covered assets for all six’

environmental objectives (turnover and CapEx GAR (trading book portfolio). This indicator does not have to be
reported until the 2025 financial year.

1 Climate change mitigation, climate change adaptation, sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources, transition to a circular economy, pollution
prevention and control, and protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems
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Template 0 - Summary of KPIs

31.12.2024 Total % of assets excluded from % of assets excluded
environmentally the numerator of the GAR from the denominator of
sustainable % coverage (over (Article 7(2) and (3) and  the GAR (Article 7(1) and
assets (HUF min) KpPI* KPI® total assets® Section 1.1.2. of Annex V)  Section 1.2.4 of Annex V)
Green asset ratio (GAR)
Main KPI stock 8234 0.27% 0.40% 65.81% 41.70% 34.19%
31.12.2024 Total
environmentally % of assets excluded from % of assets excluded
sustainable the numerator of the GAR  from the denominator of
activities (HUF % coverage (over (Article 7(2) and (3) and  the GAR (Article 7(1) and
min) KPI KPI total assets) Section 1.1.2. of Annex V)  Section 1.2.4 of Annex V)
Additional KPIs  GAR (flow) 1281 0.26% 0.26% 99.66% 78.09% 0.34%

Trading book’

Financial guarantees 182 0.08% 0.33%
Assets under

management - 0.00% 0.00%
Fees and commissions

income?

1- For credit institutions that do not meet the conditions of Article 94(1) of the CRR or the conditions set out in Article 325a(1) of the CRR

2 - Fees and commissions income from services other than lending and assets under management

Institutions shall disclose forward-looking information for these KPIs, including information in terms of targets, together with relevant explanations on the methodology applied.
3 - % of assets covered by the KPI over banks’ total assets

4 - based on the Turnover KPI of the counterparty

5 - based on the CapEx KPI of the counterparty, except for lending activities where Turnover KP! is used for general lending

Note 1: Across the reporting templates: cells shaded in black should not be reported.

Note 2: Fees and Commissions (sheet 6) and Trading Book (sheet 7) KPIs shall only apply as of 2026. SMEs'inclusion in these KPIs will only apply subject to a positive result of an impact assessment.

For the financial year 2024, the % of assets excluded from the numerator of the GAR (Article 7(2) and (3) and Section 1.1.2. of
Annex V) also includes exposures to undertakings that are not obliged to publish non-financial information pursuant to Article
19a or 29a of Directive 2013/34/EU as referred to in Article 7(3) of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178.

Disclosure template 1 - assets for the calculation of GAR

1. This template shall include information for loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments in the banking book, towards financial corporates, non-
financial corporates (NFC), including SMEs, households (including residential real estate, house renovation loans and motor vehicle loans only) and local governments/
municipalities (house financing).

2. The following accounting categories of financial assets should be considered: Financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and non-trading
financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss, and real estate collaterals obtained by credit institutions by taking possession in exchange in of
cancellation of debts.

3. Banks with non-EU subsidiary should provide this information separately for exposures towards non-EU counterparties. For non-EU exposures, while there are
additional challenges in terms of absence of common disclosure requirements and methodology, as the EU taxonomy and the NFRD apply only at EU level, given the
relevance of these exposures for those credit institutions with non-EU subsidiaries, these institutions should disclose a separate GAR for non-EU exposures, on a best
effort basis, in the form of estimates and ranges, using proxies, and explaining the assumptions, caveats and limitations

4. For motor vehicle loans, institutions shall only include those exposures generated after the date of application of the disclosure

For the financial year 2024, collateral obtained by taking possession as set out in row 31is not included in row 1 (which includes
loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments).

For the financial year 2024, assets related to household exposures which are not relevant for the GAR calculation (i.e. exposures
not included in the green asset ratio for retail exposures as set out in section 1.2.1.3. of Annex V of the Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2021/2178) are included in row 47 (other categories of assets) and not in row 49 (assets not covered for GAR
calculation), as these exposures are not excluded from the calculation of the numerator and denominator of the key
performance indicators in accordance with Article 7(1) of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178.
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Assets for the calculation of GAR (CapEX)

31/12/2024 Total [gross] Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
?n:rg::i Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which Of which
in HUF million Proceeds transitional enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator
Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 1126 109,85 416 704,46 12160,83 273879 2144,34 4 430,10
1 calculation
2 Financial undertakings 588 545,62 12 865,05 19,19 - - -
3 Credit institutions 588 545,62 12 865,05 1919 - - -
4 Loans and advances 210 506,78 - - - - -
5 Debt securities, including UoP 378 038,84 12 865,05 19,19 - - -
6 Equity instruments - - - - - -
7 Other financial corporations - - - - - -
of which investment firms - - - - - -
9 Loans and advances - - - - - -
10 Debt securities, including UoP - - - - - -
mn Equity instruments - - - S - -
12 of which management companies - - - - - -
13 Loans and advances - - - - - -
14 Debt securities, including UoP - - - - - -
15 Equity instruments - - - - - -
16 of which insurance undertakings - - - - - -
7 Loans and advances - - - - - -
18 Debt securities, including UoP - - - - - -
19 Equity instruments - - - S - -
20 Non-financial undertakings 151376,62 24 604,39 9 402,85 - 214434 4 430,10
21 Loans and advances 64 661,85 14 360,54 367287 - 660,34 1577,66
22 Debt securities, including UoP 86 714,77 10 243,85 572998 - 148399 285244
23 Equity instruments - - - = - -
24 Households 381920,38 379 235,01 273879 2738,79 - -
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 380 794,03 379 235,01 273879 273879 - -
26 of which building renovation loans - - - - - -
27 of which motor vehicle loans 1126,35 - - - - -
28 Local governments financing 426723 - - - - -
29 Housing financing 4267723 - - - - -
30 Other local government financing - - - - - -
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 120853 _ _ _ _ _
31 immovable properties !
. s:izt:ﬁen)::tl::ed from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the 1949 373,93 _ _ _ _ _
33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings 1454105,24 - - - - -
34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations 1394 747,07 = - - - -
35 Loans and advances 1204 653,27 = = = = =
36 of which loans collateralized by commercial immovable property 278 023,92 = = = = =
37 of which building renovation loans - = = = = =
38 Debt securities 189 544,27 = = = = =
39 Equity instruments 549,53 = = = = =
40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations 18 742,69 = = = = =
Pl Loans and advances 163344 = = = = =
42 Debt securities 17 109,25 = = = = =
43 Equity instruments - - - = = =
44 Derivatives 92148,75 = = = = =
45 On demand interbank loans 27 386,86 - - - - -
46 Cash and cash-related assets 58 272,27 - - - - -
47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.) 317 460,81 - - - - -
48 Total GAR assets 3076 692,31 416 704,46 12160,83 2738,79 214434 4 430,10
49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation 1598 483,92 - - - - -
50 Central governments and Supranational issuers 910 018,69 = = = - -
51 Central banks exposure 606 059,72 - - - - -
52 Trading book 82 405,50 - - - - -
53 Total assets 4 675176,22 416 704,46 12160,83 2738,79 214434 4430,10
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure s o o - - .
obligations
54  Financial guarantees 215 351,46 121797 71,08 - 333,17 194,88
55  Assets under management 656 964,65 - - - - -

56 of which debt securities - — — — — —

57 of which equity instruments — — — — — —
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31/12/2024 Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)

Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation 0,26 - - -
2 Financial undertakings 0,26 - - -
3 Credit institutions 0,26 - - _
4 Loans and advances - - - -
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,226 - - -
6 Equity instruments - - o -
7 Other financial corporations - - - -
8 of which investment firms - - - -
9 Loans and advances - - - -
10 Debt securities, including UoP - - - -
mn Equity instruments - - o -
12 of which management companies - - - -
13 Loans and advances - - - -
14 Debt securities, including UoP - - - -
15 Equity instruments - - - -
16 of which insurance undertakings - - - -
17 Loans and advances - - - -
18 Debt securities, including UoP - - - -
19 Equity instruments - - o -
20 Non-financial undertakings - - - -
21 Loans and advances - - - -
22 Debt securities, including UoP - - - -
23 Equity instruments - - - -
24 Households - - - -
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property - - - -
26 of which building renovation loans - - - -
27 of which motor vehicle loans - = o =
28 Local governments financing - - - -
29 Housing financing - - - N
30 Other local government financing - - - -
31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties - - - -
32  Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) - - - -
33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings - = = -
34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations - - - -
35 Loans and advances - = o -
36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property - - - -
37 of which building renovation loans - - = =
38 Debt securities - = = .
39 Equity instruments - = - -
40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations - - - -
M Loans and advances - = = -
42 Debt securities - = = =
43 Equity instruments o - - -
44 Derivatives - = = -
45 On demand interbank loans - = - -
46 Cash and cash-related assets - = = .
47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.) - - - -
48 Total GAR assets 0,26 - o -
49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation - = = -
50 Central governments and Supranational issuers = = - -
51 Central banks exposure = = - _
52 Trading book = s - .
53 Total assets 0,26 - - -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations = = = =
54 Financial guarantees - - - -
55  Assets under management - - - -
56 of which debt securities — — — —
57 of which equity instruments — — — —
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31/12/2024 Water and marine resources (WTR)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 Circular economy (CE)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 Pollution (PPC)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which Of which
in HUF million Proceeds transitional enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator
1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation 416 704,72 12160,83 273879 214434 4 430,10
2 Financial undertakings 12 865,31 19,19 - - -
3 Credit institutions 12 865,31 19,19 - - -
4 Loans and advances - - - - -
5 Debt securities, including UoP 12 865,31 19,19 - B -
6 Equity instruments - - = - -
7 Other financial corporations - - - - -
8 of which investment firms - - - - .
9 Loans and advances - - - - -
10 Debt securities, including UoP - - - - -
mn Equity instruments - - = - -
12 of which management companies - - - - -
13 Loans and advances - - - - -
14 Debt securities, including UoP - - - - -
15 Equity instruments - - - - -
16 of which insurance undertakings - - - - .
17 Loans and advances - - - - -
18 Debt securities, including UoP - - - - -
19 Equity instruments - - = - -
20 Non-financial undertakings 24 604,39 9 402,85 - 214434 4 430,10
21 Loans and advances 14 360,54 367287 - 660,34 1577,66
22 Debt securities, including UoP 10 243,85 572998 - 148399 285244
23 Equity instruments - - - - -
24 Households 379 235,01 273879 2738,79 - -
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 379 235,01 273879 273879 - -
26 of which building renovation loans - - - - _
27 of which motor vehicle loans - - - - .
28 Local governments financing - - = - -
29 Housing financing - - - - -
30 Other local government financing - - - - -
31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties - - - - -
32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) - - - B -
33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings - - B 5 -
34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations = = = = =
35 Loans and advances - - = = -
36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property = = - - -
37 of which building renovation loans - - - = -
38 Debt securities - - = = -
39 Equity instruments - = - - -
40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations - - - - -
a4 Loans and advances - - = = =
42 Debt securities - - - = .
43 Equity instruments - - = - -
44 Derivatives - - = = -
45 On demand interbank loans - - = - -
46 Cash and cash-related assets - - = = -
47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.) - - - = =
48 Total GAR assets 416 704,72 12160,83 2738,79 214434 4 430,10
49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation - - = = -
50 Central governments and Supranational issuers - - - B =
51 Central banks exposure - - = - -
52 Trading book - = = - -
53 Total assets 416 704,72 12160,83 2738,79 214434 4430,10
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations S = o o =
54 Financial guarantees 1217,97 711,08 - 33317 194,88
55  Assets under management - - - - -
56 of which debt securities — — — — —
57 of which equity instruments — — — — —
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31/12/2024 Total [gross] Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
?r:gi:g Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which Of which

in HUF million Proceeds transitional enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator
; tg:}cr;smatliwodnadvonces, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 1126 109,85 42155886 823380 273879 544,84 325928
2 Financial undertakings 588 545,62 12 861,73 18,17 — — —
3 Credit institutions 588 545,62 1286173 1817 - — —
4 Loans and advances 210 506,78 — — — — —
5 Debt securities, including UoP 378 038,84 1286173 18,17 — — —
6 Equity instruments — — — = — —
7 Other financial corporations — — - — — —
8 of which investment firms — — — — — —
9 Loans and advances — — — — — —
10 Debt securities, including UoP — — - — — —
n Equity instruments — — — — _ _
12 of which management companies — — — — — —
13 Loans and advances — — — — — —
14 Debt securities, including UoP — — — — — —
15 Equity instruments — — - = — —
16 of which insurance undertakings — — — — — —
7 Loans and advances — — — — — —
18 Debt securities, including UoP — — - — — —
19 Equity instruments — — — — — —
20 Non-financial undertakings 151 376,62 29 462,12 5476,84 - 544,84 3259,28
21 Loans and advances 64 661,85 2254299 3117,49 — 0,05 144842
22 Debt securities, including UoP 86 714,77 691913 235935 - 544,79 1810,87
23 Equity instruments — — - = — —
24 Households 381920,38 379 235,01 273879 2738,79 - -
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 380 794,03 379 235,01 273879 273879 - -
26 of which building renovation loans — — - — — —
27 of which motor vehicle loans 1126,35 — — — — _
28 Local governments financing 4 267,23 —_ —_ — —_ —
29 Housing financing 426723 — — — — _
30 Other local government financing — — — — — —

Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial

31 immovable properties 1208,53 - - - - -
» ng‘eot:];);ctlzged from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the 1949 373,93 _ _ _ _ _
33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings 1454 105,24 = - - - —
34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMES) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations 1394 747,07 = — — — -
35 Loans and advances 1204 653,27 = = = = =
36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property 278 023,92 = = = = =
37 of which building renovation loans — — — - = =
38 Debt securities 189 544,27 = — — _ _
39 Equity instruments 549,53 = — — — _
40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations 18 742,69 = = - — —
M Loans and advances 163344 — — = — —
42 Debt securities 17109,25 = = = = =
43 Equity instruments — — = = — —
44 Derivatives 92148,75 — - - - =
45 On demand interbank loans 27 386,86 — - = = —
46 Cash and cash-related assets 58 272,27 - - - - -
47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.) 317 460,81 — — — — =
48 Total GAR assets 3076 692,31 421558,86 8233,80 2738,79 544,84 3259,28
49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation 1598 483,92 — - = — —
50 Central governments and Supranational issuers 910 018,69 = = = = =
51 Central banks exposure 606 059,72 = = = = =
52 Trading book 82 405,50 — — — — —
53 Total assets 4 675176,22 421558,86 8233,80 2738,79 544,84 3259,28

Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure _ _ _ _ _ _

obligations
54  Financial guarantees 215 351,46 485,96 181,96 - 59,01 119,89
55  Assets under management 656 964,65 e — — — —
56 of which debt securities — — — — — —
57 of which equity instruments — — — — — —
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31/12/2024

in HUF million

Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation 0,26 — — —
2 Financial undertakings 0,26 - — —
3 Credit institutions 0,226 — — —
4 Loans and advances — — — —
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,26 — — —
6 Equity instruments - — — —
7 Other financial corporations — — — _
8 of which investment firms — — — —
9 Loans and advances — — — —
10 Debt securities, including UoP — — — —
mn Equity instruments - — — —
12 of which management companies — — — —
13 Loans and advances — — — —
14 Debt securities, including UoP - — — —
15 Equity instruments — — — —
16 of which insurance undertakings — — — —
17 Loans and advances — — — —
18 Debt securities, including UoP — — — —
19 Equity instruments - — — —
20 Non-financial undertakings - - — —
pal Loans and advances — — — —
22 Debt securities, including UoP - — — —
23 Equity instruments — — — —
24 Households — — — —_
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property — — — —
26 of which building renovation loans — — — —
27 of which motor vehicle loans — = = —
28 Local governments financing - - — —
29 Housing financing — — — —
30 Other local government financing — — — —
31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties - - - -
32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) - - - -
33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings — = = —
34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations = — — —
35 Loans and advances — = = —
36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property — — — —
37 of which building renovation loans — = = —
38 Debt securities — = = =
39 Equity instruments = — — —
40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations — — — —
4 Loans and advances — - = =
42 Debt securities — — = —
43 Equity instruments — = — —
44 Derivatives - - = =
45 On demand interbank loans — - - =
46 Cash and cash-related assets — = = =
47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.) - - - -
48 Total GAR assets 0,26 - - -
49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation — = = =
50 Central governments and Supranational issuers - - = =
51 Central banks exposure - = — —
52 Trading book — = = —
53 Total assets 0,26 - - —

Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations = = = =
54 Financial guarantees — — — —
55  Assets under management — - — —
56 of which debt securities — — — —
57 of which equity instruments — — — —
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31/12/2024 Water and marine resources (WTR)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 Circular economy (CE)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 Pollution (PPC)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
in HUF million Proceeds enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation —

2 Financial undertakings -

3 Credit institutions -

4 Loans and advances -

5 Debt securities, including UoP —

6 Equity instruments —

7 Other financial corporations -

8 of which investment firms -

9 Loans and advances -

10 Debt securities, including UoP —

n Equity instruments —

12 of which management companies -

13 Loans and advances -

14 Debt securities, including UoP —

15 Equity instruments -

16 of which insurance undertakings —

17 Loans and advances -

18 Debt securities, including UoP —

19 Equity instruments —

20 Non-financial undertakings —

Al Loans and advances -

22 Debt securities, including UoP —

23 Equity instruments -

24 Households

25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property

26 of which building renovation loans

27 of which motor vehicle loans

28 Local governments financing —

29 Housing financing —

30 Other local government financing —

31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties -

32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) -

33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings

34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

35 Loans and advances

36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property

37 of which building renovation loans

38 Debt securities

39 Equity instruments

40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

4 Loans and advances

42 Debt securities

43 Equity instruments

44 Derivatives

45 On demand interbank loans

46 Cash and cash-related assets

47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.)

48 Total GAR assets —

49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation

50 Central governments and Supranational issuers

51 Central banks exposure

52 Trading book

53 Total assets -
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations

54 Financial guarantees -

55  Assets under management -

56 of which debt securities -

57 of which equity instruments —
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31/12/2024 TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)
Of which towards taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Of which environmentally sustainable (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which Of which
in HUF million Proceeds transitional enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator
1 Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR calculation 4215591 8233,80 273879 544,84 3259,28
2 Financial undertakings 12 861,98 18,17 - - -
3 Credit institutions 12 861,98 18,17 — — —
4 Loans and advances - — — — —
5 Debt securities, including UoP 12 861,98 18,17 — — —
6 Equity instruments — - = — —
7 Other financial corporations — — — — —
8 of which investment firms — — — — —
9 Loans and advances — — — — —
10 Debt securities, including UoP — — — — —
mn Equity instruments — - = — —
12 of which management companies - — — — —
13 Loans and advances — — — — —
14 Debt securities, including UoP — - — — —
15 Equity instruments — — — — —
16 of which insurance undertakings — — — — —
17 Loans and advances — — — — —
18 Debt securities, including UoP — — — — —
19 Equity instruments — - = — —
20 Non-financial undertakings 29 462,12 5476,84 — 544,84 3259,28
21 Loans and advances 2254299 311749 — 0,05 1448,42
22 Debt securities, including UoP 691913 2359,35 - 544,79 1810,87
23 Equity instruments — — — — —
24 Households 379 235,01 273879 2738,79 - -
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 379 235,01 273879 273879 — —
26 of which building renovation loans — — — — _
27 of which motor vehicle loans — — — — —
28 Local governments financing — — — — —
29 Housing financing — — — — —
30 Other local government financing — — — — —
31 Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial immovable properties - - - - -
32 Assets excluded from the numerator for GAR calculation (covered in the denominator) - - - - -
33 Financial and Non-financial undertakings — - = = —
34 SMEs and NFCs (other than SMEs) not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations = — — — —
35 Loans and advances — — = = —
36 of which loans collateralised by commercial immovable property = = — — —
37 of which building renovation loans — — — = —
38 Debt securities — — = = —
39 Equity instruments — = — — —
40 Non-EU country counterparties not subject to NFRD disclosure obligations — — — — —
a4 Loans and advances — — = = =
42 Debt securities — — — = —
43 Equity instruments — — = — —
44 Derivatives — — = = =
45 On demand interbank loans - - - = =
46 Cash and cash-related assets — — = = =
47 Other categories of assets (e.g. Goodwill, commodities etc.) - — — — —
48 Total GAR assets 4215591 8 233,80 2738,79 544,84 3259,28
49  Assets not covered for GAR calculation — - = = —
50 Central governments and Supranational issuers — - = = —
51 Central banks exposure — - = — —
52 Trading book — — = = —
53 Total assets 4215591 8 233,80 2738,79 544,84 3259,28
Off-balance sheet exposures - Undertakings subject to NFRD disclosure obligations = = = = =
54 Financial guarantees 485,96 181,96 - 59,01 119,89
55  Assets under management — — — — —
56 of which debt securities — — — — —
57 of which equity instruments — — — — —
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Template 2 - GAR sector information

1. Credit institutions shall disclose in this template information on exposures in the banking book towards those sectors covered by the Taxonomy (NACE sectors 4 levels
of detail), using the relevant NACE Codes on the basis of the principal activity of the counterparty

2. The counterparty NACE sector allocation shall be based exclusively on the nature of the immediate counterparty. The classification of the exposures incurred jointly
by more than one obligor shall be done on the basis of the characteristics of the obligor that was the more relevant, or determinant, for the institution to grant the
exposure. The distribution of jointly incurred exposures by NACE codes shall be driven by the characteristics of the more relevant or determinant obligor. Institutions
shall disclose information by NACE codes with the level of disaggregation required in the template.

GAR sector information (CapEX)

a b c d
31/12/2024 Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Breakdown by sector - Non-Financial corporates (Subject to  SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NACE 4 digits level (code and label) NFRD) NFRD
[Gross] carrying amount [Gross] carrying amount
Of which Of which
environmentally environmentally
in HUF million sustainable (CCM) sustainable (CCM)
1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products 889,14 317,28 -
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing - 24,72 =
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles 4 516,11 108387 = =
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities 4 485,95 - =
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities 200,59 — =
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis 779297 226113 — —
7 7010 - Activities of head offices 855,02 181,36 =
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities 463843 432920 = =
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis 1226,01 120523 =
10 8690 - Other human health activities 019 0,06 =
a b c d
31/12/2024 Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Breakdown by sector - Non-Financial corporates (Subject to  SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NACE 4 digits level (code and label) NFRD) NFRD
[Gross] carrying amount [Gross] carrying amount
Of which Of which
environmentally environmentally
in HUF million sustainable (CCA) sustainable (CCA)
1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products - —
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing - —
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles - -
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities - —
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities — —
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis — —
7 7010 - Activities of head offices - -
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities — —
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis — -
10 8690 - Other human health activities — —
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a b

c d

31/12/2024

Breakdown by sector -
NACE 4 digits level (code and label)

in HUF million

Water and marine resources (WTR)

Non-Financial corporates (Subject to
NFRD)

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (WTR)

SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NFRD

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (WTR)

1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products

2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing

2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles

5229 - Other transportation support activities

6190 - Other telecommunications activities

6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis

7010 - Activities of head offices

7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities

olo|v|lo|o|s]|w]|n

7120 - Technical testing and analysis

8690 - Other human health activities

a b

c d

31/12/2024

Breakdown by sector -
NACE 4 digits level (code and label)

in HUF million

Circular economy (CE)

Non-Financial corporates (Subject to
NFRD)

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (CE)

SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NFRD

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (CE)

1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products

2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing

2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles

5229 - Other transportation support activities

6190 - Other telecommunications activities

6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis

N|olols|lw|Nn

7010 - Activities of head offices

7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities

o | o

7120 - Technical testing and analysis

8690 - Other human health activities

31/12/2024

Breakdown by sector -
NACE 4 digits level (code and label)

in HUF million

Pollution (PPC)

Non-Financial corporates (Subject to
NFRD)

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (PPC)

SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NFRD

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (PPC)

1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products

2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing

2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles

5229 - Other transportation support activities

6190 - Other telecommunications activities

6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis

N|oloslw|Nn

7010 - Activities of head offices

7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities

o | o

7120 - Technical testing and analysis

8690 - Other human health activities
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c d

31/12/2024

Breakdown by sector -
NACE 4 digits level (code and label)

in HUF million

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)

Non-Financial corporates (Subject to
NFRD)

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (BIO)

SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NFRD

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (BIO)

1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products

2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing — —
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles — —
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities - —
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities — -
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis - —
7 7010 - Activities of head offices - -
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities — —
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis — —
10 8690 - Other human health activities — —
a b c d
31/12/2024 TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)
Breakdown by sector - Non-Financial corporates (Subject to  SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NACE 4 digits level (code and label) NFRD) NFRD
[Gross] carrying amount [Gross] carrying amount
Of which Of which
environmentally environmentally
sustainable (CCM sustainable (CCM
+CCA + WTR + CE +CCA + WTR + CE
in HUF million +PPC + BIO) +PPC + BIO)
1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products 889,14 317,28 = =
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing - 24,72 = =
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles 45161 108387 = =
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities 4 485,95 — = =
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities 200,59 - = =
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis 779297 226113 = =
7 7010 - Activities of head offices 855,02 181,36 = =
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities 463843 4329,20 = =
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis 1226,01 1205,23 = =
10 8690 - Other human health activities 019 0,06 = =
GAR sector information (turnover)
a b c d

31/12/2024

Breakdown by sector -
NACE 4 digits level (code and label)

in HUF million

Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)

Non-Financial corporates (Subject to
NFRD)

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (CCM)

SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NFRD

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (CCM)

1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products 354,18 738 = =
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing - 20,60 = =
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles 4 470,95 632,25 = =
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities 6 596,99 - = =
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities 238,80 19,10 = =
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis 8126,71 1618,67 = =
7 7010 - Activities of head offices 634376 3388 = =
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities 1855,37 1700,76 = =
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis 147537 144420 = =
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a b

c d

31/12/2024

Breakdown by sector -
NACE 4 digits level (code and label)

in HUF million

Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)

Non-Financial corporates (Subject to
NFRD)

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (CCA)

SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NFRD

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (CCA)

1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products

2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing — —
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles — —
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities - —
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities — -
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis - —
7 7010 - Activities of head offices - -
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities — —
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis — —
a b c d
31/12/2024 Water and marine resources (WTR)
Breakdown by sector - Non-Financial corporates (Subject to  SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NACE 4 digits level (code and label) NFRD) NFRD
[Gross] carrying amount [Gross] carrying amount
Of which Of which
environmentally environmentally
in HUF million sustainable (WTR) sustainable (WTR)
1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products — —
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing — —
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles — -
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities - —
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities - —
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis — -
7 7010 - Activities of head offices — —
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities - -
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis - -
a b c d
31/12/2024 Circular economy (CE)
Breakdown by sector - Non-Financial corporates (Subject to  SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NACE 4 digits level (code and label) NFRD) NFRD
[Gross] carrying amount [Gross] carrying amount
Of which Of which
environmentally environmentally
in HUF million sustainable (CE) sustainable (CE)
1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products — —
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing — —
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles — —
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities - —
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities — —
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis - -
7 7010 - Activities of head offices — -
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities - —
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis — —

Raiffeisen Group | Financial Year 2024



Consolidated non-financial statement

61

31/12/2024

Breakdown by sector -
NACE 4 digits level (code and label)

in HUF million

Pollution (PPC)

Non-Financial corporates (Subject to
NFRD)

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (PPC)

SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NFRD

[Gross] carrying amount
Of which

environmentally
sustainable (PCC)

1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products

2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing — —
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles — —
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities - —
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities — -
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis - —
7 7010 - Activities of head offices - -
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities — —
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis — —
a b c d
31/12/2024 Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Breakdown by sector - Non-Financial corporates (Subject to  SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NACE 4 digits level (code and label) NFRD) NFRD
[Gross] carrying amount [Gross] carrying amount
Of which Of which
environmentally environmentally
in HUF million sustainable (BIO) sustainable (BIO)
1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products — —
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing — —
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles — -
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities - —
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities - —
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis — -
7 7010 - Activities of head offices — —
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities — —
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis — —
a b c d
31/12/2024 TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)
Breakdown by sector - Non-Financial corporates (Subject to  SMEs and other NFC not subject to
NACE 4 digits level (code and label) NFRD) NFRD
[Gross] carrying amount [Gross] carrying amount
Of which Of which
environmentally environmentally
sustainable (CCM sustainable (CCM
+CCA + WTR + CE +CCA + WTR + CE
in HUF million +PPC +BIO) +PPC +BIO)
1 1920 - Manufacture of refined petroleum products 354,18 7,38 = =
2 2893 - Manufacture of machinery for food, beverage and tobacco processing — 20,60 = =
3 2910 - Manufacture of motor vehicles 4 470,95 63225 = =
4 5229 - Other transportation support activities 6 596,99 - = =
5 6190 - Other telecommunications activities 238,80 19,10 = =
6 6832 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis 8126,71 1618,67 = =
7 7010 - Activities of head offices 634376 3388 = =
8 7022 - Business and other management consultancy activities 185537 1700,76 = =
9 7120 - Technical testing and analysis 147537 144420 = =
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Template 3 - GAR KPI stock

1. Institution shall disclose in this template the GAR KPIs on stock of loans calculated based on the data disclosed in template 1, on covered assets, and by applying the
formulas proposed in this template

2. Information on the GAR (green asset ratio of 'eligible’ activities) shall be accompanied with information on the proportion of total assets covered by the GAR

3. Credit institutions can, in addition to the information included in this template, show the proportion of assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors that are
environmentally sustainable (Taxonomy-aligned). This information would enrich the information on the KPI on environmentally sustainable assets compared to total
covered assets

4. Credit institutions shall duplicate this template for revenue based and CapEx based disclosures

Note: For the financial year 2024, in order to accurately reflect the information to be disclosed in accordance with Sections
1211, 1.21.2,1.21.4. and 1.2.1.5. of Annex V of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, the proportions to be disclosed
in this template are calculated by dividing the relevant eligible or aligned assets as recorded in template 1 (Assets for the

calculation of the GAR) by the respective covered assets (as recorded in column a, rows 1-31and 48 of that template) instedd

of the Total GAR assets (as set out in row 48 of that asset).

GAR KPI stock (CapEX)

a b [4 d e

31/12/2024 Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds transitional Of which enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

; tgfgﬁqagjﬂcdvunces, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 37,00% 1,08% 0.24% 019 % 039 %
2 Financial undertakings 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 340% 0,01% 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 16,25 % 6,21% 0,00 % 1,42 % 293%
21 Loans and advances 220% 568 % 0,00 % 1,02 % 2,44 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 1,81% 6,61% 0,00 % 171 % 329 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 99,30 % 0,72% 072% 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 99,59 % 0,72 % 0,72 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %

3 immovable properties ' ! ! ! '
32 Total GAR assets 13,54 % 0,40 % 0,09 % 0,07 % 0,14 %
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31/12/2024 Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 immovable properties ' ! ' !
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Water and marine resources (WTR)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Circular economy (CE)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Pollution (PPC)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO) Proportion of
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors etlasscts
(Taxonomy-eligible) coveled

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant

sectors (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use Of which Of which
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) of Proceeds transitional enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

, EZEZTGi?:imadvances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 37,00 % 108% 024 % 019 % 039 % 36,60 %
2 Financial undertakings 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 1913 %
3 Credit institutions 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 1913 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 6,84 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 340% 0,01% 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 1229 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 16,25 % 6,21% 0,00 % 1,42 % 293% 4,92 %
21 Loans and advances 2210% 568 % 0,00 % 1,02 % 2,44 % 210 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 1,81 % 6,61% 0,00 % 171% 329 % 282%
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 99,30 % 0,72 % 0,72% 0,00 % 0,00 % 12,41 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 99,59 % 0,72 % 072 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 12,38 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,04 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,14 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,14 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
. ﬁ:f::;;llslt;:gr:ii: taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,04 %
32 Total GAR assets 13,54 % 0,40 % 0,09 % 0,07 % 0,14 % 100,00 %
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GAR KPI stock (turnover)

a b c d e

31/12/2024 Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds transitional Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator
, t;oczs‘;r‘j;ﬂodvonces, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 37,43% 073% 024 % 0,05 % 029 %
2 Financial undertakings 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 340% 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 19,46 % 3,62% 0,00 % 0,36 % 215%
21 Loans and advances 34,86 % 4,82 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 224 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 7,98 % 272 % 0,00 % 0,63 % 2,09 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 99,30 % 0,72% 0,72% 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 99,59 % 072% 0,72% 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
. ﬁ:::::;l:l;:zr:ii:/ taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
32 Total GAR assets 13,70 % 0,27 % 0,09 % 0,02 % 011 %
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31/12/2024 Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator
; I;Z‘clcrlls‘ai?:ﬂcdvonces, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
n Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
21 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
31 immovable properties ! ! ! !
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Water and marine resources (WTR)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00%
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
il Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
21 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
31 immovable properties !
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Circular economy (CE)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds

Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00%
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
il Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
21 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
31 immovable properties !
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Pollution (PPC)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00%
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
il Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
21 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
31 immovable properties !
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %

Raiffeisen Group | Financial Year 2024



74

Consolidated non-financial statement

w X

31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds

Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00%
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
il Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
21 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
31 immovable properties !
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %

Raiffeisen Group | Financial Year 2024



Consolidated non-financial statement 75

aa ab ac ad ae af
31/12/2024 TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO) Proportion of
total assets

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-eligible) CoveiEd
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant
sectors (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use Of which Of which
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) of Proceeds transitional enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

; Igz‘irils‘actgiﬂcdvonces, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 37,43 % 073% 024 % 0,05 % 029 % 36,60 %
2 Financial undertakings 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 19,13 %
3 Credit institutions 219 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 1913 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 6,84 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 3,40 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 12,29 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 19,46 % 3,62% 0,00 % 0,36 % 215% 4,92 %
21 Loans and advances 34,86 % 4,82 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 224 % 210 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 7,98 % 272% 0,00 % 0,63 % 2,09 % 282%
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 99,30 % 072% 0,72% 0,00 % 0,00 % 12,41%
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 99,59 % 072 % 072% 0,00 % 0,00 % 1238 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,04 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,14 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 014 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
. f,:::?::;;ﬁ:?,gr:::ﬁ: taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,04 %
32 Total GAR assets 13,70 % 0,27 % 0,09 % 0,02 % 0,1 % 100,00 %
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Template 4 - GAR KPI flow

Consolidated non-financial statement

1. Institution shall disclose in this template the GAR KPIs on flow of loans calculated (new loans on a net basis) based on the data disclosed in template 1, on covered
assets, and by applying the formulas proposed in this template

2. Credit institutions shall duplicate this template for revenue based and CapEx based disclosures

Note: For the financial year 2024, in order to accurately reflect the information to be disclosed in accordance with Sections
1.211,1.21.2,1.21.4. and 1.2.1.5. of Annex V of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, the proportions to be disclosed
in this template are calculated by dividing the flow of relevant eligible or aligned assets by the respective flow of covered
assets instead of the flow of Total GAR assets.

GAR KPI flow (CapEX)

C

31/12/2024

Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds transitional Of which enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

, Igzlclcrlls‘airfﬂcdvonces, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 67,22% 1% 120 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
n Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 914 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
21 Loans and advances 914 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 98,89 % 181% 181% 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 100,00 % 183 % 183 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %

31 immovable properties ' ! ! ! '
32 Total GAR assets 14,54 % 0,26 % 0,26 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 000% 0,00 %
3 immovable properties ' ! ! '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Water and marine resources (WTR)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Circular economy (CE)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Pollution (PPC)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

Proportion of
total assets

(Taxonomy-eligible) Coveied

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant

sectors (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use Of which Of which
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) of Proceeds transitional enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

, EZEZTGi?:imadvances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 67,22% 120 % 120 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 21,64 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 3,04 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 3,04 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 3,04 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 914 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 4,28 %
21 Loans and advances 914 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 4,28 %
2 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 98,89 % 1,81% 1,81% 0,00 % 0,00 % 14,31 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 100,00 % 183 % 1,83 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 1415 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 016 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
. ﬁ:f::;;llslt;:gr:ii: taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
32 Total GAR assets 14,54 % 0,26 % 0,26 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 100,00 %
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GAR KPI flow (turnover)
a b c d e
31/12/2024 Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds transitional Of which enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator
; ESEZTOat?:ﬂcdvonces, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 6807 % 120 % 120% 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
n Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 13,43 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
21 Loans and advances 1343 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 98,89 % 1,81% 181% 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 100,00 % 183 % 1,83 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
» ﬁ:—:::;ﬂ:z:gr::izz taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
32 Total GAR assets 14,73 % 0,26 % 0,26 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 000% 0,00 %
3 immovable properties ' ! ! '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Water and marine resources (WTR)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Circular economy (CE)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households 0,00 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 0,00 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator)

Pollution (PPC)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024 Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) Proceeds Of which enabling

GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

Loans and advances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR

1 calculation 0,00 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 0,00 %
2 Loans and advances 0,00 %
22 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 %
24 Households
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property
26 of which building renovation loans
27 of which motor vehicle loans
28 Local governments financing 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 %
Collateral obtained by taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 %
3 immovable properties '
32 Total GAR assets 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors

Proportion of
total assets

(Taxonomy-eligible) Coveied

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant

sectors (Taxonomy-aligned)
Of which Use Of which Of which
% (compared to total covered assets in the denominator) of Proceeds transitional enabling
GAR - Covered assets in both numerator and denominator

, EZEZTGi?:imadvances, debt securities and equity instruments not HfT eligible for GAR 68,07 % 120 % 120 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 21,64 %
2 Financial undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 3,04 %
3 Credit institutions 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 3,04 %
4 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 3,04 %
5 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
6 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
7 Other financial corporations 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
8 of which investment firms 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
9 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
10 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
kil Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
12 of which management companies 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
13 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
14 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
15 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
16 of which insurance undertakings 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
17 Loans and advances 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
18 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
19 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
20 Non-financial undertakings 13,43 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 4,28 %
21 Loans and advances 1343 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 4,28 %
2 Debt securities, including UoP 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
23 Equity instruments 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
24 Households 98,89 % 1,81% 1,81% 0,00 % 0,00 % 14,31 %
25 of which loans collateralised by residential immovable property 100,00 % 183 % 1,83 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 1415 %
26 of which building renovation loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
27 of which motor vehicle loans 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 016 %
28 Local governments financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
29 Housing financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
30 Other local government financing 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
. ﬁ:f::;;llslt;:gr:ii: taking possession: residential and commercial 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
32 Total GAR assets 14,73 % 0,26 % 0,26 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 100,00 %
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Template 5 - GAR KPI off-balance-sheet exposures

1. Institution shall disclose in this template the KPIs for off-balance sheet exposures (financial guarantees and assets under management) calculated based on the data
disclosed in template 1, on covered assets, and by applying the formulas proposed in this template

2. Institutions shall duplicate this template to disclose stock and flow KPIs for off-balance sheet exposures

GAR KPI off-balance-sheet exposures (CapEX)

a b c d e

31/12/2024

Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 057 % 033% 0,00 % 015 % 0,09 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
f 9 h i

31/12/2024

Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
i k | m

31/12/2024

Water and marine resources (WTR)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
n o p q

31/12/2024

Circular economy (CE)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assetsunder management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
r s t u

31/12/2024

Pollution (PPC)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
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v w X z

31/12/2024

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
aa ab ac ad ae

31/12/2024

TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 057 % 033% 0,00 % 015 % 0,09 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
GAR KPI off-balance-sheet exposures (turnover)
a b [4 d e

31/12/2024

Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,23 % 0,08 % 0,00 % 0,03 % 0,06 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
f g h i

31/12/2024

Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of

% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enablin
P g g
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
i k 1 m

31/12/2024

Water and marine resources (WTR)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of

% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
n o P q

31/12/2024

Circular economy (CE)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of

% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
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31/12/2024

Pollution (PPC)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
v w X z

31/12/2024

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
aa ab ac ad ae

31/12/2024

TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 023% 0,08 % 0,00 % 0,03 % 0,06 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
GAR KPI off-balance-sheet exposures (Flow CapEx)
a b c d e

31/12/2024

Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 187 % 109 % 0,00 % 051% 0,30 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
f g h i

31/12/2024

Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of

% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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j k | m

31/12/2024

Water and marine resources (WTR)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
n ) p q

31/12/2024

Circular economy (CE)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
r s t u

31/12/2024

Pollution (PPC)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assetsunder management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
v w X z

31/12/2024

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
aa ab ac ad ae

31/12/2024

TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 187 % 109 % 0,00 % 051% 0,30 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
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GAR KPI off-balance-sheet exposures (Flow turnover)

a b c d e

31/12/2024

Climate Change Mitigation (CCM)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enablin
P g g
Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,75 % 028 % 0,00 % 0,09 % 0,18 %
Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
f g h i

31/12/2024

Climate Change Adaptation (CCA)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of

% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling

Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %

Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %
j Kk 1 m

31/12/2024

Water and marine resources (WTR)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of

% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %

n o [ q

31/12/2024

Circular economy (CE)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
r s t u

31/12/2024

Pollution (PPC)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
v w X z

31/12/2024

Biodiversity and Ecosystems (BIO)
Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds Of which enabling
Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,00 %
Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 %
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aa ab ac ad ae

31/12/2024 TOTAL (CCM + CCA + WTR + CE + PPC + BIO)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors (Taxonomy-eligible)

Proportion of total covered assets funding taxonomy relevant sectors
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Of which Use of Of which
% (compared to total eligible off-balance sheet assets) Proceeds transitional  Of which enabling
1 Financial guarantees (FinGuar KPI) 0,75 % 0,28 % 0,00 % 0,09 % 0,18 %
2 Assets under management (AuM KPI) 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 % 0,00 %

Additional mandatory information

Exposures to Taxonomy (non-)eligible economic activities/covered assets for the four new
environmental objectives and activities

RBHU Group discloses two quantitative indicators on the proportion of taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy non-eligible exposures
with regard to the four new environmental objectives and activities in accordance with article 10 (7) of Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2021/2178 supplementing the EU Taxonomy Regulation. The disclosure of these quantitative KPIs is
supplemented by qualitative information in accordance with Annex XI of the Delegated Regulation.

Exposures to taxonomy-eligible economic activities/covered assets: 0.00 per cent

Exposures to taxonomy non-eligible economic activities/covered assets: 0.00 per cent

Exposures to taxonomy (non-)eligible and taxonomy (non-)aligned economic activities/covered
assets for nuclear and gas economic activities (CapEx) in accordance with Annex XII

Disclosure template 1 activities in the areas of nuclear energy and fossil gas - GAR stock

Nuclear energy related activities 31/12/2024

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity
1 generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with minimal waste from the fuel cycle. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or
process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety
2 upgrades, using best available technologies. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process
heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their
3 safety upgrades. YES

Fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity
4 using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power
5 generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce
6 heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

Disclosure template 1 activities in the areas of nuclear energy and fossil gas - GAR flow

Nuclear energy related activities 31/12/2024

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity
1 generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with minimal waste from the fuel cycle. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or
process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety
2 upgrades, using best available technologies. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process
heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their
3 safety upgrades. YES

Fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity
4 using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power
5 generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce
6 heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels. NO
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Disclosure template 1 activities in the areas of nuclear energy and fossil gas - KPI financial
guarantees stock

Nuclear energy related activities 31/12/2024

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity
1 generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with minimal waste from the fuel cycle. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or
process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety
2 upgrades, using best available technologies. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process
heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their
3 safety upgrades. YES

Fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity
4 using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power
5 generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce
6 heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

Disclosure template 1 activities in the areas of nuclear energy and fossil gas - KPI financial
guarantees flow

Nuclear energy related activities 31/12/2024

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity
1 generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with minimal waste from the fuel cycle. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or
process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety
2 upgrades, using best available technologies. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process
heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their
3 safety upgrades. YES

Fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity
4 using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power
5 generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels. YES

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce
6 heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

Disclosure template 1 activities in the areas of nuclear energy and fossil gas - KPl assets under
management stock

Nuclear energy related activities 31/12/2024

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity
1 generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with minimal waste from the fuel cycle. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or
process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety
2 upgrades, using best available technologies. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process
heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their
3 safety upgrades. NO

Fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity
4 using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power
5 generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce
6 heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels. NO
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Disclosure template 1 activities in the areas of nuclear energy and fossil gas - KPI assets under
management flow

Nuclear energy related activities 31/12/2024

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, development, demonstration and deployment of innovative electricity
1 generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear processes with minimal waste from the fuel cycle. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to produce electricity or
process heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production, as well as their safety
2 upgrades, using best available technologies. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe operation of existing nuclear installations that produce electricity or process
heat, including for the purposes of district heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production from nuclear energy, as well as their
3 safety upgrades. NO

Fossil gas related activities

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity
4 using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined heat/cool and power
5 generation facilities using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to construction, refurbishment and operation of heat generation facilities that produce
6 heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels. NO

Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - CapEX

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation  Climate change adaptation
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
3 applicable KPI 1256.44 0.04 % 1256.44 0.04 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
4 applicable KPI 77.31 - % 77.31 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
5 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 10,827.08 0.35 % 10,827.08 0.35 % 0 — %

8 Total applicable KPI 12,160.83 0.40 % 12,160.83 0.40 % 0 - %
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Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - turnover

31/12/2024 CCM +CCA Climate change mitigation  Climate change adaptation
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
3 applicable KPI 560.68 0.02 % 560.68 0.02 % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
5 applicable KPI 77.31 - % 77.31 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 7,595.81 0.25 % 7,595.81 0.25 % 0 - %

8 Total applicable KPI 8,233.80 0.27 % 8,233.80 0.27 % 0 — %

Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR flow - CapEx

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation  Climate change adaptation
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
3 applicable KPI 0.1 - % 01 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.01 - % 0.01 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
5 applicable KPI 0.00 — % 0.00 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 1,281.25 0.26 % 1,281.25 0.26 % 0 — %

8 Total applicable KP1 1,281.36 0.26 % 1,281.36 0.26 % 0 — %
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Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR flow - turnover

31/12/2024
CCM +CCA

%

Climate change

Climate change mitigation adaptation

% %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic activity
referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated
1 Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0.00

- %

0.00

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic activity
referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated
2 Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0.00

- %

0.00

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic activity
referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated
3 Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0.05

- %

0.05

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic activity
referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated
4 Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0.00

- %

0.00

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic activity
referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated
5 Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0.01

— %

0.01

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic activity
referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated
6 Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0.00

- %

0.00

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned economic
activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in the

7 denominator of the applicable KPI 1,281.08 0.26 %

1,281.08

0.26 % 0 —%

8 Total applicable KPI 1,281.14 0.26 %

1,281.14

0.26 % 0 - %

Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI financial guarantees stock -

CapEx

31/12/2024
CCM + CCA

%

Climate change mitigation

%

Climate change adaptation

%

activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 — %

0.00

- %

activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
3 applicable KPI 127.88 0.06 %

127.88

0.06 %

activity referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
4 applicable KPI 7.99 - %

7.99

- %

activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
5 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 575.21 027 %

575.21

0.27 %

8 Total applicable KPI 711.08 0.33 %

711.08

033 %
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Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI financial guarantees stock -
turnover

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation  Climate change adaptation
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
3 applicable KPI 55.95 0.03 % 55.95 0.03 % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
5 applicable KPI 799 — % 799 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 118.02 0.05 % 118.02 0.05 % 0 — %

8 Total applicable KPI 181.96 0.08 % 181.96 0.08 % 0 — %

Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI financial guarantees flow - CapEx

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation  Climate change adaptation
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
3 applicable KPI 127.94 0.20 % 127.94 0.20 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
4 applicable KPI 8.00 0.01 % 8.00 0.01 % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
5 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - % 0.00 — % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 575.35 0.89 % 575.35 0.89 % 0 — %

8 Total applicable KPI 711.28 1.09 % 71.28 1.09 % 0 — %
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Disclosure template 2 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI financial guarantees flow -

turnover

31/12/2024 CCM +CCA
%

Climate change mitigation  Climate change adaptation

% %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 — %

0.00 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
3 applicable KPI 55.97 0.09 %

55.97 0.09 % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
5 applicable KPI 8.00 0.01 %

8.00 0.01 % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 118.07 0.18 %

118.07 0.18 % 0 — %

8 Total applicable KPI 182.04 0.28 %

182.04 0.28 % 0 — %

Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities

- GAR stock - CapEx

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA

%

Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption

% %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 — %

0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 — %

0.00 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
3 applicable KPI 1,256.44 1033 %

1256.44 10.33 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
4 applicable KPI 7731 0.64 %

7731 0.64 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
5 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI 10,827.08 89.03 %

10,827.08 89.03 % 0 —%

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI 12,160.83 100.00 %

12,160.83 100.00 % 0 - %
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Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR stock - turnover

31/12/2024 CCM +CCA

%

Climate change mitigation

%

Climate change adaption

%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

— %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
3 applicable KPI 560.68 6.81 %

560.68

681 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
5 applicable KPI 77.31 0.94 %

77.31

0.94 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI 7,595.81 92.25%

7,595.81

9225 %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI 8,233.80 100.00 %

8,233.80

100.00 %

Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities

- GAR flow - CapEx

31/12/2024 CCM +CCA

%

Climate change mitigation

%

Climate change adaption

%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
3 applicable KPI 0m 0.01 %

om

0.01 %

0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.01 - %

0.01

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
5 applicable KPI 0.00 — %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 — %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI 1,281.25 99.99 %

1,281.25

99.99 %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI 1,281.36 100.00 %

1,281.36

100.00 %
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Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR flow - turnover

103

31/12/2024 CCM +CCA

%

Climate change mitigation

%

Climate change adaption

%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

— %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

2 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

3 applicable KPI 0.05 - %

0.05

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

4 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

5 applicable KPI 0.01 — %

0.01

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI

1,281.08 100.00 %

1,281.08

100.00 %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI

1,281.14 100.00 %

1,281.14

100.00 %

Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities
CapEx

- KPI financial guarantees stock -

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA

%

Climate change mitigation

%

Climate change adaption

%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

— %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

2 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic

activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to

Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
3 applicable KPI

127.88 17.98 %

127.88

17.98 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

4 applicable KPI 7.99 112 %

7.99

112 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

5 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

—%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the

6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI

575.21 80.89 %

575.21

80.89 %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI

711.08 100.00 %

711.08

100.00 %
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Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI financial guarantees stock -

turnover

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA

%

Climate change mitigation

%

Climate change adaption

%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
3 applicable KPI 55.95 30.75 %

55.95

30.75 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.00 — %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
5 applicable KPI 799 439 %

7.99

439 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI 118.02 64.86 %

118.02

64.86 %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI 181.96 100.00 %

181.96

100.00 %

Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities

- KPI financial guarantees flow - CapEx

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA

%

Climate change mitigation

%

Climate change adaption

%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

— %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
3 applicable KPI 127.94 17.99 %

127.94

17.99 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
4 applicable KPI 8.00 112 %

8.00

112 %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
5 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

—%

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00 - %

0.00

- %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI 575.35 80.89 %

575.35

80.89 %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI 711.28 100.00 %

711.28

100.00 %
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Disclosure template 3 taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI financial guarantees flow -

turnover

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA

Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption

%

% %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
1 applicable KPI 0.00

- % 0.00

- % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
2 applicable KPI 0.00

- % 0.00

— % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
3 applicable KPI 55.97

30.75 % 55.97

30.75 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
4 applicable KPI 0.00

- % 0.00

- % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
5 applicable KPI 8.00

439 % 8.00

439 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned economic
activity referred to in Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to
Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the numerator of the
6 applicable KPI 0.00

- % 0.00

—% 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-aligned
economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above
7 in the numerator of the applicable KPI 118.07

64.86 % 118.07

64.86 % 0 - %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-aligned
economic activities in the numerator of the applicable
8 KPI 182.04

100.00 % 182.04

100.00 % 0 - %

Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR stock -

CapEx
31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption
% % %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 — % 0 — % 0 — %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 7 - % 7 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 — % 0 — %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 404,537 1315 % 404,536 1315 % 0 — %
Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 404,544 1315 % 404,544 1315 % 0 - %
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Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR stock -
turnover

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 0 0 0

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 0 0 0

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 18 - % 18 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 — % 0 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 413,307 13.43 % 413,307 13.43 % 0 - %
Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 413,325 13.43 % 413,325 13.43 % 0 - %

Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR flow -
CapEx

31/12/2024 CCM +CCA Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 70,624 14.29 % 70,624 14.29 % 0 — %
Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 70,624 14.29 % 70,624 14.29 % 0 - %
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Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - GAR flow -
turnover

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 0 0 0

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 0 0 0
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 — % 0 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 — % 0 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 71,534 14.47 % 71,534 14.47 % 0 - %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 71,534 14.47 % 71,534 14.47 % 0 - %
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Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI

financial guarantees stock - CapEx

31/12/2024
CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption
% % %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 6 - % 6 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 501 0.23 % 501 023 % 0 - %
Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 507 0.24 % 507 0.24 % 0 — %
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Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI

financial guarantees stock - turnover

31/12/2024
CCM + CCA

%

Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption

% %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0

- %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0

- %

- % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 15

0.01 %

15

0.01 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0

- %

- % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0

- %

— % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 289

0.13 %

289

0.13 % 0 - %

Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 304

014 %

304

0.14 % 0 - %
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Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI

financial guarantees flow - CapEx

31/12/2024
CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption
% % %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 6 0.01 % 6 0.01 % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 501 0.77 % 501 0.77 % 0 - %
Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 507 0.78 % 507 0.78 % 0 — %
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Disclosure template 4 taxonomy-eligible but not taxonomy-aligned economic activities - KPI
financial guarantees flow - turnover

31/12/2024 CCM + CCA Climate change mitigation Climate change adaption
% % %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
1 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 0 0 0

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
2 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 0 0 0

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
3 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 - % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
4 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 15 0.02 % 15 0.02 % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139
5 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 — % 0 — % 0 — %

Amount and proportion of taxonomy-eligible but not
taxonomy-aligned economic activity referred to in Section
4.310f Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in
6 the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - % 0 — % 0 - %

Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities not referred
to in rows 1to 6 above in the denominator of the
7 applicable KPI 289 0.44 % 289 0.44 % 0 - %
Total amount and proportion of taxonomy eligible but
not taxonomy-aligned economic activities in the
8 denominator of the applicable KPI 304 0.47 % 304 0.47 % 0 - %

Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - GAR stock - CapEx

31/12/2024
%

Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 10 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row é of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

6 with Section 4.31of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in

7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 2,659,978 86.46 %

8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI' 2,659,988 86.46 %
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Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - GAR stock - turnover

31/12/2024
Percentage
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 10 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 6 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
6 with Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in
7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 2,655,123 86.30 %
8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI' 2,655,133 86.30 %
Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - GAR flow - CapEx
31/12/2024
Percentage
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 6 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
6 with Section 4.31of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in
7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 422,462 85.46 %
8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI' 422,462 85.46 %
Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - GAR flow - turnover
31/12/2024
Percentage
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 6 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
6 with Section 4.31of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in
7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 421,553 85.27 %
8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI 421,553 85.27 %
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Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - KPI financial guarantees stock - CapEx
31/12/2024
Percentage
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 6 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
6 with Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in
7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 214,133 99.43 %
8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI' 214,133 99.43 %
Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - KPI financial guarantees stock - turnover
31/12/2024
Percentage
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 6 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
6 with Section 4.31of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in
7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 214,866 99.77 %
8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI' 214,866 99.77 %
Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - KPI financial guarantees flow - CapEx
31/12/2024
Percentage
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 6 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance
6 with Section 4.31of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in
7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 63,767 98.13 %
8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI 63,767 98.13 %
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Disclosure template 5 taxonomy-non-eligible activities - KPI financial guarantees flow - turnover

31/12/2024
Percentage

Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 1of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

1 with Section 4.26 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 2 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

2 with Section 4.27 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 3 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

3 with Section 4.28 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 4 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

4 with Section 4.29 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 5 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

5 with Section 4.30 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of economic activity referred to in row 6 of Template 1that is taxonomy-non-eligible in accordance

6 with Section 4.31 of Annexes | and Il to Delegated Regulation 2021/2139 in the denominator of the applicable KPI 0 - %
Amount and proportion of other taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities not referred to in rows 1to 6 above in

7 the denominator of the applicable KPI 64,499 99.25 %

8 Total amount and proportion of taxonomy-non-eligible economic activities in the denominator of the applicable KPI' 64,499 99.25 %
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Climate change
E1-1: Transition plan for climate change mitigation

Value chain

The climate and environmental business strategy implementation plan of RBHU Group has been approved by the RBHU Group
Management Board as part of the Bank's ESG Policy Statement document as starting point of the RBHU Group transition
planning. The strategy has a clear goal of supporting customers' funding for investments in the green transition process and
reducing emissions financed by RBHU Group.

Climate and environmental transition is an integral part of the Bank's business strategy, representing a key step towards the
2050 net-zero target. In 2024, the primary focus was explicitly on converting the general qualitative goals into specific
quantitative targets.

RBHU Group is committed to achieve the following targets:

Short-term (by 2025)

Develop key elements of climate and environmental transition execution plan for reaching CO2 targets
2030 in line with RBI Group Transition plan and define necessary measures.

Mid-term (by 2030)

Reduce GHG emissions in the corporate lending portfolio by 17 per cent in RBHU Group. For more
information, please refer to the chapter E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and
adaptation

Ongoing adaption of the climate and environmental business strategy / transition plan for climate
protection.

Long-term (by 2050)

The Bank intends to follow the RBI Group’s commitment to be in line with the 1.5°C pathway and therefore
aims to be in line with the net-zero greenhouse gas emission target by 2050.

RBHU Group set itself emission targets which were approved by the Management Board in 2024. The emission targets are
formulated such that they support RBI Groups' 2030 emission targets in line with the 1.5°C pathway to reach net zero in 2050.
The pathway was derived based on the Network for Greening the Financial System (NGFS) scenario. The chosen scenario is
country specific as processed and published by the International Monetary Fund through its climate change dashboard (NGFS
phase 4 net zero orderly transition).

The Bank is not excluded from the EU Paris-aligned Benchmarks and fulfills this disclosure in compliance with Commission
Implementing Regulation (EU) 2022/2453 and Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818 (Climate Benchmark Regulation),
Articles 12.1(d) to (g) and 12.2.

In its ESG Policy Statement, RBHU Group also focuses on supporting the Bank's customers in their climate and environmental
transition. To support customers in their climate and environmental transition, RBHU Group intends to act at industry level,
customer level, and transaction and product level. In this respect, the following implementation actions are planned:

Customer engagement strategies:

Focus on informing customers about the benefits and opportunities of sustainable finance solutions, with offering
interactive sessions on the advantage of transitioning to green energy sources, EVs, adhering to green building
standards and promoting energy efficiency investments.

Development of new products or services:

Having established a strong presence in renewable energy and green building financing in recent years, the primary
focus of product development will now shift to introducing ESG KPI-linked loans and expanding green leasing
options.

New policies and procedures:

Three key areas will be the focus when introducing new policies and procedures. First, emphasis will be placed on
aligning loan processing with EU Taxonomy, with necessary frameworks developed and best practices gathered
from clients, peers, and independent advisory service providers. Second, it is crucial to further strengthen the credit
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policy to support green lending. Finally, maintaining the Green Incentive Program for green loans is necessary to
provide competitive offers in the market with maintaining profitability.

Changes in lending conditions or documentation:
Embedding green building and sustainability criteria into loan terms and documentation.
ESG data collection:

Encouraging clients to provide as detailed and accurate sustainability data as possible, be able to complete banking
ESG questionnaires. Integration of sustainability reporting standards into IT infrastructure.

Implications on the business and risk profile in the short, medium and long-term, including an impact estimation on
revenues and profitability:

The Bank intends to seek new green lending opportunities within the existing portfolio and exclude most of
restrictive lending over on midterm. It also intends to focus on its established strengths in green building and
renewable energy financing. Additionally, introducing new KPI-linked financing loans could also contribute to
enhance the green aspect of the balance sheet.

Assets and business activities that are incompatible with or need significant efforts to be compatible with transition
to climate-neutral economy have not been identified.

Actions and measures:

Increase customer engagement through relevant products and proper ESG advisory, while innovating and
customizing green financial products to meet emerging market demands and EU Taxonomy regulations. Offer ESG
advisory services to relevant clients, maintain and potentially enhance green incentivization schemes for borrowing,
and create financial projections under both scenarios with a focus on growth projections tied to green loan
products. Additionally, assess and upgrade IT infrastructure to ensure robust support for the green product lineup
and EU Taxonomy reporting.

Expected timeline for Implementation of our ambitions in line with our business activity:

Short-term (0-2 years):

Launch and promotion of the updated green loan product suite

Continue participation in more state-incentivized green loan programs.
Medium-term (2-5 years):

Establishment of a lending oriented ESG advisory service

Expansion into green bonds investments and arrangements.
Long-term (5+ years):

Enhanced market reputation as a sustainable green bank

Full alignment with EU Taxonomy and green capital relief program supports entrenched into all aspects of
lending.

Regarding transition, a key aspect is the planned development of the climate and environmental transition plan. The transition
plan is set to serve as a guide for business decisions involving large corporates with the aim to develop a 1.5°C-aligned
corporate portfolio by 2030. Based on the ESG score and the status of clients’ specific physical emissions data, clients would be
clustered into three categories:

Supportive - customers are advanced in setting up their emissions in line with RBI Group's and consequently RBHU
Group's 2030 targets, and their ESG rating is above average. The Bank's focus for these clients is to provide
innovative ESG products and orient them towards future environmental challenges.

Transformative — customers either lack developed targets to reach the 2030 threshold or have a below-average ESG
rating. The Bank's focus for these clients is to offer a range of products and services to help improving their ESG

transition ambitions.

Restrictive - customers that do not have developed targets and whose ESG rating is below average.
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To support the transition of the financed corporate portfolio towards the environmental targets outlined above, RBHU Group
has introduced portfolio KPI monitoring in terms of average ESG score starting from Y2025 as part of its Corporate Credit
Policy.

Own operations

RBI Group views environmental and climate protection as an integral part of business activity and sees itself as a fair partner
to the environment. The direct environmental impacts of our operational activities are limited compared with those of
production industries. Nevertheless, RBI Group has the goal of limiting negative environmental impacts at all of its sites.

Short-term (by 2026): see at E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation.
As a responsible operator, RBHU Group has implemented and operates two management systems to ensure the company:
In the case of ISO 14001 EMS:

Continually improves its overall environmental performance, providing a reliable foundation for initiatives aimed at
sustainable development (e.g., operating a circular economy)

Systematically manages its environmental responsibilities by enhancing environmental performance, significantly
contributing to environmental sustainability.

In the case of ISO 50001 EMS:

The general goal is to continuously improve the organization’'s energy management performance, including energy
efficiency, usage, and adjusted consumption. The overall objectives also include - in alignment with EMS - reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and energy costs.

ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with
strategy and business model

Climate stress testing

The Bank applies stress testing methodologies as part of the risk identification and assessment process, and most importantly
for the analysis of the resilience of its exposures. Climate stress testing is conducted centrally on HO level for all Network Units
and overall on Group level. As such, the outcome of the 2022 external/ECB climate risk stress testing exercise conducted by RBI
was an important first step, and it confirmed the sectors and regions that were identified internally, on group level, as mostly
affected by climate risk.

The exercise gave RBl important benchmark information with respect to model calibrations, data availability and the general
confirmation of its internal framework. Based on this information, the three-year disorderly transition scenario (delayed
warming by 2°C) has been incorporated into RBI's internal capital adequacy assessment framework (ICAAP), together with a
flood risk scenario.

After the first successful external climate stress testing exercise in 2022 and internal climate stress testing exercise in 2023, the
internal framework for climate stress testing was further refined to incorporate more risks and balance sheet assumptions
(covering credit, market & operational risk). For the 2024 climate stress testing, RBI's positioning as of the cut-off of Q2-2024
was considered in the course of the assessment. The time horizon applied in the short term is three years, and the long-term
analysis covers the time horizon up until 2050 (at time buckets 2030, 2040, 2050).

The transitional risks for non-retail and retail credit risk as well as operational and market risks were subject to an acute
physical risk stress test for the retail collateral relating to flood risk. The basis of the scenarios was assessed by RBI's risk
research in line with the latest Network for Greening the Financial System (NGFS) publications. The following scenarios have
been selected:

Disorderly (delayed transition) scenarios explore higher transition risks due to policies being delayed or divergent
across countries and sectors. For example, (shadow) carbon prices are typically higher for a given temperature
outcome.

Orderly scenarios aimed at net-zero emissions by 2050 assume climate policies are introduced early and become
gradually more stringent. Both physical and transition risks are relatively subdued.

Hot house world (current policies) scenarios assume that some climate policies are implemented in some

jurisdictions, but overall efforts are insufficient to halt significant global warming. The scenarios result in severe
physical risk with limited transition risk.
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The selected scenarios are compatible with the critical climate-related assumptions made in the financial statements in terms
of the time horizon, methodology and possible outcomes.

Disorderly scenarios are largely driving transition risks, thereby staggering carbon and energy prices, which mutes gross
domestic product (GDP) growth in the first years of the short-term scenarios. In the long-term perspective for disorderly,
orderly and hot house world, the projections are rather mixed. The disorderly scenario shows a significant downside between
2030 and 2034 due to severe delayed policy changes. The orderly scenario, however, shows a more positive GDP development
from 2035 to 2045 due to the smoother transition. By the year 2050, it is expected that the differences between the various
scenarios will converge again.

For the non-retail portfolio, due to the lack of historical data combined with sharp and prolonged increases in carbon taxes
and electricity costs, RBI cannot directly measure the impact of climate transition policies on defaults of corporates in the non-
retail portfolio (as in the case with IFRS 9 and regular macro stress testing). Instead, RBI currently uses an approach that
models the impact of such policies using structural models at the NACE sector level (level 2), based on the development of
corporate profitability and debt-servicing ability. RBI then uses the financial module of its corporate rating model to turn
projections of firm finances into one-year probability of default (PD) projections.

RBI refers to the first step as the transition risk engine, which consists of two parts:

The sectoral-level general equilibrium models: this model calculates the impact of policies or shocks in the economy
by taking account of the interdependencies between market participants and applying the economic theory of
general equilibrium. The sectoral model provides the production/output and cost levels during stressed periods for
each sector.

Firm-level balance sheet models: the outcomes of the sectoral model are then transposed to the individual
companies in the respective sectors.

This approach produces stressed balance sheets that include both the "direct” effect of carbon taxes and the indirect effect of
macroeconomic aggregates. Once RBI has produced the stressed corporate balance sheets, the corporate rating model is
applied to these shocks to produce one-year PDs. Finally, the projected PD is calculated by taking the internal rating derivation
logic into account.

In the retail portfolio, especially for residential mortgage exposures, retail models have been extended for the purpose of the
climate stress test to include energy price and house price index (HPI) developments in the PD and LGD (loss given default)
macroeconomic models according to the energy efficiency (EPC, energy performance certificate) label awarded to the
underlying collateral. For this purpose, each retail macroeconomic model now includes the HPI per EPC as parameter and
energy prices in the climate and environmental stress calculation. The HPI per EPC scenario applied is based on the Network for
Greening the Financial System input, which also includes an HPI for unknown EPC labels that is applied accordingly in the
assessment. In line with the ECB climate stress test 2022, all corporate bonds and equity positions in the trading book are
subject to this fair value revaluation as market risk scope.

From an operational risk perspective, initial physical risks in the form of direct losses (e.g. critical IT infrastructure) and
transitional and compliance risk scenarios (e.g. greenwashing) have been defined as part of the economic capital calculation to
account for forward-looking risk triggered by environmental and climate-related events in the short-term scenario as well.
Both effects might yield reputational and legal costs. For market risk the corporate bond portfolio was stressed in the short-
term scenario with dedicated bond spread shocks being applied directly affecting the profits and losses or capital.

In addition to the assessment of the risk-related impacts, profitability impacts were also re-evaluated in the course of the
short-term exercise. For this purpose, net interest income and net fee commission income flows were simulated given a
stressed interest environment under the disorderly scenario. Alongside the credit risks, impacts on net interest income and net
fee commission income were the main contributors to the impact of the stress test in the short-term scenarios.

As outlined, the short-term exercise is complemented with a 1-year acute physical risk scenario for which the collaterals on
retail and non-retail are shocked individually. For this purpose, all collaterals are scored from low to very high under the given
scenario according to Moody's physical risk tool. According to this score, haircuts on the dedicated collateral values and real
estate value are applied, reducing their values significantly. The resilience to further physical hazards, e.g. heatwave, will be
investigated in upcoming exercises.

Based on the learning from previous exercises (long and short-term), the focus for the 2024 long-term exercise was on credit
risk, market risk and income components only. For the analysis, a sector-related portfolio growth was considered as part of a
dynamic portfolio assumption - on top of a static balance sheet assumption. In contrast to the short-term stress testing, the
disorderly, orderly and Hot-House-World scenario was analysed for the long-term exercise.

The results of the short-term and acute physical risk stress tests contribute to RBHU Group's framework via a deduction item
from the internal capital - see the dedicated results below. Furthermore, the climate risk stress test is one of the input
parameters to the materiality assessment and should also complement the target and strategy selection. Given the relatively
young discipline, the annual exercise is used to reassess the assumptions made and models in order to reduce the uncertainty
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of the resilience analysis. This especially covers the area of dynamic balance sheet assumptions, data coverage/completeness
and modelling assumptions given the scarcity of data.

Both on RBI Group and RBHU Group level, the impact on the risk parameters from the climate risk exercises has been assessed
as non-material, supporting the overall resilience of the Bank. This is considered mild, in comparison to regular stress test
exercises, such as the EBA stress test where a comparably larger depletion is observed and confirms the relatively low effect
from the isolated climate effect on the risk parameters.

Short-term impact of disorderly scenario

CET1impact (compared to baseline)

in basis points 2025 2026 2027

RBHU Group -246 -238 -166

Impact of acute physical risk scenario

CET1impact (compared to baseline)

in basis points 2025

RBHU Group -303

Impact of long-term scenario

2050

change in basis points Hot-House/Baseline Disorderly Orderly

Provisioning ratio 14 19 8

E1-2: Policies related to climate change mitigation and adaptation
Value chain
General framework

RBHU Group strives to achieve long-term profitable business while reducing, amongst others, social and environmental harm
by related proper due-diligence practices. Furthermore, RBHU Group wants to contribute to the improvement of environmental
protection and social standards. RBHU Group, as member of RBI Group is aware of sensitive business fields (especially, but not
limited to nuclear power, coal, military goods and technologies, gambling) which the RBI Group handles with care and for which
internal policies have to be followed by staff members.

To support the above-mentioned goals, RBHU Group applies the following levels of internal policies: all the below mentioned
regulations is classified to one of these categories:

RBI Group regulation adhered to within RBHU Group practices directly: these regulations are implemented into RBHU
Group workflows and risk management practices without specific local implementation. Policies in this category are
generally available in the Group Regulation Database

RBI Group regulation locally approved as part of local key master policies - e.g. Annex to Credit Policy regulations
without any local amendment. Policies in this category are generally available RBHU Group local regulation database
and in the Group Regulation Database

RBI Group standards translated and adapted to local processes and organisational responsibilities: fully fledged locall
version, compliant with group directives. Policies in this category are generally available RBHU Group local regulation
database

The policies listed are all impacting to some extent climate change mitigation, adaptation, energy efficiency and
renewable energy deployment efforts.

All of the above-mentioned policies are regularly reviewed and all relevant affected units are notified upon changes.
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Lending business (on-balance)
Sectoral policies
ESG sectoral strategies

ESG Sectoral Policies are RBI Group regulations, locally approved in RBHU Group as Annex to Credit Policy regulations
and to the Sustainability assessments in corporate lending and underwriting local regulations, without any local
amendment

The Bank held internal trainings on 4 occasions in 2024 for employees concerned upon the requirements of the
Sectoral policies to enhance effective roll-out

Sectorial policies are also adopted for SME segments in retail lending and are included in local Credit Policy
regulations

The ESG Sectoral Policies, as annexed part of the Credit Policy regulations were approved by the Board of
Management and by the Board of Directors.

The application of the rules falls into the responsibility of the Department Heads of those business and risk areas that are in
charge for the lending activities.

This policy gathered and included sectoral policies on oil & gas, steel, and real estate and construction. In addition, an oil & gas
exclusion policy became a part of such policy which aims to:

Identify the supportive, transformative, and restrictive criteria in the oil & gas, real estate & construction, and steel
industries and as well as define the principles, rules, and engagement criteria for such classifications

Support the implementation of qualitative targets about negative impacts on resource efficiency and climate
change

Define customer and project-level criteria per sector to contribute to decarbonization.

Furthermore, the policy defines how to engage with clients in the value chain and is applicable for all group units involved in
the lending business.

The policy is prepared on the following regulatory/legal framework:

EU taxonomy 2020/852
The Paris Agreement

Regulation (EU) 2021/1119 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 June 2021 establishing the framework
for achieving climate neutrality and amending Regulations (EC) No 401/2009 and (EU) 2018/1999 (‘European Climate
Law’)

European Central Bank, Banking Supervision - Guide on climate-related and environmental risks Supervisory
expectations relating to risk management and disclosure (November 2020)

The Principles of Responsible Banking (UNEP FI)

Alignment with the EU/US/UK regulations

The policy was authored by RBI Group Credit Portfolio Management. To ensure awareness and implementation, several key
stakeholders such as Business, Group Regulatory Affairs, Group ESG & Sustainability, and other stakeholders were involved from
the beginning until the finalization.

This internal policy is available to all stakeholders involved through a group wide database. Oil & Gas Exclusion Policy, a part of
this policy, is published externally as well. It can be retrieved through Fossil fuel exclusion policy (rbinternational.com).

The monitoring tool on the supportive, transformative, and restrictive categorization is a Dashboard and demonstrates the

distribution of the portfolio across supportive, transformative, and restrictive categories together with corresponding Exposure
at Default (EAD) and Risk-Weighted Assets (RWA).
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Business policy on thermal coal

Business policy on thermal coal is RBI Group regulation, locally approved in RBHU Group as Annex to Credit Policy
regulations and to the Sustainability assessments in corporate lending and underwriting local regulations, without
any local amendment

Scope of the regulation is the coal-related lending activity financing of the Bank.

This is an exit (phase-out) policy that sets rules for the exit from Thermal Coal Financing by 2030. Allowed business for
transformation from Thermal Coal is a part of the policy. The policy's threshold is based on revenues (25% or lower) for
acceptability, provided that the companies have a clear exit plan from the sector by 2030.

The policy is prepared on the following regulatory/legal framework:

The Paris Pledge for Action (United Nations Climate Change Conference)

Katowice Rulebook (24th United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change Conference, COP24), Katowice,
December 2018

United Nations Global Compact - Principles 7-9.

This internal policy is available to all stakeholders involved through a group wide database and the ultimate responsibility of
implementation is with the Group Head of Corporate Customers.

Business policy on tobacco

Business policy on Tobacco is RBI Group regulation, locally approved in RBHU Group as Annex to Credit Policy regulations and to
the Sustainability assessments in corporate lending and underwriting local regulations, without any local amendment.

Scope of the regulation is the Tobacco-related lending activity financing of the Bank. The policy outlines business rules for
tobacco producers and distributors, categorizing customers as acceptable, critical, or non-acceptable. Accepted customers
include globally active tobacco producers with high transparency and governance, and a commitment to responsible labeling,
packaging, and marketing, especially regarding health warnings and protection of minors. These producers must also be
transitioning away from traditional tobacco products, offering at least one reduced health risk product brand in each main
market. Distributors must rely on at least 75 percent of their sales from these responsible | tobacco producers.

The policy is prepared on the following regulatory/legal framework:

The World Health Organization (WHO) Framework Convention on Tobacco Control
UN's Sustainable Development Goals: Nr. 3 "Good Health and Well-being"”
UNEP FI Principles of Responsible Banking: Principle 2 “Impact Analysis and Target Setting”

DIRECTIVE 2014/40/EU OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL of 3 April 2014 on the approximation of
the laws, regulations and administrative provisions of the Member States concerning the manufacture, presentation
and sale of tobacco and related products.

DIRECTIVE 2010/13/EU OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL of 10 March 2010 on the coordination of
certain provisions laid down by law, regulation or administrative action in Member States concerning the provision of
audiovisual media services (Audiovisual Media Services Directive)

This internal policy is available to all stakeholders involved through our group wide database. and the ultimate responsibility of
implementation is with the Group Head of Corporate Customers.

Business policy on nuclear energy

Business policy on nuclear energy is an RBI Group regulation adhered to within RBHU Group practices directly: these
regulations are implemented into RBHU Group workflows and risk management practices without specific local
implementation.

Scope of the regulation is the nuclear energy-related lending activity financing of the Bank.

The policy is implemented to avoid and minimize environmental risks associated with nuclear power plants. In accordance with
our business conduct RBI seeks to avoid financing of or participation in any transactions or projects which put the environment
at risk of lasting substantial detrimental effect (e.g. negative effect on pollution of land, air or waters). RBI aims to avoid the
mobilization and catalyzing of nuclear energy business (as to financing, advisory or other banking services, participation,
investment funds focusing on nuclear energy). RBI ensures that financing requests in the underwriting process are classified
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and evaluated according to the presented ESG framework through its internal processes and regulations. Consequently, the
Compliance department, along with account officers, product managers, the sustainable finance team, as well as the Risk
department, collaboratively check whether clients comply with the RBI Group Nuclear Policy. This evaluation includes reviewing
clients related to nuclear activities during onboarding and financing stages, as well as conducting annual monitoring.
Responsibility for the adherence to the policy lies with the head of Group Compliance.

The policy is prepared on the following regulatory/legal framework:
Convention on the Physical Protection of Nuclear Material, as amended (CPPNM) (Vienna, 1979)
Convention on Early Notification of a Nuclear Accident (ENC) (Vienna 1986)
Convention on Assistance in the Case of a Nuclear Accident or Radiological Emergency (NARE) (Vienna, 1986)
Convention on Nuclear Safety (NS) (Vienna 1994)

Joint Convention on the Safety of Spent Fuel Management and on the Safety of Radioactive Waste Management
(RADW) (Vienna 1997)

The policy was established by Group Compliance and is a result of alignment between all local compliance officers as its main
stakeholders which are responsible for sensitive business.

To make the policy available to its key stakeholders, the business policy on nuclear energy is published internally in a group-
wide database. Furthermore, RBI published its position statement on nuclear energy on its website under the following link:
Nuclear Power.

Process policy

ESG Risk Framework and the EU Taxonomy Regulation KPI Calculation Framework

ESG Risk Framework and the EU Taxonomy Regulation KPI Calculation Framework is an RBI Group regulation adhered to within
RBHU Group practices directly: these regulations are implemented into RBHU Group workflows and risk management practices
without specific local implementation.

The policy describes how ESG relevant topics are to be reflected within the risk management area, and for which a stand-
alone supporting document has been created. The main documents attached to the ESG Risk Framework relate to:

ESG Process Flow - reflects the inclusion of the ESG within the corporate lending process
Sectoral strategies
Financed emissions calculations

ESG in Corporate underwriting

All the mentioned policies have a specific monitoring process, whereas the implementation of the overall framework is locally
in the responsibility of the Integrated Risk Management Department.

The policy reflects how ESG risks are identified, measured and steered, while having the relevant processes and governance. +
Employees working within the risk area, and across all business lines.

Relevant stakeholders:

Project Finance
Corporate Risk Management
Risk Controlling

Corporate Business
Group Financial Institutions, Country and Portfolio Risk Management is accountable for the implementation of the policy.
The policy is prepared based on the following regulatory and legal framework:

ECB Guide on climate-related and environmental risks
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The policy was established by Group Financial Institutions, Country and Portfolio Risk Management and is a result of alignment
between the risk area and the corporate business area.

To make the policy available to its key stakeholders, the policy is published internally in a group-wide database.

RBHU Group ESG Rulebook

RBHU Group ESG Rulebook is a local policy, where RBI Group standards translated and adapted to local processes
and organisational responsibilities: fully fledged local version, compliant with group directives

The application of the rules falls into the responsibility of the Department Heads of those business areas that are in
charge for the lending activities

Scope of the regulation is the mid- and large corporate and project finance lending activity financing of the Bank

The Bank held internal trainings on 3 occasions in 2024 for employees concerned upon the requirements of the ESG
Rulebook to enhance effective roll-out.

To help its customers improve their carbon footprint and make their transformation a sustainable success, RBHU Group needs
to be able to assess transactions and projects on the basis of ESG criteria and advise its customers accordingly. In 2020, RBI
devised a harmonized definition of sustainable customers and transactions, and made it available to the whole of the RBI in
the form of an ESG Rulebook. The RBI Group ESG Rulebook was implemented on local level in 2023. RBHU Group aims to update
the RBHU Group ESG Rulebook regularly in order to reflect the latest market developments.

The policy describes the ESG flagging of financial products within Corporate and Institutional customer segments (including
Financial Institutions, Sovereigns and LGRs) in RBHU Group.

The policy is based on Loan Market Association guidelines, ICMA principles, the EU Taxonomy regulation as well as market
practice in relation to anti-greenwashing processes.

To make the policy available to its key stakeholders, the policy is published internally in a database.
Sustainability assessments in corporate lending and underwriting

Based on RBI Group policies 'ESG in Corporate Underwriting' and 'ESG Process Flow Corporates'

Sustainability assessments in corporate lending and underwriting is a local policy, where RBI Group standards
translated and adapted to local processes and organisational responsibilities: fully fledged local version, compliant
with group directives.

The application of the rules falls into the responsibility of the Department Heads of those business and risk areas
that are in charge for the lending activities.

Scope of the regulation is the mid- and large corporate and project finance lending activity financing of the Bank

The Bank held internal trainings on 4 occasions in 2024 for employees concerned upon the requirements of the
Sustainability assessments in corporate lending and underwriting policy to enhance effective roll-out.

Scope of this regulation is to define the definitions, responsibilities and tasks within the framework of ESG induced corporate
credit risk management.

ESG process flow corporates policy based RBHU Group rules within the Sustainability assessments in corporate
lending and underwriting policy

The policy describes how ESG risks have been included in the three lines of defence model (especially the first and
second line of defence, as the third line of defence audit is regulated in the respective audit policies).

It provides an overview of the ESG process steps to be taken on the business and risk management side, to
incorporate ESG risks. Relevant stakeholders are: Account Managers, ESG Experts, Risk Managers, Credit Analysts.

Credit Product Management Team, Project Finance Department and Corporate Credit Risk Management
Department are accountable for the implementation of the policy.

The policy is prepared on the following regulatory/legal framework: ECB Guide on Climate and Environmental related risks.

ESG in Corporate Underwriting policy based RBHU Group rules within the sustainability assessments in corporate lending and
underwriting policy
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The policy describes which type of ESG-related information the corporate credit analyst and risk manager via its risk
analysis and statement transfers to the credit decision maker and in which cases dependent on a combination of
customer & industry environmental score the corporate risk manager undertakes a more detailed analysis of the
customer’s business model and how it is affected by environmental risks. The ESG risk analysis is an integral part of
the Risk Statement, ensuring implicit monitoring of the policy.

The policy provides regulations for the credit analyst and for the corporate risk manager / underwriter how to report
& (partially) assess environmental risks the customer might be exposed to. Relevant stakeholders are: Account
Managers, ESG Experts, Risk Managers, Credit Analysts involved in Corporate & Specialized Lending.

Corporate Credit Risk Management Department is accountable for the implementation of the policy.
The policy is prepared on the following regulatory/legal framework:

ECB Guide on Climate and Environmental related risks
EBA Guidelines for Loan Origination & Monitoring
EBA Report on ESG Risks Management & Supervision

FMA Guide for Managing Sustainability Risks.

The policy is aligned with all relevant process stakeholders. To make the policy available to its key stakeholders, the policy is
published internally in regulation database.

RBI taxonomy rulebook

The RBI taxonomy rulebook outlines the regulatory requirements of the EU Taxonomy Regulation and the respective
implementing and delegated acts and how these need to be implemented across the RBI Group, respectively the Bank in order
ensure regulatory compliance. The RBI taxonomy rulebook thus provides the methodology for the disclosure of the proportion
of financing provided by the Bank which relates to economic activities that substantially contribute to the environmental
objectives of the EU Taxonomy and fulfil the relevant technical screening criteria, DNSH requirements and minimum
safeguards. The Bank ensures that a financing flagged as taxonomy-aligned is classified in line with the requirements of the
RBI taxonomy rulebook. Accordingly, Sustainable Finance, with the support of the relevant departments, reviews the respective
transactions and provided documentation. In addition, where applicable, the assessment must be carried out using a
dedicated tool that ensures that the requirements are fulfilled.

The policy concerns both the collection of disclosed counterparty KPIs regarding general-purpose exposures as well as the
assessment of exposures with known use of proceeds during the origination process and based on documentation provided by
the counterparty. Thus, it must be considered by all employees at head office and in the subsidiaries involved in the
assessment and flagging of taxonomy eligibility and alignment and the respective reporting of KPIs, in particular ESG experts,
Risk Controlling and Regulatory Reporting.

RBHU Group is subject to the requirement to publish non-financial information pursuant to Article 19a and Article 29a of CSRD
and consequently to the disclosure obligation as outlined in Article 8 Taxonomy Regulation and the respective delegated acts.
The respective assessment of exposures with known use of proceeds is conducted locally in RBHU Group, while the
implementation of the RBI taxonomy rulebook lies with the Group Risk Data & Regulatory Reporting department.

The application of the rules falls into the responsibility of the Department Heads of those business areas that are in charge for
the lending activities.

Own operations

Management

Environmental policy

In the year 2023, RBHU Group obtained certification for its Environmental Management System according to the ISO 14001
standard, and in connection with this, the company's environmental policy was also issued which details the key action areas
and aims to manage and inform actions and targets regarding own operations.

The active communication and involvement of stakeholders such as internal and external experts to inform the policy content,
local Facility Management for implementation of actions, as well as local sustainability specialists to collect data and ensure

regular adaptation, are part of the process. The policy is available on RBHU Group's website.

The scope of the policy is the own operations of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. level, while the most senior level accountable for the policy
is the head of the CPO department. The policy has been revised and accepted on local Senior Management level.
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RBHU Group's environmental policy can be read below:

In recognition of the importance of environmental protection and sustainable development, and our commitment to it, we are
implementing and operating an environmental management system in accordance with the requirements of the ISO
14001:2015 standard. Our main objectives, in line with the strategic direction of our company and the Environmental
Management System (EMS), are primarily focused on the following areas:

The foundation for the establishment and proper operation of the environmental management system is the
commitment of our management and employees, enhancing this commitment and their purposeful collaboration

We strive to continuously ensure compliance with relevant obligatory laws, regulations, EMS requirements, and
agreed obligations, keeping in mind the alignment of these with our operational processes. We place great emphasis
on monitoring to ensure compliance

Based on environmental data and indicators, we take actions to continuously improve the management system and
enhance our environmental performance

We carry out our activities with a focus on correcting any detected non-compliances

To prevent and reduce environmental pollution, we analyse both the direct and indirect impacts that may affect our
activities

Considering the expectations of interested parties, we aim to reduce our environmental impacts and risks, while
increasing opportunities by identifying, assessing, and reviewing environmental factors and impacts, risks, and
opportunities, as well as setting related goals

We strive to minimize the use of natural resources, energy, and raw materials

We strive to replace environmentally harmful materials and substitute hazardous materials with less dangerous
ones, thereby reducing associated risks

To reduce air pollution and increase awareness, we aim to decrease emissions related to personal transportation

We focus on continuously increasing the positive climate impact of our business activities by supporting climate-
friendly innovations and consistently reducing our carbon footprint. Where possible, we aim to achieve carbon
neutrality (CO2 neutrality) by 2050

We strive to prevent and reduce the generation of waste, implement selective waste collection, and promote
recycling

Many of our objectives serve to reduce energy consumption, as evidenced by the operation of our energy-focused
management system

We provide continuous training and education to our employees to prevent environmental pollution, preserve natural
resources, improve the management system, and increase employees' environmental awareness

We engage in open communication with customers, suppliers, authorities, and significant stakeholders to improve
environmental protection

We follow-up the environmental performance and work of subcontractors and suppliers.
We ensure that this policy is documented, public, and accessible to our employees and all interested parties.
Travel policy
The RBHU Group travel policy aims to regulate the processes and reimbursement related to domestic and foreign assignments

taking place at Raiffeisen Bank and its subsidiaries in accordance with the law. The Head of HR Department is accountable for
the policy and the application of its rules.

E1-3: Actions and resources in relation to climate change policies
Value chain

Corporate and Institutional customers

One key goal for the climate & environmental business strategy is to incorporate the climate targets of the Paris Agreement
into RBI Group and consequently to RBHU Group balance sheet. The Bank identifies and measures climate related impacts. This
allows to recognize new business opportunities on one hand, while on the other hand setting measures to mitigate harmful
effects to the climate and environment, thus making its overall business composition more sustainable.
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In a first step, RBI Group runs an assessment both at portfolio and counterparty level, on a qualitative and quantitative basis
across the various customer types and industries. The goal is to identify both risks and opportunities and to create the
conditions for potentially necessary management of sustainability risks customer and industry levels. At this stage at portfolio
level, the Bank relies on the results of the materiality analysis and impact analysis, the financed emission calculation, and
results from the climate stress test. At counterparty level, the Bank focuses on the ESG counterparty assessment and includes
its considerations in the lending process.

RBI then transforms those results into internal steering impulses according to financial, risk, and operational needs. RBI and
consequently RBHU Group set targets and prioritize our resource allocation by reducing relations with businesses not meeting
our environmental and economical parameters. This helps us both achieving our ambitions and realizing opportunities at the
same time.

The sectoral strategies are the tool for the steering process. In Phase 1, we classified customers and transactions in three
clusters: "restrictive” designates candidates earmarked for termination in case transition is not achieved; "transformative”
designates customers that support our transformation with new loans meeting our sustainability criteria (they account for the
main part of the portfolio); supportive is for customers already green. In Phase 2 we plan to design engagement criteria and
quantitative targets. The credit policy and the lending process are included in the steering process. The credit policy currently
reflects the minimum ESG criteria and guidelines in accordance with the latest ESG risk developments. The lending process
includes ESG-relevant aspects in the “three lines of defence”-model for the corporate segment.

Sustainable financing

Providing sustainable financing generates added value for our customers and a wide range of activities for society that are
suited to sustainable financing. The Bank describes financing as being sustainable when it has a long-term positive impact on
the environment and climate and/or on societal and social issues, and when it supports the attainment of the Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs). More specifically, the definition of a sustainable transaction is based on the EU Taxonomy
Regulation and on RBHU Group's ESG Rulebook (basis: RBI's ESG Rulebook) definition for green and social. The eligibility criteria
of the listed frameworks differ in terms of complexity and precision.

The total volume of sustainable financing (limited to financing with a positive impact on the environment and the climate and
ESG-linked financing) for corporate and institutional customers at RBHU Group and its subsidiaries in 2024 was around €574
million as of 31 December 2024. Of this amount, customers have utilized financing lines amounting to €541 million. In addition,
there was an unutilized line of sustainable financing of nearly €33 million.

Sustainable financing - corporate and institutional customers

in € million 2024

Financing with a positive impact on the environment and the climate 538.99 94 %
ESG-linked financing 255 0%
Subtotal (utilized line) 54154 94 %
Unutilized line 3286 6%
Sustainable financing 574.40 100 %

Breakdown of sustainable financing by category:

Sustainable financing - corporate and institutional customers

in € million 2024

Sustainable real estate 249.67 43 %
Renewable energy 175.34 3%
Energy efficiency measures o -%
Sustainable mobility 13.98 20 %
Water supply, sewage treatment and waste management = -%
Sustainable forestry and farming = -%
Manufacturing industry = -%
ESG KPI-linked loans 255 0%
ESG Rating-linked loans = -%
Subtotal (utilized line) 541.54 94 %
Unutilized line 3286 6%
Sustainable financing 574.40 100 %

As this is an ongoing process there are not specific time horizons defined for completing this action, mainly the provision of
sustainable financing.
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Sustainable real estate

Real Estate and Construction are among the key industries under the radar of those that are involved in green economy and
finance. RBHU Group is committed to being one of the pioneers in the industry, which means that it does not follow the market,
but rather strives for sectoral strategies that reflect its leading role in banking. Therefore, aligned to the RBI Group practice
RBHU Group included Real Estate & Construction as part of its sectoral policy with the main goal of defining the categories for
the transition to green economy.

The policy defines engagement criteria based on ESG clusters and provides EAD portfolio targets for 2025 and 2030 for
Construction, and 2025 for Real Estate. In order to monitor those targets, a Power Bi monitoring tool was developed which
shows the portfolio distribution and in case of deviation from the targets, notifies the relevant stakeholders (e.g. Industry Lead,
Sustainable Finance) and negotiates paths with these parties to solve the breach.

In 2024, the volume of financing utilized at RBHU Group in the area of sustainable real estate was nearly € 250 million as of 31
December. Moreover, sustainable real estate finance is one of the most important asset categories in the volume of finance
with a positive impact on the environment and climate with 43% of the total.

Renewable energy, energy efficiency and electrification

The 2023 World Energy Transition Outlook (World Energy Transitions Outlook 2023: 1.5°C Pathway (irena.org)), explicitly
identified renewable energy, energy efficiency, and electrification as key transition drivers, broadly enabled by the
technological advancements of renewable energy production capacities. Moreover, it highlights that even though considerable
progress has been made in the past decade, financing institutions should further prioritize supporting the construction of such
infrastructure.

Based on an increasing RBI Group portfolio base and RBI Group business pipeline of applicable projects and customer capex
investments, there is a substantial business case arising for RBI Group's carbon transition to Net Zero 2050. For RBHU Group
most opportunities originate around renewable energy, energy efficiency, and electrification.

Renewable energy

Renewable energy consists of solar, wind (onshore and offshore), hydro and rooftop solar. The build out of renewable energy
production will contribute an estimated 25% to global CO2 reduction. An estimated annual deployment of ca. 1000 GW of
renewable power is required to stay on a 1.5°C pathway (according to World Energy Transitions Outlook 2023: 1.5°C Pathway
(irena.org)).

In 2024, the volume of financing committed to renewable energy investment projects by RBHU Group was € 175 million as of 31
December 2024 which, alongside a solid pipeline and significant demand growth expected, provides a good basis for future
business development.

Key steps to further increase the renewable energy business segment are to increase RBHU Group's track record with
established relationship customers and undertake the financing of projects under newly implemented regulatory regimes like
onshore wind financing.

As this is an ongoing process there are not specific time horizons defined for completing this action.

Electrification

In focus are Battery Energy Storage Systems (BESS), public transport (EV fleet), EV charging infrastructure, electricity grids,
electric utilities, and adjacent industries. Broad electrification of transport and industrial processes will contribute to an
estimated 19% of global CO2 reduction. Electrification is set to become the main energy carrier, accounting for 50% of total
final energy consumption by 2050.

To enable the electrification value chain, RBHU Group is actively looking into opportunities from battery production to BESS
projects and to continue the cooperation with RBHU Group's industry specialists, specifically for automotive. Contributing to
the accelerating growth of a potentially booming BESS market are falling production costs, especially of lithium-ion batteries,
which despite substantial R&D working on alternatives, are still the dominating technology.

As this is an ongoing process there are not specific time horizons defined for completing this action.

Retail banking

RBHU Group aims to further increase new green loan sales to private individuals and small-business customers, and therefore
advise our customers on the possibility of green mortgage loans (secured by real estate and are made available exclusively to

finance or refinance, in whole or in part, new and/or existing transactions with a specific use of proceeds as defined by the
framework for Green and Social Loans included in the local Credit Policies).
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Prevention of greenwashing and negative ESG impacts

To tackle the topics of negative ESG impacts and greenwashing prevention within the sustainable finance transactions, RBHU
Group has implemented different processes, which include the ESG Expert Opinion and the Greenwashing Prevention Check.
RBHU Group also conforms to the exclusion list (established on RBI Group level) of all corporate activities in which RBHU Group
does not wish to be involved.

ESG expert opinion

An ESG expert opinion is prepared for particularly critical customers, but specifically for critical projects. The ESG expert opinion
evaluates the ESG impact of the transaction at project and company level and assesses its impact on the environment and
social issues. It also includes a qualitative assessment and presents a conclusion on whether or not the transaction should be
pursued from an ESG impact point of view. Consequently, the ESG expert opinion provides decision makers with more detailed
information and enables them to consider ESG impacts in their lending decisions. It therefore plays a key role in preventing
negative impacts from an ESG perspective. The assessment in the ESG expert opinion takes the following aspects into account:
industry impact based on the Principles for Responsible Banking (PRB) Impact Radar; company- and project-related negative
impact on key sustainability issues and their mitigation measures; past and current controversies and incidents; the legal
environment (i.e. whether high environmental and social standards are ensured through EU regulations).

For critical cases, the ESG expert opinion is issued by RBI AG's Sustainable Finance department with the contributions of local
ESG experts. To formalize and standardize the process, an ESG expert opinion tool has been set up internally and a workshop
was held to train local ESG experts on how to write an ESG expert opinion and how to navigate through the tool. Follow-up
trainings will be established.

Greenwashing prevention check

RBHU Group has established a process to prevent greenwashing and has rolled it out as part of the RBHU Group ESG Rulebook.
Under the greenwashing prevention check, RBHU Group commits to certain internal process steps, which must be complied
with in the event of a sustainable transaction with a customer. In particular, local ESG experts are involved in the bid phase, the
decision phase and the execution phase of a sustainable financing transaction with the external support of RBI AG's
Sustainable Finance team if necessary. The greenwashing prevention check focuses on the structure of sustainable financial
products, including products that are designated as green, social, sustainability-linked or similar. For the definitions of
sustainable business transactions, standards such as the Loan Markets Association guidelines, the ICMA Principles and the EU
Taxonomy Regulation were applied. These are used for qualification and (de)flagging of business transactions and form the
basis for the greenwashing prevention process. In other words, the greenwashing prevention check is a precondition for RBHU
Group's involvement in sustainable finance products. The check is applied for all sustainable finance products. By involving the
local ESG experts in ESG transactions, RBHU Group provides a further supervisory body to minimize greenwashing risks and
contribute to greenwashing prevention.

Raising awareness - supporting the local business units

It is key to raise awareness of ESG-related topics in the business units, to build up ESG knowledge internally and to ensure
efficient cooperation within the RBI Group. Accordingly, Corporate ESG Ambassadors have been established in all the subsidiary
banks in Central and Eastern Europe, including the subsidiary bank in Hungary. The primary objectives of the network are to
pass on knowledge and information between head office and RBHU Group, to advertise ESG activities for corporate customers
in Hungary and to support these companies so that they can leverage the opportunities available to them in the area of ESG
megatrends and combat global climate change to the greatest possible extent, as well as updating and educating local
relationship managers on latest developments in ESG. Local ESG Ambassadors regularly participate at the business-specific
trainings provided by Head office on subjects such as EU taxonomy compliance, ICMA bond standards, current developments,
circular economy, as well as on the various ESG and sustainability-related products. In addition, RBHU Group's local ESG
Ambassadors participate on monthly update calls held with the Corporate ESG Ambassadors in order to maintain a dialog on
ESG topics. Through this close cooperation, we are able to maintain and foster the RBI Group standard for day-to-day business
on the subject of sustainable financing.

The actions - described in E1-3/Value chain chapter - scope covers the segments impacted by the Bank's financial services.
The actions - described in E1-3/Value chain chapter - do not require significant capital expenditures.

Own operations

A variety of options are available to enhance sustainability within the company. At RBHU Group, these range from building
management and energy reduction measures, to increasing the share of material recycled and staging information campaigns

for employees. The actions taken to increase the sustainability of own operations varies across RBHU Group, as it is within the
local sustainability management's expertise to inform which actions will have the biggest impact.
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Our primary targets include among others the continuous reduction of RBHU Group's carbon footprint. From 2022 onwards, we
have started quantifying it and setting specific targets to help achieve this objective. An overview of a few key actions as well
as their implementation for 2025-2026, can be found below:

Purchasing green electricity for both the AGORA Headquarters and branch offices:

During the procurement of electricity, we strive to ensure that at least 30% of the electricity purchased for
RBHU Group comes from certified renewable energy sources. This step is crucial in proportionately reducing
greenhouse gas emissions from electricity producers.

Establishing selective waste collection in the Bank's branch network:

The selective waste collection system implemented at the AGORA headquarters is very popular among
employees. Based on the experiences gained so far, we plan to introduce selective waste collection in suitable
branch offices, contributing to the expansion and operation of a circular economy.

Purchasing electric vehicles for the Bank's fleet:

In 2024, we acquired 16 new EVs through grant support, which will help reduce the CO2 emissions of RBHU
Group's road fleet. Leveraging these experiences, we aim to create further opportunities to green the RBHU

Group fleet in 2025.

Installing new solar parks in selected branches:

Since its commissioning in 2022, the 50 kWp solar park installed on the Raiffeisen Bank Service Center building
has generated approximately 64.39 MWh of energy, preventing 29.29 tons of CO2 emissions. Based on this
success, we have initially selected two branches where the conditions (location, required energy amount,

permits) allow for the installation of additional solar systems.

Continuing branch lighting upgrades (LED Installation):

With each redesign, new branches are renovated every year, replacing the old lighting systems with new LED-

based lighting.

Overview of measures

Topic Measure HU
1SO 14001
Environmental certificates 1SO 50001 v
External energy audit
LED v
Light sensors v
Evening/weekend mode v
Energy savings and efficiency Computer/printer with energy labels
Adaptions in heating/cooling v
IT with environmental standards
Adjusments in building envelope
Renewable energy Purchasing renewable electricity v
Support of public transportation
Business travel & commuting
Bicycle parking spaces v
Fleet CO2 reduction measures
E-cars, hybrid vehicles v
X Measures for reducing consumption
Paper consumption
Paper with an environmental label
Waste separation v
Waste management system
Waste
Increase of recycling waste
Measures to waste reduction
Water Measures for reducing consumption
Employee information e.g. in the form of training and via intranet v
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E1-4: Targets related to climate change mitigation and adaptation
Value chain
Lending portfolio (non-financial corporations)

The RBHU Group's financed emissions targets are at the first stage set for non-financial corporations and are in accordance
with RBI Group's approach.

The backbone of net-zero emissions is the Sixth Assessment Report (AR6) of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(the IPCC). Financial institutions should establish their emission reduction targets in line with category C1of the ARé, i.e,, 1.5°C
pathway with no or limited overshoot. The RBHU Group's approach, adhering to the RBI Group's approach for setting targets
involved the following considerations, guidelines, and components: in order to set science-based targets and be compatible
with limiting global warming to 1.5°C, RBI considered a diverse range of climate scenarios to detect relevant environmental,
societal, technology, market and policy-related developments and determine decarbonization levers. RBI also considered the
Emissions Gap Report (2023) by the United Nations Environment Programme as a part of the framework. Accordingly,
Nationally Determined Contributions in the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change and National Energy and
Climate Plans of the EU Commission repositories were examined. National pledges demonstrate the decarbonization paths of
countries as declared by themselves. RBI compared national pledges to net zero pathways and noticed that in most cases,
national pledges are less ambitious than net zero scenario decarbonization pathways. In such cases, RBI applied net zero
scenario reduction pathways to ensure that the pathways are followed in line with net-zero projections.

Two main approaches exist for setting financed emissions targets: the overarching target, also known as the Absolute
Contraction Approach (ACA) and the Sectoral Decarbonization Approach (SDA). The ACA (overarching target) is a one-size-fits-
all approach that enables companies to deliver their absolute emissions values in line with global decarbonization pathways,
while the SDA entails carbon-intensity metrics. Both approaches have own benefits and limitations. As a starting point, RBI
opted for the ACA and set an overarching target for the non-financial corporations’ portfolio in line with the 1.5°C pathway.
Following its rigorous research and exploration of scientific/academic writings and practices applied for decarbonization, and
after reading through climate scenarios and pathways, RBI inferred that several scenarios do not provide GHG data whereas
CSRD require undertakings to disclose their values in GHG. As a PCAF signatory, RBI discloses its financed emissions in GHG
(CO4e), and therefore, scenarios including GHG are of priority.

The scenario RBI has chosen is the Net Zero Orderly Transition scenario of the Network for Greening the Financial System
(NGFS). The NGFS, a group of central banks and supervisors, develops their scenarios phase-by-phase, and RBI applied their
scenario of the current phase (Phase 4). To note, the NGFS provides several scenarios that include different projections such as
delayed transition, well below 2°C, etc. RBI's choice, in line with the 1.5°C pathway requirement, has been the Net Zero Orderly
Transition scenario which is an ambitious scenario that limits global warming to 1.4°C in line with AR6 of the IPCC. At the time
of the IPCC ARé, the NGFS scenario, then having its phase 2, was an acceptable scenario as referenced by the IPCC. Phase 4,
published in late 2023, follows the same structures while offering more granularity. In addition, the International Monetary
Fund, in cooperation with the NGFS, curated NGFS phase 4 scenarios and published them at their climate change dashboard.
This enabled a country-specific view of the GHG emissions as a combination of CO, and non-CO, emissions (non-CO, emissions
are other gases under the Kyoto Protocol in NGFS). GHG gases, in addition to carbon dioxide include Kyoto gases under both the
NGFS scenario and PCAF standards.

The NGFS scenario draws upon integrated assessment models. Integrated assessment models (IAM) are scientific models that
provide links to societal structures, economic facts and projections, and they also take biosphere and atmosphere into
account. This synthesizing approach is based on human-earth interplay. Hence, although RBI considered the granularity of the
SDA on specific sectors, it opted for an overarching target based on the NGFS scenario due to an extensive lack of other
industries under the current SDA framework and inadequate information about GHG guidance. It should also be noted that the
NGFS scenarios, in themselves, and as stated by the NGFS, consist of sectoral granularity to an extent that is above average
compared to other scenarios assessed by the IPCC AR6 (see NGFS scenarios, p.4). The main categories under the integrated
assessment models are energy industries, transportation, and buildings. As is the case with several other scenarios, the NGFS
scenario, too, projects immediate action and significant changes to the energy mix. The scenario's immediacy can be noticed
through the sharper decreases projected by 2030 and 2035, having a time path until 2050 where net zero scenarios are to
provide O or lower net CO,. Furthermore, RBI will continue to explore sectoral approaches, also keeping its stance that they will
extend and develop further. In RBI's case, although it assumes alignment of the portfolio with country-specific
macroeconomics, ACA fits the case for the beginning of this dynamic process as RBI's portfolio does not carry significant
exposures in sensitive industries such as thermal coal and oil upstream. RBI's baseline year has been determined as the last
year of its financed emissions disclosure, and the data used was the NGFS scenario curated by the International Monetary
Fund in order to apply the decarbonization path toward the target year 2030.

Pursuant to these considerations and having the possibility to have country-specific data, RBI applied global decarbonization
paths based on the portfolio approach, as the underlying modelling entails the above-mentioned sectoral consideration. This
cross-sectoral approach enabled RBI to project its GHG emissions for the target year in line with the 1.5°C pathway required by
CSRD. These levers are expected to contribute to achieving RBI's GHG emissions reduction target in line with group policies, as
they reflect cross-sectoral projections on the basis of weighted exposure. RBHU Group sets the targets as 17.11 per cent
financed emissions reductions for its non-financial corporations portfolio.
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While setting the target, the Bank involved all stakeholders such as Corporate Business, Risk Management, and the sustainable
finance team, and finally its Board of Management approved these targets. RBI Group and the local RBHU Group aimed to
follow best practices and knowledge in the industry through this approach as RBI noticed that physical emission intensities,
although widely used, do not guarantee the same percentage of decrease in financed emissions that employ a different metric
(kgCO,e/t Euro). This might lead to an unprecedented outcome such as non-decreasing or inadequately decreasing financed
emissions while even physical emissions or their intensities flow as projected. Another risk point is the volatility and non-
comparability of the Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials (PCAF) standards to date. Nonetheless, as a financial
institution, the Bank is aware that it has to work on that basis despite such proneness to volatility in current standards.

As the scenarios for decarbonization do not provide specific guidance for scopes other than scope 7(e.g. [EA NZE 2050), the
Bank, in line with RBI's approach, applied a pro-rata decarbonization share for the other scopes. The RBHU Group also considers
that scope 3 is more vulnerable to volatility and double counting; in that respect, targets are set including scope 1and scope 2
currently. The RBHU Group will continue its development of sectoral approaches which are used for internal steering particular
to the non-financial corporations portfolio.

Pursuant to the target setting disclosed in line with the 1.5°C pathway under the IPCC and in line with CSRD provisions, the
RBHU Group will track and report its financed emissions and their intensity (in tCO,e/mn€) in the next years to disclose how the
portfolio is developing based on the initial settings towards the target year 2030. The Bank commits to the above-mentioned
target level if no material adverse change happens.

Reduction target of RBHU Group from 2023 to 2030

2030 2050

Cross-sector reductions pathway based on the year 2023 as the base year 17 %

It should be noted that the targets set attribute to covered emissions for the non-financial corporations lending portfolio (see
Section E1-6). For the 2023 baseline year, scope 1and scope 2 total financed emissions for the lending portfolio of the non-
financial corporations were: 778,074 kgCO.e. The relevant financed emission intensity for 2023 was: 273 tCO,e/mn €.

Hence, the 2030 financed emissions intensity as target is: 227 tCO,e/mn € (2030 absolute financed emissions: 645,801 kgCO,e).
For the calculations of the base year the PCAF database from September 2024 was considered.

Retail mortgage loans

RBI Group HO has centrally started to calculate the baseline of the emissions for the year 2024; this includes residential real
estate. This will serve as a basis for RBHU Group future plans, regarding emission target setting. However, before setting a
target, we deem a monitoring period of at least one year necessary, engaging with the stakeholders and thoroughly
understanding the drivers as well as well as uncertainties in the data, in order to ensure the stability and consistency of the
methodology and the results. In light of these points, we shall set targets in 2025.

Own operations

At the RBHU Group level, local Scope 1and 2 targets have not been defined; thus, RBHU Group generally aligns to the RBI Group-
level targets when it comes to own operations.
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E1-5: Energy consumption and mix

Own operations

Energy consumption and mix 2024

Fuel consumption from coal and coal products (MWh) -

Fuel consumption from crude oil and petroleum products (MWh); including diesel and gasoline consumption related to owned

vehicles) S
Fuel consumption from natural gas (MWh) -
Fuel consumption from other fossil sources (MWh) -
Consumption of purchased or acquired electricity, heat, steam, or cooling from fossil sources (MWh) 475212
Total energy consumption from fossil sources (MWh) 8200,95
Percentage of fossil sources in total energy consumption (%) 66,79
Total energy consumption from nuclear sources (MWh) 2165,65
Percentage of energy consumption from nuclear sources in total energy consumption (%) 17,64
Fuel consumption from renewable sources (MWh) -
Consumption of purchased or acquired electricity, heat, steam, and cooling from renewable sources (MWh) -
Consumption of self-generated non-fuel renewable energy (MWh) 55,04
Total energy consumption from renewable sources (MWh) 1912,06
Percentage of renewable sources in total energy consumption (%) 1557
Non-renewable energy production (MWh) -
Renewable energy production (MWh) 58,81
Total energy consumption excluding nuclear (MWh) 10 113,01

E1-6: Gross scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions

Value chain

Since 2020, RBI has calculated and published its Scope 3 category 15 financed GHG emissions, i.e. the indirect downstream
emissions associated with its lending and investment activities. RBHU Group was part of the centrally calculated Scope 3
emission figures but has not been disclosed on individual basis until year-end 2024. This has been an important step in
identifying sectors on which to focus its efforts to mitigate the negative impact on the environment of its customers' activities.
RBHU Group was part of the centrally calculated Scope 3 emission figures but has not disclosed on individual basis until year-
end 2024.

The methodology applied is based on the PCAF standard - the most widely accepted, GHG Protocol-compliant standard for
financed emissions calculations. For the 2024 year-end publication, the scope of calculations was enlarged by including the
following for the first time, compared to previously reported information of RBI Group:

Scope 3 emissions from all sectors were taken in account when calculating the RBHU Group's financed emissions in
order to account for the indirect upstream and downstream emissions of RBI's customers in accordance with the
recommendation of the PCAF standard.

A first estimation of financed emissions associated with the mortgage asset class.

PCAF parameters from September 2024, including the inflation adjustment effect, have been used for the year-end
2024 financed emissions calculation for corporate exposures. Additionally, year-end 2023 financed emissions values
and emission intensities for corporate exposures have been recalculated using the same updated PCAF parameters
to ensure comparability of results across both reporting periods.

When calculating Sovereign emissions, calculation was adjusted so that it accounts for the impact of the purchasing
power parity.

Results are based on the IFRS scope of consolidation.
An overview of the PCAF asset classes in scope for the year-end 2024 calculations is provided below, with an indication of the

coverage achieved in each asset class. Coverage of less than 100 per cent is the result of data gaps or due to financed
emissions calculations according to the PCAF not being applicable to a specific asset category.
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Financed emissions asset distribution and coverage

Gross carrying amount Covered by financed emissions Not covered by financed emissions
in million HUF % %
Central banks 606,087 - 0% 100%
Central government 914,286 908,884 99% 1%
Credit institutions 873,732 735,691 84% 16%
Other financial corporations 85,192 75,898 89% M%
Non-financial corporations 1,262,463 1,159,160 92% 8%
Households 635,496 367,934 58% 42%
Other assets 297,920 9,579 3% 97%
Total assets 4,675,176 3,257,147 70% 30%

In total, the Bank's financed GHG emissions calculations covered 70 per cent of its total assets. Covered exposures are defined
as those gross carrying amounts which could be mapped to PCAF asset classes and for which calculation of financed
emissions was performed successfully. PCAF asset classes cover exposures to loans and advances, debt securities and equity
not held for trading from central banks, credit institutions, other financial corporations, non-financial corporations and
household mortgage loans. The PCAF standard sets out requirements for determining the portion of customers’ emissions that
can be attributed to a financial institution. Customer-specific GHG emissions data was used in the calculation where available.
This data allowed a more precise assessment of financed emissions, but availability was still limited. RBI and alongside RBHU
Group conducted an extensive data collection exercise in an effort to constantly improve the quality of their calculations.
Estimates for customer scope 7, 2 and 3 emissions were derived using emission factors, representing average (physical or
economic activity-based) emissions intensity values for specific industries and countries. The main source of emission factors
was the PCAF database.

The PCAF asset class of vehicle loans, which are non-material to RBI's overall portfolio, was outside the scope of the
calculations.

Avoided emissions were reported separately and were not added in total financed emissions; in line with the GHG Protocol,
there was no netting with positive emissions from the portfolio. As the name suggests, avoided emissions are those that were
avoided by investing in renewable energy projects, compared to the emissions that would have been created in the absence of
the respective project.

The PCAF parameters from September 2024 were applied in the financed emissions calculation. The value for the PCAF data
quality score, a measure of the quality of data used to estimate financed emissions, shows a weighted average of 4 (on a scale
of 1to 5, where 1is the highest, 5 is the lowest of the quality). Further details regarding data quality are provided in the table
below showing the results of the calculation on the level of the PCAF asset classes.

Sovereign emissions were calculated according to the PCAF standard using emission factors available in the PCAF emission
factor database. Sovereign scope 1 production financed emissions were disclosed twice, in line with the PCAF requirements,
with the first calculation including the net effect of the land use, land use change, and forestry sectors, while this effect was
excluded in the second calculation. The results obtained amounted to 0.85 million tons of CO.e if the net effect of Land Use,
Land-Use Change, and Forestry (LULUCF) was included, and 0.96 million tons of CO,e if these sectors were excluded. Emission
factors were primarily sourced from the PCAF database and represent the emission intensity of the countries' respective
economies (GDP expressed in purchasing power parity terms). The high data quality score achieved reflected the good quality
of the underlying data, obtained directly from the GHG inventories that countries are required to regularly maintain. It is also
important to highlight that, to some extent, the sovereign emissions can be expected to overlap with those of the RBHU
Group's corporate portfolio, provided that activities at the source of the corporate emissions are located in countries and
sectors covered by the national GHG inventories. Therefore, the emissions of the asset class sovereign debt are not included in
the total sums of financed emissions in the following tables (e.g. Financed emissions by PCAF asset classes, Total greenhouse
gas emissions in detail etc.) to avoid double counting of uncertain magnitude. The financed emissions of the asset class
sovereign debt are transparently reported below the line total.
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Financed emissions by PCAF asset class

Gross carrying amount

covered by emissions Financed emissions in Emission intensity tCO2e/ Weighted data quality

calculation thousand tCO2e HUF million (High =1, Low= 5)
in million HUF Scope 1, 2 Scope 3 Scope 1, 2 Scope 1,2 Scope 1, 2 Scope 3

2024 2023 2024 2024 2024 2023 2024 2024
Business loans 1,073,409 657 1884 0.612 - 34 B
Corporate bonds 630,880 27 580 0.042 - 3.6 36
Commercial real estate 264,454 13 - 0.051 - 4.0 -
Project finance = = = = - = =
Mortgages 366,646 15 = 0.041 - 4.0 =
Total 2,335,389 712 2,464 0.305 - 3.6 3.6
Project finance, electricity generation —
avoided emissions 60,764 53 - 0.875 - - -
Sovereign - incl. LU 860,994 851 - 0.989 - 1.0 -
Sovereign - excl. LU 860,994 965 = 1121 - 1.0 =

The table above shows the results of RBHU Group's financed emissions calculations including customers' scope 3 emissions for
the PCAF asset classes business loans and unlisted equity, listed equity and corporate bonds, and project finance. The Bank
would like to highlight that the scope 3 financed emissions imply double counting of emissions in a bank's own portfolio. This is
because some of the Bank's customers' scope 3 emissions will already be accounted for in the scope 1and 2 of other
customers in cases where the latter has been part of the former's value chain - either upstream (as suppliers) or downstream
(as customers).

The RBI Group and the RBHU Group as well has been striving to stabilize the data quality, calculation framework and scope of
own financed emission calculations. The Bank also understands that measure of PCAF data quality and stability of financed
emissions results have not been exclusively driven by own efforts, but also reflect the soundness and comprehensiveness of
the data the Bank depends on, namely customers' own disclosures and external databases. We expect corporate disclosures to
progressively converge towards best practice and provide the most comprehensive coverage, supported by the improved
harmonization of reporting requirements.

The table below shows the distribution of financed emissions by NACE sector classification within PCAF asset classes of
business loans and unlisted equity, listed equity and corporate bonds, project finance, and commercial real estate.
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Financed emissions by NACE sector

Gross carrying amount

covered by emissions Financed emissions in Emission intensity tCO2e/ Weighted data quality

calculation thousand tCO2e million HUF (High =1, Low=5)
in million HUF Scope 1, 2 Scope 3 Scope 1, 2 Scope 3 Scope 1,2 Scope 3

2024 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
Financial and insurance activities 686,183 23 23 0.033 0.034 4.0 4.0
Manufacturing 374,387 361 1709 0.963 4.565 25 28
Real estate activities 285,214 16 n 0.056 0.231 39 36
Wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor
vehicles and motorcycles 186,970 162 587 0.867 3138 34 37
Professional, scientific and technical
activities 106,382 28 38 0.261 0.393 30 30
Activities of extraterritorial organizations
and bodies 92197 0 0 0.000 0.002 40 4.0
Transportation and storage 74,652 35 35 0.474 0.473 30 30
Mining and quarrying 52,097 16 il 0.317 0.21 4.0 4.0
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 22,771 43 17 1.908 0.753 4.0 4.0
Information and communication 18,260 1 4 0.041 0.200 30 30
Construction 15,749 2 m 0.108 0.717 4.0 4.0
Human health and social work activities 13,933 1 3 0.054 0.237 4.0 4.0
Administrative and support service
activities 13,306 2 4 0.144 0.322 40 4.0
Activities of households as employers;
undifferentiated goods- and services-
producing activities of households for own
use 10,308 1 0 0.056 0.000 4.0 0.0
Accommodation and food service activities 8,964 1 2 0.069 0.409 40 40
Water supply; sewerage, waste
management and remediation activities 3,070 3 4 1.048 1294 39 39
Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning
supply 2736 2 4 0.876 1498 40 40
Other service activities 909 1 0 0.757 1.020 4.0 4.0
Arts, entertainment and recreation 487 0 0 0.040 0.087 40 4.0
Education 167 0 0 0.227 0.369 4.0 4.0
Public administration and defense;
compulsory social security 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 0.0 0.0
Total 1,968,742 698 2,464 0.354 1.446 35 3.6
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Financed emissions by country

Gross carrying amount

covered by emissions Financed emissions in Emission intensity in Weighted data quality

calculation thousand tCO2e tCO2e/ million HUF (High =1, Low=5)
in million HUF Scope 1, 2 Scope 3 Scope 1, 2 Scope 3 Scope 1, 2 Scope 3

2024 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
Hungary 1,998,352 687.7 2429.6 0.356 1776 36 35
Luxembourg 121,825 10 25 0.008 0.021 37 37
Austria 16,036 54 8.0 0.047 0.069 39 39
Germany 51,450 15.3 131 0.297 0.256 3.0 3.0
Great Britain 17,448 0.0 0.1 0.002 0.008 4.0 4.0
Belgium 8,516 22 57 0.258 0.675 25 25
Slovakia 7363 0.6 42 0.087 0.570 4.0 4.0
Check Rep. 6,608 0.1 0.4 0.014 0.056 40 4.0
Netherlands 2,096 0.1 01 0.025 0.068 4.0 4.0
Rest of the world 5695 0.0 0.0 0.001 0.004 35 35
Total 2,335,389 7124 2,463.9 0.305 1446 3.6 36
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Total greenhouse gas emissions in detail
2024
Scope 1 GHG emissions
Gross Scope 1 GHG emissions (tCO.e) 960.97
Percentage of Scope 1 GHG emissions from regulated emission trading schemes (tCO.e) -
Scope 2 GHG emissions
Gross location-based Scope 2 GHG emissions (tCO,e) 1,612.05
Gross market-based Scope 2 GHG emissions (tCO,e) 1,612.05
Significant Scope 3 GHG emissions
Gross Scope 3 GHG emissions (tCO,e) 3,179,880.54
1. Purchased goods and services (tCO,e) 73.06
1a Cloud service (tCO,e) 0.2
2. Capital goods (tCO,e) 674.69
3. Fuel- and energy-related activities (not included in scope 1 or scope 2) (tCO,e) 822.05
4. Upstream transportation and distribution (tCO.e) 2.46
5. Waste generated in operations (tCO,e) 591.12
6. Business travel (tCOe) 4426
7. Employee commuting (tCO,e) 1,385.07
8. Upstream leased assets (tCO.e) =
9. Downstream transportation and distribution (tCO,e) -
10. Processing of sold products (tCO,e) -
11. Use of sold products (tCO.e) =
12. End-of-life treatment of sold products (tCO.e) -
13. Downstream leased assets (tCO,e) -
14. Franchises (tCO,e) =
15. Investments (tCO,e) 3,176,287.63
Total GHG emissions
Total GHG emissions location-based (tCO,e) 3182,453.56
Total GHG emissions market-based (tCO,e) 3,182,453.56
GHG intensity per net revenue
GHG intensity per net revenue 2024
Total GHG emissions (location-based) per net revenue (tCO,e/ million HUF) 13.33
Total GHG emissions (market-based) per net revenue (tCO,e/ million HUF) 13.33

The net revenues amounting to 238 724 million HUF, which served as the basis for calculating the GHG intensity, are reported
under operating income (total operating income, net) in the income statement of the consolidated financial statements.

E1-7: GHG Removals and GHG Mitigation Projects Financed Through Carbon Credits

The RBHU Group does not currently engage in GHG removal activities or finance GHG mitigation projects through carbon
credits, making this disclosure non-applicable in 2024. The bank emphasizes that claims of greenhouse gas neutrality and the
use of carbon credits should support operational efforts to reduce emissions and achieve net-zero objectives.

This disclosure will be addressed as part of the bank’s ongoing commitment to transparency, with information provided when

the topics become relevant to its operations and reporting framework.

E1-8: Internal Carbon Pricing

The RBHU Group does not currently apply internal carbon pricing within its operations, rendering this disclosure non-applicable.

This disclosure will be addressed as part of the bank’s ongoing commitment to transparency, with information provided when

the topics become relevant to its operations and reporting framework.
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Social information

Own workforce

ESRS 2 SBM-3: Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with
strategy and business model

Materiality assessment of social risks

In addition to the climate and environmental materiality assessment, the overall ESG risk assessment also includes social risks.
By conducting a thorough materiality assessment of social risks, organizations can better understand and manage the social
factors that are critical to their long-term success and sustainability. The social component was classified as material for the
2024 RBHU Group impact assessment. Qualitatively, the counterparty social risk was assessed as Low to Moderate. This
qualitative low to moderate risk was documented, as the assessment and management of social risk are integral to the
internal ESG framework.

Positive and negative impacts (own operations)

The RBI group strategic roadmap for 2024 and 2025 includes a dedicated pillar on people and culture. Our people and culture
pillar includes strategic initiatives aimed at developing conscious and effective leaders, fostering a collaborative and
customer-centric culture, ensuring we have the right capabilities for both present and future needs, maintaining sustainable
reward and recognition systems, positioning ourselves as an authentic and distinctive employer, and providing meaningful
career and growth opportunities.

The banking sector operates in a strictly regulated environment and there is high demand for highly skilled professionals who
are capable of successfully completing their tasks. Having satisfied and motivated employees is key, however as a learning
organization RBHU Group understands that the development of the employees is essential to maintaining high standards.

Working conditions - secure employment

Regarding working conditions, RBHU Group acknowledges their importance for high employee satisfaction. The nature of the
employment relationship can significantly impact health, influencing factors such as stress levels and work-life balance.
Currently, at 95% of RBHU Group's active employees are employed under permanent contracts.

To bring in specialized expertise and manage short-term workforce needs for project-related tasks, RBHU Group may enter
into contracts with non-employees. For cost optimization and sustainability purposes, non-employees are often transitioned to
permanent contracts.

RBHU Group also provides opportunities for internship contracts, initially limited to a maximum period of six months, with the
possibility of extension. While RBHU Group often offers permanent contracts for junior positions to interns, such offers are
subject to business needs and cannot be guaranteed.

RBHU Group complies with all legal requirements regarding working time and recognizes the benefits of flexible working hours.
Flexible working hours help to increase employee satisfaction and have positive effects on health.

Health

RBHU Group operates Employee Well-being Initiatives and programs contributing to the overall health and well-being of our
employees. These initiatives aim to promote physical, mental, and emotional well-being by ensuring a safe work environment
through the implementation of safety protocols, regular safety training, and compliance with occupational health and safety
regulations.

RBHU Group provides comprehensive health insurance for employees, including medical and vision care. We also offer
preventive health services, health screenings to help reduce the risk of illness and injury, recognizing the importance of

proactive health management.

To help employees to manage stress, RBHU Group operates training programs and provides relaxation spaces.
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Adequate wages

RBHU Group aims to attract and retain a motivated and qualified workforce by providing competitive compensation aligned
with local market trends. The value of work is assessed based on professional knowledge, business perspective, leadership role,
organizational impact, and other job-required competencies. Our job evaluations are conducted using gender-neutral criteria
to prevent any form of discrimination.

Employee involvement

RBHU Group management believes engaged and enabled employees are more motivated and efficient, leading to higher
productivity and better performance. When employees feel engaged and supported in their roles, they experience greater job
satisfaction, which can reduce turnover rate and the costs associated with hiring and training new staff.

Engaged employees are also more likely to contribute ideas and solutions, fostering a culture of innovation and continuous
improvement. By focusing on engagement and enablement, we aim to build a positive, supportive workplace culture that can
attract top talent and enhance the company's reputation.

To ensure employees' voices are heard, we conduct an annual engagement survey. The results are analysed and discussed with
lower managerial levels to identify and address development opportunities. While RBHU Group is committed to fostering
employee engagement and involvement, the effectiveness of these initiatives and their outcomes may vary.

Equal treatment and opportunities for all

At RBHU Group, we are committed to fostering an environment where all employees are treated fairly and without
discrimination. Our aim is to ensure that all employees have access to opportunities for hiring, promotion, training, and
development based on merit. We create a workplace culture where all employees feel respected and valued. We are dedicated
to maintaining a work environment where harassment and bullying are not tolerated, and where employees feel safe and
supported.

Other work-related rights

At RBHU Group, we understand that data security and privacy are fundamental to protecting the autonomy, dignity, and
freedom of our employees. Our commitment to data privacy reflects our dedication to ethical principles and respect for
individual rights.

Financial risks

While there are currently no short-term material financial effects of sustainability matters related to RBHU Group's own
workforce and we believe if the followings focus topics are effectively managed, those can further contribute to a stable,
motivated, and productive workforce, which is crucial for long-term financial success and can support a positive and
sustainable work environment:

Continuously monitoring and improve ineffective labour practices
focusing on retention, proactively using preventive action to minimize attrition
Maintaining high productivity by focusing on employee satisfaction, motivation, and health

Continuous development of employees to maintain skilled and competitive workforce.
$1-1: Policies related to own workforce

The following paragraphs focus on all policies which are related to the topic of our own workforce. All policies are published
only internally. Further information on monitoring of the policies and how RBHU Group policies are made available to key
stakeholder groups can be found in chapter Policy frameworks as governance instruments.

Raiffeisen Group | Financial Year 2024



140 Consolidated non-financial statement

Code of Conduct

At RBHU Group, we adhere to the RBI Group framework. Our Code of Conduct is designed to guide our daily interactions with
both internal and external stakeholders. Upholding lawful, ethical, responsible, and sustainable business practices is a
cornerstone of our corporate culture. The Code emphasizes equal treatment and opportunities for all employees, focusing on
fair employment practices, non-discrimination, and the prohibition of harassment and violence. It underscores the importance
of complying with laws, regulations, and international standards related to human rights, including the principles of the
International Labour Organization, equal employment opportunities, and the prohibition of forced or child labour.

The Code of Conduct explicitly states that any form of discrimination whether based on age, ethnicity, religion, gender, sexual
orientation, disability, or political beliefs or any form of harassment is incompatible with fostering an inclusive work
environment where all employees can achieve their highest levels of productivity and contribute to our business goals.

We encourage our staff to be proactive and to handle change constructively by anticipating it whenever possible. Employees
are also encouraged to express their professional opinions and judgments on matters within their areas of responsibility.

Additionally, RBHU Group is committed to helping employees maintain a healthy work-life balance, ensuring they can
effectively manage their working hours alongside their private lives.

Topic specific policies
Diversity policy

RBHU Group plans to consider the local implementation of RBI Group Diversity Policy. This policy will outline our attitudes, roles,
and responsibilities related to diversity and set forth principles for implementing a diversity and inclusion strategy across our
organization.

Key elements of the RBI Diversity policy include the RBI Diversity Vision and Mission, providing a framework for effective
diversity management.

Total rewards management of RBHU Group

At RBHU Group, we adhere to a Total Rewards Approach, which encompasses both monetary and non-monetary returns
provided to our employees in exchange for their time, talents, efforts, and results. This approach includes the following
elements:

Compensation

Fringe Benefits

Performance & Recognition
Development & Career Opportunities

Work-Life Balance Initiatives.

Our Remuneration Policy offers general guidelines on performance-related and market-appropriate compensation, fringe
benefits, and recognition in line with the Total Rewards Approach. Additionally, this policy reflects and implements regulatory
requirements concerning remuneration principles in compliance with the EBA Guidelines on sound remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Policy meets international standards for an objective, transparent, and fair compensation structure,
compliant with current regulatory requirements. RBHU Group's remuneration system is designed to be consistent with and
promote sound and effective risk management, ensuring that it does not encourage risk-taking beyond acceptable levels. This
policy aligns with the business strategy, objectives, values, and long-term interests of both the RBI Group and RBHU Group,
incorporating measures to avoid conflicts of interest. Developed to support the long-term strategy of both RBHU Group and
the RBI Group, this Remuneration Policy provides a framework enabling RBHU Group to operate effectively within its local
market.

This policy is intended to provide general guidelines and does not constitute a contractual commitment. this policy is regularly
revised and updated to comply with applicable laws and regulations.
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Policy about RBHU Group performance management system and process:

The purpose of this policy is to establish a unified interpretation, framework, and guidelines for the performance management
process at RBHU Group.

Performance management is a vital tool in corporate governance, enabling leaders to set strategic goals and determine the
necessary individual contributions to achieve these objectives. Throughout the performance management process, business
goals are transparently communicated, ensuring that the contributions and goals of both leaders and employees align with
the organization's overall objectives.

Whistleblowing management

RBHU Group strives to create an organizational culture that allows employees to work in a safe and ethical environment. This
includes the opportunity and certain cases obligation for employees to report any violations of the RBHU Group's Code of
Conduct, possible unlawful act, omission or abuse immediately to the supervisor or to the Compliance department. To this end,
RBI Group has established a whistleblowing system, which provides various options for employees to report such incidents,
including the possibility of making anonymous reports. The following channels are offered to employees to raise concerns:

Whistleblowing - Both staff and external stakeholders have the responsibility to report potential violations of the
Code of Conduct or regulatory requirements via either e-mail, phone, postal letter, personally or via Whispli, an
anonymous reporting platform available across the RBHU Group.

Line Management / HR Function - Employees are responsible for raising concerns and complaints through their line
management, who are supported by the local HR function.

Compliance Department investigates the reported breaches in accordance with the legal regulations and its Whistleblowing
policy.

Occupational Health and Safety policy

The policy defines the bank's work safety activities - according to law - referring to operational area and teleworking. Present
regulation includes all obligatory requirements stipulated by Labor law and other regulations to Employers and those which
are necessary and justified for area specificity

Framework for Remote Work (Home Office)

The purpose of the regulation is to establish and sustain a unitary and clear rule inside Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. and its subsidiaries
for introducing and applying Home Office working opportunity. Furthermore, regulating Home Office process, clarifying roles
and responsibilities of leaders and employees.

$1-2: Processes for engaging with own workforce and workers' representatives about
impacts

The Director of Human Resource is responsible for overseeing the processes for engaging with own workforce and workers'
representatives.

Employee surveys

At RBHU Group, we use two key KPIs in our annual employee satisfaction surveys. One is engagement, which measures the
percentage of employees willing to put in extra effort in their daily work. The other is enablement, which indicates the
percentage of employees who feel that the conditions and work environment enable them to perform at their best.
Understanding the drivers behind these metrics provides valuable feedback on our strengths and areas needing improvement.
Therefore, results are discussed across all levels of local management and functional areas, involving employees to understand
the main aspects. Follow-up actions are then defined by the functional areas, focusing on key feedback highlighted by
employees.
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Management briefs

With regards to business results and upcoming actions related to own workforce management briefs are held occasionally to
all managerial level to transparently communicate and leverage management messages to employees.

Works council

The Hungarian Labor Code (Chapter XIX;XX) defines how works council can be established and elected by the employees in
companies with more than 50 employees. In RBHU Group works council operates aligned with the Labor Code. At least once a
year they are consulting and sharing information with CEO in subjects affecting employees (compensation, restructuring).

$1-3: Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for own workforce to
raise concerns

For all RBHU Group employees the "Whispli" tool is available for reporting incidents of any nature. This tool allows to report
corporate misconduct or breaches of the Code of Conduct, such as bribery, corruption, conflicts of interest, workplace
harassment, bullying, discrimination, fraud, and theft, through an anonymous and secure mailbox. Each report is processed by
a case manager. For more details, please refer to the Whistleblowing chapter and described in G1-1 Business conduct policies.

In cases of fraud, misconduct, data privacy issues, and similar concerns, the Disciplinary Committee is responsible for
investigating and defining appropriate mitigation actions.

$1-4: Taking action on material impacts on own workforce, and approaches to
managing material risks and pursuing material opportunities related to own
workforce, and effectiveness of those actions

The below table is summarizing the actions fields:

RBHU Group material topics related to impacts, risks and opportunities

Topic equit;) ::;si:ziusion ds\;g?(::)ﬁ:nt Health i:\zlr;l:r{\eeent rj;?;?‘);iieps
Code of conduct training (S1-1AR 17¢) X

Employee Resource or Affinity Groups X

Woman empowerment programs X X

Generation Management b3 X

Employment of people with disabilities (S1-12 AR

76) x x

Hybrid working X X X
Part-time-work (parents) (S1-6) X X X
Part-time-work (other than parents) (51-6) X X X
Talent management (S1-1AR 17h) X X

Trainee programs X X
Educational leaves (S1-15) X X
Programs for mental health X X

Cooperations with Universities X

Health management trainings X X

Health checks X

General health consulting X

Access tq non-occupational medical and health B

care services

Voluntary health services X

Bank robberies - psychological support X

Promotion of sport activities X

Reimbursement public transport costs X
Special terms bank products X
Employee Survey X
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Diversity, equity and inclusion

Code of Conduct trainings are held bi-yearly for existing employees and for each new joiner to raise awareness about
recognizing and combating discrimination based on gender, cultural aspects, religion, or sexual orientation.

The Women's Empowerment Program aims to raise awareness about the different leadership characteristics of women and
men and how these can be optimized and balanced in their operations.

To build a network for young employees, understand their needs, and provide a forum for networking and development, RBHU
Group launched the Young Generation Program in 2021. The main goals are to build a young community within the bank,
provide professional learning & development, and strengthen corporate values. In 2024 approximately 20 programs were held
with more than 250 participants on the events organized.

Recognizing that flexibility is highly valued in the global labour market, RBHU Group offers hybrid working options based on job
position characteristics, as well as part-time work opportunities.

To help employees balance work and family life, RBHU Group provides financial support for summer camps for employees'
children and offers more home office options during the summer.

While RBHU Group strives to support its employees through these initiatives, the company cannot guarantee specific outcomes
or benefits for every individual.

Employee development

The continuous development of our employees is important to meet both legal and personal requirements and expectations.
RBHU Group has a structured performance management system designed to support employees in their personal and
professional development. It also ensures that employees understand their expected contributions and how these align with
the organization's overall targets.

At RBHU Group, we value learning and encourage all employees to continue their learning journey and shape their development.
A wide range of training opportunities is available, including:

Soft skills
Professional skills
Language skills

Future-proof skills
Development programs available for managers include:
MyExcellence training program
Leadership Academy
Foundation of Leadership
Coaching and mentoring
There are also functional area-specific programs, such as:
Future IT
SMART program

Risk Academy

Additionally, we offer a trainee program specifically aimed at students, providing an entry point for a career at RBHU Group.
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Please note that while RBHU Group strives to support employee development through these initiatives, participation and
outcomes may vary, and the company cannot guarantee specific results for every individual.

Employee involvement

Employee surveys are a crucial tool for capturing employee sentiments and providing an opportunity for anonymous feedback
and suggestions for improvement or appreciation (please see details above).

In 2024, aligned with the RBI initiative, RBHU Group launched the Al Pioneer program and selected Al ambassadors from
functional areas to enhance employees' technological awareness, demonstrate Al opportunities, and promote its ethical use in
their own areas. The Al ambassadors will receive training to improve their Al-related skills and knowledge, enabling them to
make a significant impact within their teams.

Employee relationship

The proportion of temporary employment contracts is very low and is typically offered only for absence replacements and
student positions, adhering to all legal provisions across all units.

Health
RBHU Group offers health insurance to its employees, including a company-financed basic package and health screenings.
Employees have the option to upgrade the basic package and extend health services to family members through self-

financing.

Additionally, RBHU Group provides health screenings for managers differentiated at managerial level, which are also available
to employees at a discounted price.

Occupational health and safety examinations are provided to both new joiners and existing employees.

$1-5: Targets related to managing material negative impacts, advancing positive
impacts, and managing material risks and opportunities

Actual market level is the target for voluntary attrition.
Cross-metric methods and significant assumptions

For the calculation of the metrics in the following disclosure tables (from S1-6 to S1-17), only units with more than 100
employees were considered. The measurement of the parameters has not been validated by any external party other than the
entity responsible for the quality assurance of the non-financial statement. The figures were reported as headcounts either as
of the reporting date or for a period. Where it was possible to provide either point-in-time values or average values, point-in-
time values were disclosed. In this section, we present factual data sourced from the RBHU Group HR systems, as well as data
derived from these facts. No estimates were employed in the preparation of the data tables.
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$1-6: Characteristics of the undertaking's employees
2024 - EoP
Raiffeisen
2024 -EoP 2024 - EoP Bank
Consolidated Raiffeisen Contact
Indicator Description Unit data Bank Zrt. Centre
$1-6 DR50 a)
ESRS S1-6 Total number of employees, male Persons 1283 1143 140
ESRS S1-6 Total number of employees, female Persons 1775 1447 328
ESRS S1-6 Total number of employees Persons 3058 2590 468
S1-6 DR50 b)
ESRS S1-6 Permanent employees, male Persons 1231 1091 140
ESRS S1-6 Permanent employees, female Persons 1668 1340 328
ESRS S1-6 Total number of permanent employees Persons 2899 2431 468
ESRS S1-6 Temporary employees, male Persons 52 52 0
ESRS S1-6 Temporary employees, female Persons 107 107 0
ESRS S1-6 Total number of temporary employees Persons 159 159 0
ESRS S1-6 Non-guaranteed hours employees, male Persons 0 0 0
ESRS S1-6 Non-guaranteed hours employees, female Persons 0 0 0
ESRS S1-6 Total number of non-guaranteed hours employees Persons 0 0 0
ESRS S1-6 Full-time employees, male Persons 1260 1122 138
ESRS S1-6 Full-time employees, female Persons 1569 1262 307
ESRS S1-6 Total number of full-time employees Persons 2829 2384 445
ESRS S1-6 Part-time employees, male Persons 23 21 2
ESRS S1-6 Part-time employees, female Persons 206 185 21
ESRS S1-6 Total number of part-time employees Persons 229 206 23
S1-6 DR50 ¢)
Total number of employees who have left during the
ESRS S1-6 reporting period Persons 474 378 96
ESRS S1-6 Rate of employee turnover in the reporting period Share 16 15 21

$1-7: Characteristics of non-employees in the undertaking's own workforce

Non-employees = Either individual contractors supplying labor to the undertaking (“self-employed people”), or people provided
by undertakings (third-party) primarily engaged in "employment activities” (NACE Code N78). During 2024, no self-employed
people were employed as non-employees.

2024 - EoP
2024 -EoP 2024 - EoP Raiffeisen
Consolidated Raiffeisen  Bank Contact
Indicator Description Unit data Bank Zrt. Centre
$1-7 DR55 a)
Total number of non-employees in the organization's own
ESRS $1-7 workforce Quantity 47 47 0

$1-8: Collective bargaining coverage and social dialogue

Workers' representatives: namely representatives who are freely elected by the workers of the organisation not under the
domination or control of the employer in accordance with provisions of national laws or regulations or of collective
agreements and whose functions do not include activities which are the exclusive prerogative of trade unions in the country
concerned and which existence is not used to under-mine the function of the trade unions concerned or their representatives
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2024 - EoP 2024 - EoP
2024 -EoP  Raiffeisen Bank  Raiffeisen Bank
Indicator Description Unit Consolidated data Zrt.  Contact Centre
$1-8 DR60 a)
Percentage of total employees covered by collective
ESRS S1-8 bargaining agreements % 0 0 0
S1-8 DR60 b)
Percentage of employees in country with significant
employment (in the EEA) covered by workers'
ESRS S1-8 representatives % 100 100 100
$1-9: Diversity metrics
B-1 category represents the executive senior management level under Management Board.
B-2 category represents the middle management level.
2024 - EoP
Raiffeisen
2024 -EoP 2024 - EoP Bank
Consolidated Raiffeisen Contact
Indicator Description Unit data Bank Zrt. Centre
$1-9 DR66 a)
gen-ind Board of Directors, male Persons 6 6 0
gen-ind Audit Committee, male Persons 0 0 0
gen-ind Management Board, male Persons 6 6 0
ESRS S1-9 Male employees in B-1 Quantity 33 33 0
ESRS S1-9 Male employees in B-2 Quantity 102 96 6
gen-ind Board of Directors, female Persons 2 2 0
gen-ind Audit Committee, female Persons 3 3 0
gen-ind Management Board, female Persons 0 0 0
ESRS $1-9 Female employees in B-1 Quantity 8 7 1
ESRS $1-9 Female employees in B-2 Quantity 55 52 3
gen-ind Share of "Board of Director